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Financial HigHligHtS

(a)   Excludes the impact of the following items: $1.6 billion  
of legal and regulatory settlements, restructuring charges 
of $86 million, and $4 million of professional fees largely 
related to corporate development activities.

(b)   Excludes the impact of the following items: $77 million of 
legal settlements, $64 million charge for costs necessary 
to enable the separation of MHE and reduce our cost 
structure, a $36 million non-cash impairment charge 
related to the sale of our data center, a $28 million 
restructuring charge in the fourth quarter primarily 
related to severance, $13 million related to terminating 
various leases as we reduce our real estate portfolio and  
a $24 million net gain from our dispositions. 

(c)   Dividends paid were $0.30 per quarter in 2014 and  
$0.28 per quarter in 2013.

(d)   Includes purchases of property and equipment and 
additions to technology projects. 

(e)  Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2009 and 
total return includes reinvestment of dividends through 
December 31, 2014.  

(f)  The New Peer Group consists of the following companies: 
Thomson Reuters Corporation, Moody’s Corporation, CME 
Group Inc., MSCI Inc., FactSet Research Systems Inc. and 
IHS Inc. The peer group was modified to more accurately 
reflect McGraw Hill Financial’s peers in terms of industry 
after the portfolio rationalization of certain businesses. 
The New Peer Group reflects this modification. 

(g)  The Prior Peer Group consists of the following companies: 
Thomson Reuters Corporation, Thomson Reuters PLC 
(through September 2009), Reed Elsevier NV, Reed 
Elsevier PLC, Pearson PLC, Moody’s Corporation  
and Wolters Kluwer.

$36.41
$44.97

$88.98

 $78.20

$54.67

 10 11 12 13 14

YEAR-END SHARE PRICE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$3,419
$3,762

$5,051
 $4,702

$4,270

 10 11 12 13 14

REVENUE
(in millions)

 

 

$100

$311

$263
$253
$230

     09                10                11               12        13  14

SHAREHOLDER RETURN
FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN (e)

[12/31/09 – 12/31/14] 

 

 

 

 

 

 
MHFI
S&P 500
New Peer Group (f)

Prior Peer Group (g)

 

 

$0.94
$1.00

$1.20
 $1.12

$1.02

 10 11 12 13 14

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

 

 

Years ended December 31 (in millions, except per share data) 2014  2013  % change

revenue  $ 5,051  $ 4,702  7

adjusted income from continuing operations  
 (attributable to the company’s common shareholders)*   1,073 (a)  902 (b) 19

adjusted diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations* $ 3.88 (a) $ 3.22 (b) 20

Dividends per common share (c) $ 1.20  $ 1.12  7

total assets $ 6,771  $ 6,061  12

capital expenditures (d)   92    117   (21 )

total debt   799    799  –

equity (including redeemable noncontrolling interest)   1,349    2,154  (37 )

*  Refer to “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Information” on page 9 of this report for a discussion of the Company’s non-GAAP financial measures.

profiLes
in Leadership
read about some of the leaders of Mcgraw Hill Financial who  
are helping promote growth in the capital, commodity and corporate markets. 

Page     2
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the evolution of financial markets and 
economies all over the world today is 
shaping the future. exciting developments 
include a sea change in investment 
management, from the rise of private 
wealth in asia Pacific to the ongoing 
movement of financial flows, from actively 
managed funds to passive investments. 

another area demanding attention is 
global trade. Policy makers recognize 
that opening new markets is an economic 
imperative. according to a report by the 
United nations, “almost all countries 
with substantial improvement in human 
development over the past two decades 
have also become more integrated with 
the world economy.” 

recent policy developments offer good 
news. toward the end of last year the United 
states and india, together with the wto, 
salvaged the multilateral deal known as the 
trade Facilitation agreement (tFa) to cut 
red tape at border crossings. now, the g20 
must work to ensure all 160 nations of the 
wto ratify and implement the tFa.

an increase in cross border capital flows 
and the liberalization of trade policies are 
welcome developments as Mcgraw Hill 
Financial looks to international markets 
for growth. For details of what the 
company is doing to serve international 
markets, i encourage you to read about 
the ways the company is creating growth 
and driving performance throughout  
the pages of this annual report. 

as announced on February 25, 2015, i 
informed the Board of Directors of my deci-
sion not to stand for re-election as a Director 
at the next annual Meeting of shareholders 
scheduled to take place on april 29, 2015.  
i want to thank our outstanding Board for 
their guidance and counsel over the years  
and i am deeply touched by their awarding 
me the title of chairman emeritus.

i want to thank you, our shareholders,  
for your support and confidence in our 
ability to drive growth and to create superior 
shareholder value. in addition, i want to  
wish every success to Doug Peterson, 
President and ceo, and ed Haldeman  
whom the Board will propose as chairman 
following the annual Meeting. Both these 
individuals are world-class leaders and  
highly respected for their achievements.

Mcgraw Hill Financial is an outstanding 
company with a bright future and a proud 
legacy of providing essential intelligence to 
customers. i am so very grateful to all the 
people who have contributed to the success 
of our businesses over many generations. 
since our founding by James H. Mcgraw  
in 1888, the Mcgraw Hill teams have  
continually met the transformative needs 
of our customers and markets, and will 
continue to do so in the future.

sincerely,

Harold McGraw III
chairman of the Board

dear SHareHolder:

in today’s more connected and dynamic global economy 
there is a growing need for the benchmarks, research, 
analytics and data of Mcgraw Hill Financial. our unique 
products and services facilitate the flow of capital and 
commerce through global markets, promoting growth, 
development and higher standards of living.  

Harold Mcgraw iii
chairman of the Board

CHAIRMAn HARold MCGRAw III,    
who serves as chairman of the international chamber of commerce, was in turkey last year  

in advance of the country hosting leaders of the business community and g20 nations in 2015.

a liFetiMe oF service  
anD acHieveMent 

leaderSHip at tHe coMpany...
 President and ceo, 1998-2013
 chairman, 2000-2015
 Director, 1987-2015
 chairman emeritus, 2015

...and reSpected leader oF  
tHe gloBal BuSineSS coMMunity
 chairman, international chamber of commerce
 chairman, U.s. trade representative’s advisory 

committee for trade Policy and negotiations
 chairman, U.s. council for international Business
 chairman, emergency committee for  

american trade
 Director, Phillips 66
 Director, United technologies corporation
 Former chairman, Business roundtable
 Former chairman, U.s.-india Business council
 Director, committee encouraging  

corporate Philanthropy
 Director, the new York Public library
 vice chairman, asia society
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i am pleased to report Mcgraw Hill Financial has made great progress serving 
global capital, commodity and commercial markets with our compelling 
benchmarks, analytics, research and data. we generated 7% revenue growth 
and 20% adjusted diluted earnings per share (ePs) from continuing operations.  
we also resolved significant legal and regulatory matters, completed our 
portfolio rationalization of media assets and built excellent momentum to 
create growth and deliver shareholder value.

Douglas l. Peterson
President and chief executive officer

dear SHareHolder:

Beth ann Bovino
Beth ann Bovino is the U.s. chief economist 
at standard & Poor’s ratings services. in 
her research, Bovino has raised the issue 
of addressing income inequality before it 
dampens economic growth and has written 
extensively on the positive impact of infra-
structure investment on the economy and 
job creation. in 2013, the wall street Journal 
named her the most accurate forecaster of 
the U.s. economy.

profiLes
 in  Leadership
our mission is to promote sustainable growth in the  
global capital, commodity and corporate markets by providing  
customers with essential intelligence and superior service.  
throughout these pages we share stories of the people of  
this company who are helping achieve this goal.

“one of our top priorities is  

to expand in markets  

outside the u.S.”
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these achievements demonstrate our 
progress in reaching the objectives we  
set in March of last year in the growth  
and Performance goals 2014-16. these  
include the following annual targets: 

  Mid to high single-digit revenue growth; 

  Mid-teens adjusted ePs growth;  

  sustained margin expansion; and 

  over $1 billion of free cash flow. 

a review of last year’s operating results 
from continuing operations shows we 
achieved all four goals for 2014:  

  revenue grew 7% to $5 billion; 

  adjusted diluted ePs increased 20%. 
this marks the third consecutive year of 
double-digit adjusted earnings growth; 

  adjusted operating margins expanded  
to 36% from 33%; and we 

  generated over $1 billion of free cash flow. 

we also said last year we would deliver at 
least $100 million in cost savings over the 
next three years. in fact, we have initiatives 
in place to deliver approximately $140 
million in productivity over three years. 

in addition, we said we were evaluating 
strategic alternatives for our final 
media business and, in november 2014 
completed the sale of Mcgraw Hill 
construction for $320 million in cash.  

cynthia rojas sejas
cynthia rojas sejas is a vice president at 
s&P capital iQ and market development 
head for latin america. cynthia develops the 
regional growth strategy, including strategic 
relationships, product development and 
marketing initiatives in partnership with the 
sales organization and other MHFi business 
units. Her client centric approach resulted 
in s&P capital iQ’s 2014 introduction of the 
first robust source of financial data and 
analytics on private companies in Brazil.

John Kingston
John Kingston is the president of the 
Mcgraw Hill Financial global institute  
and MHFi’s director of market insight.  
He assumed those roles in early 2015  
after almost 30 years with Platts, where 
most recently he was global director of  
news. as president, Kingston advances  
the mission of the institute, which  
includes supporting global economic  
growth and job creation.

andrew goodwin
andrew goodwin is a vice president and 
general manager of agriculture, metals and 
petrochemicals at Platts. goodwin, based 
in london, is responsible for the strategic 
direction, commercial priorities and financial 
results of these businesses. in 2014, Platts 
expanded its position in emerging sectors with 
new products including Platts agriculture alert, 
a news, data and benchmark price service  
for the global sugar and grains markets.

* net of results from noncontrolling interests.
**  the company’s reportable segment, commodities & commercial Markets, is comprised of J.D. Power and Platts.

 s&P ratings services 
 revenUe aDJUsteD oPerating ProFit 

 $2.45 biLLion $1.07 biLLion  
  8%  13%

 s&P caPital iQ 
 revenUe aDJUsteD oPerating ProFit 

 $1.24 biLLion $237 miLLion  
  6%  18%

 s&P Dow Jones inDices 
 revenUe aDJUsteD net oPerating ProFit*

 $552 miLLion $259 miLLion  
  12%  35%

 Platts anD J.D. Power**

 revenUe aDJUsteD oPerating ProFit 

 $893 miLLion $306 miLLion  
  6%  10%

 growth & performance in 2014
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our Key leaderS  
on iSSueS SHaping  
gloBal MarKetS

Building toMorrow’S  
inFraStructure

Funding / Financing Gap
 steve Dreyer, s&P ratings
 Mike wilkins, s&P ratings

Public-Private Partnerships
 steve Dreyer, s&P ratings
 Mike wilkins, s&P ratings
 Jim corridore, s&P capital iQ

Technology and Information 
Platforms
 neil smith, s&P capital iQ

Infrastructure Indices
  alka Banerjee,  

s&P Dow Jones indices

the key to our success is the intellectual 
capital and expertise of our colleagues, 
some of whom we highlight in this year’s 
annual report. these leaders embody 
our mission of promoting sustainable 
growth in the global capital, commodity 
and corporate markets by providing 
customers with essential intelligence and 
exceptional service.  

reSolVing SigniFicant legal  
and regulatory MatterS

earlier this year, the company and standard 
& Poor’s ratings services entered into 
a settlement agreement with the U.s. 
Department of Justice, the attorneys 
general of 19 states and the District 
of columbia. announced in February, 
the settlement contains no findings of 
violations of law by the company, standard 
&Poor’s Financial services or s&P ratings. 
all parties agreed to settle the claims “to 
avoid the delay, uncertainty, inconvenience 
and expense of further litigation.”  

the company reached a separate settle-
ment with the california Public employees’ 
retirement system to resolve its claims 
against the company regarding ratings 
on three structured investment vehicles, 
which was also announced in February. 
in addition, standard & Poor’s ratings 
services reached settlement agreements 
with the U.s. securities and exchange 
commission and the attorneys general  
of new York and Massachusetts, which 
were announced in January.  

we are pleased that all of these matters 
have been resolved. we take compliance 
with policies, procedures and regulatory 
obligations very seriously, and we  
will continue to invest in people and 
technology to strengthen our controls 
across the company. 

Building Superior returnS  
For SHareHolderS

the results we achieved in 2014 and our 
growth objectives for 2015 are driving 
shareholder value. notably: 

  we have returned $3.3 billion to share-
owners in the last three years through 
share repurchases and dividend 
payments. 

  our total shareholder return of 15.3% 
in 2014 outperformed the s&P 500’s 
return of 13.5% and we have beat the 
s&P 500 over the last 10-, 5- and 
3-year periods.  

  in 2015, our Board of Directors raised 
the regular cash dividend to an  
annualized rate of $1.32, marking the 
42nd annual increase in the dividend. 
Fewer than 25 companies in the  
s&P 500 can claim such a long record.  

driVing gloBal growtH

looking ahead, one of our top priorities 
is to expand in markets outside the U.s. 
as gDP growth in developing economies 
is expected to continue outpacing the 
economic expansion of developed nations. 

Deirdre Borrego
Deirdre Borrego is vice president and general 
manager of U.s. automotive operations 
at J.D. Power. Borrego’s california-based 
division provides clients with voice-of-the-
customer feedback through its automotive 
research and real-time retail vehicle 
transaction information, analysis and 
decision-support tools to help reduce risk 
exposure, improve marketing effectiveness 
and improve profitability. 

Jodie gunzberg
Jodie gunzberg is global head of commodities 
at s&P Dow Jones indices. gunzberg is 
responsible for the product management 
of s&P DJi’s widely followed family of 
commodity indices. gunzberg is known for 
her insightful analysis. Under her guidance, 
s&P DJi is revolutionizing the commodity 
markets with new, innovative benchmarks 
and changing the way investors utilize 
commodity indices in their portfolios.

S&p dow JoneS IndICeS Ceo Alex MAttuRRI 
rings the bell of the bolsa de Valores de Lima 
(bVL) in Lima, peru, commemorating an  
agreement for s&p dJi to license, distribute,  
and govern all of the bVL indices, including a  
new version of their flagship index, igbVL. 
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Energy Grid 
  John Kingston, 

MHFi global institute
 Jorge Montepeque, Platts
 christopher Muir, s&P capital iQ

Automotive 
 efraim levy, s&P capital iQ

Financial gloBalization 
and tHe capital MarKetS

Global, Regional and 
National Economic Outlooks
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings
 Jean-Michel six, s&P ratings
 Paul gruenwald, s&P ratings
  alka Banerjee, 

s&P Dow Jones indices
 robert Keiser, s&P capital iQ

Market Data and Analytics
  J.r. rieger, 

s&P Dow Jones indices
 robert Keiser, s&P capital iQ
 steven Miller, s&P capital iQ
 scott Kessler, s&P capital iQ
 Kenneth leon, s&P capital iQ
 erik oja, s&P capital iQ
 cathy seifert, s&P capital iQ

The Housing Market 
  David Blitzer, 

s&P Dow Jones indices
 erkan erturk, s&P ratings
 valerie white, s&P ratings

The Automobile Market
 John Humphrey, J.D. Power

Balanced Monetary Policy 
and Regulation
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings
 Jean-Michel six, s&P ratings
 Paul gruenwald, s&P ratings

Sovereign Debt
 John chambers, s&P ratings
 Moritz Kraemer, s&P ratings

Corporate Debt and Refunding
 gareth williams, s&P ratings
 Diane vazza, s&P ratings
 Jay Dhru, s&P ratings

Growth of Capital Markets
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 richard Peterson, s&P capital iQ

Growth of Green Bond Markets
  J.r. rieger, 

s&P Dow Jones indices

Equity Valuation, Volatility 
 and Liquidity
  alka Banerjee, 

s&P Dow Jones indices
  Michael orzano, 

s&P Dow Jones indices
 Michael thompson, s&P capital iQ
 erin gibbs, s&P capital iQ
 sam stovall, s&P capital iQ
 tuna amobi, s&P capital iQ
 Jim corridore, s&P capital iQ
  stewart glickman, 

s&P capital iQ
 scott Kessler, s&P capital iQ
 Kenneth leon, s&P capital iQ
 efraim levy, s&P capital iQ
 Jeff rey loo, s&P capital iQ
 christopher Muir, s&P capital iQ
 erik oja, s&P capital iQ

   (continued)

Mcgraw Hill Financial’s role in Financing the world’s infrastructure

It IS well doCuMented developed countries need to improve a wide range of 
infrastructure projects while emerging nations face increasing demand to build new roads, 
bridges, rail systems and power grids to grow their economies. solutions remain elusive, 
however, for fi nancing these projects. 

the needs are great. some $57 trillion of infrastructure investment is needed 
through 2030, according to research from standard & Poor’s ratings services. 
with traditional lenders such as banks and governments facing constrained balance 
sheets, s&P projects an annual gap of $500 billion between available funds and 
needed investment.

the benefi ts of infrastructure are clear. in 2014, the international Monetary Fund 
said that increased infrastructure investment could provide a much-needed boost 
to demand in advanced economies—and called it “one of the few remaining policy 
levers available to support growth, given already accommodative monetary policy.” 
in the U.s., s&P research suggests that investing 1% of real gDP would create 
700,000 jobs and about 1 million in the european Union.

in many instances, the private sector could step in to fi ll the fi nancing gap. institutional investors 
have the cash, the expertise and often can bring effi  ciencies that are unavailable on publicly 
fi nanced projects. infrastructure projects are often a stable and predictable long-term invest-
ment, off ering the right mix of risk and reward for cash-fl ush pension funds, insurers, and others.

Despite this attractiveness, there are obstacles keeping the private sector away. in the U.s. 
some states have not authorized the use of public private partnerships. in addition, there are 
red tape, an information gap and in many countries insuffi  cient legal and regulatory systems. 

In the u.S., McGraw Hill Financial and the federal government have entered into an 
agreement that would allow the company to access data on a select, non-confi dential 
portion of Department of agriculture’s multibillion-dollar portfolio of water, energy, and 
telecommunications loans. this information, with data from other public and private sources, 
will enable Mcgraw Hill Financial to create a pre-commercial prototype of an information 
platform as a fi rst step to build market standards such as infrastructure benchmarks, 
indices, and standardized documents—a tool investors say is needed to turn infrastructure 
into an asset class and help fi nance these projects.

inVesting 1% of 
reaL gdp woULd 
create 700,000 Jobs 
in the U.s. and 
aboUt 1 miLLion in 
the eUropean Union.
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Developing economies are eager to create 
deeper capital markets to fund their 
growth and our ratings, benchmarks, 
research and analytics play a major role 
in capital market formation. we have thus 
made a number of investments around  
the world to capture these growth  
opportunities including: 

  s&P Dow Jones indices signed 
partnership agreements with stock 
exchanges in Brazil, Korea, Mexico, 
Peru and taiwan and launched a series 
of new indices to cover the equity 
market in south africa. 

  we opened a new office at the Dubai 
international Financial center to 
enhance collaboration among our 
employees in the city. we are also 
expanding our offices in Beijing, 
Johannesburg and são Paulo to 
accommodate the growing needs of 
these markets. 

  Platts, our most global business with 
more than 60% of its revenue coming 
from outside the U.s., acquired eclipse 
energy group, a privately owned provider 
of data and analysis on european gas, 
power and global liquefied natural gas 
markets. Platts moved its headquarters 
to london, a major energy trading hub, 
where we have more Platts employees 
than anywhere else in the world. 

  J.D. Power launched financial services 
products in southeast asia and australia. 

  to serve the growing bond markets 
of latin america and asia, standard 
& Poor’s ratings services acquired 

colombia credit ratings company Brc 
ratings services, based in Bogota, and 
increased its minority equity investment 
in rating agency of Malaysia (raM). 

FocuSing on cuStoMerS  
and innoVation

in 2014 into 2015 we underscored our 
commitment to innovation and deepening 
relationships with customers by investing 
in people and resources in new products 
to meet the changing needs of the 
marketplace. two examples include:  

  launching the s&P Dow Jones indices 
aggregate Bond index Family to meet 
growing global demand for fixed income 
indices for use in both passive invest-
ment strategies and as benchmarks for 
actively managed portfolios. in 2014 
alone, s&P DJi launched more than  
400 new indices.  

  introducing s&P capital iQ’s credit 
analytics suite of credit risk models, 
which includes market-driven and 
fundamental-based tools paired with 
an expanded set of global private 
company data. this offering allows 
holistic risk management for clients.  

BooSting perForMance

at J.D. Power, we launched what we call the 
nextgen project. this initiative standardized 
and automated research processes to 
improve quality, created a central repository 
for data storage, integration and analysis 
and provided a single user experience for  
all product delivery.  

 cathy seifert, s&P capital iQ
 Pavle sabic, s&P capital iQ
 Dave Pope, s&P capital iQ
 lindsey Bell, s&P capital iQ

Bank Disintermediation
 Jean-Michel six, s&P ratings

International Trade
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 Jean-Michel six, s&P ratings
 Jim corridore, s&P capital iQ
  stewart glickman,  

s&P capital iQ

coMModitieS MarKetS

Commodities Market Maturation 
and Development
  Jodie gunzberg,  

s&P Dow Jones indices
 Joe innace, Platts

gloBal energy Mix

Oil Flows, Pricing and  
Production Shifts
 Dave ernsberger, Platts
  John Kingston,  

MHFi global institute
 Jorge Montepeque, Platts
  Howard silverblatt,  

s&P Dow Jones indices
 sam stovall, s&P capital iQ
  stewart glickman,  

s&P capital iQ
 tom watters, s&P ratings
 thomas Yagel, s&P capital iQ

Shale Energy Production
 Dave ernsberger, Platts
  John Kingston,  

MHFi global institute

 Jorge Montepeque, Platts
  stewart glickman,  

s&P capital iQ

cliMate cHange

Climate Change
  John Kingston,  

MHFi global institute
 Mike wilkins, s&P ratings

Carbon Trading & Regulation
  John Kingston,  

MHFi global institute

Green Investing
  John Kingston,  

MHFi global institute
  Michael orzano,  

s&P Dow Jones indices

cHanging gloBal  
deMograpHicS

Global Aging
 Marko Mrsnik, s&P ratings

Retirement Security
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

Millennials and the Economy
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings
 rocky clancy, J.D. Power
 thomas King, J.D. Power

Healthcare
 rick Johnson, J.D. Power
 Jeffrey loo, s&P capital iQ

Insurance
 Jeremy Bowler, J.D. Power

S&p CApItAl IQ pReSIdent IMoGen  
dIllon HAtCHeR, center, joins colleagues in 
dubai. in 2014, mcgraw hill financial opened  
new office space there.

J.d. poweR’S MIke BAttAGlIA speaks about 
the canadian automotive industry at J.d. power’s 
talkauto conference, cohosted by canadian  
black book, in toronto. 
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while expanding our offi  ces in certain 
areas we are streamlining our real estate 
portfolio in others. this has been an 
important component of our productivity 
initiative. later this year, we will complete 
a big step toward creating more oppor-
tunities for our employees in new York 
city to collaborate when we fi nish moving 
colleagues from rockefeller center, which 
has served as our global headquarters, 
to our longstanding offi  ces in lower 
Manhattan’s fi nancial district. we also 
sold a data center in east windsor, 
new Jersey, last year to leverage the scale 
and capability of world-class it partners.  

attracting and 
deVeloping talent

the Board of Directors and senior 
management team are committed to 
building Mcgraw Hill Financial into an 
organization with the very best people 
in their fi elds. in 2014, we elevated and 
brought in talented leaders throughout 
the company. we named imogen Dillon 
Hatcher as President of s&P capital 
iQ, recruited lucy Fato as our general 
counsel and appointed Martina cheung 

incoMe and tHe laBor Force

Income Inequality
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

Homeownership Trends
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings
 rocky clancy, J.D. Power
 Jeremy Bowler, J.D. Power

Immigration Policy 
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

Rise of the Global Middle Class
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

Wealth Distribution
 Paul sheard, s&P ratings
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

Education / Skills Gap / Labor Shortages
 Beth ann Bovino, s&P ratings

a commitment to good corporate citizenship

wHAt MAkeS A CoMpAny ReSponSIBle? at Mcgraw Hill Financial 
it is an ongoing commitment to fairness, integrity and transparency. 
these core values inform the decisions our employees make every day 
and also drive our new corporate responsibility strategy.

launched in 2014, this strategy is built on the twin pillars of Financial 
essentials and Community essentials. the goal is to create economic 
growth and thriving communities by maximizing our business competencies 
and contribution to global society.

Based on MHFi’s unique business capabilities, 
Financial essentials puts the company’s 
commitment into practice by providing fi nancial 
knowledge, tools and insights particularly related 
to the credit and capital needs of female entre-
preneurs globally. in Mexico, for example, with our 
support, the non-profi t women’s world Banking 
conducted in-depth research to provide answers 
to why microenterprise lending to low-income 
entrepreneurs has been slower to take off . the 
subsequent report and roundtable discussions 
are providing leaders in Mexico with the fi ndings 
and ideas for a path forward. 

Community essentials is designed to build thriving communities by 
strengthening organizations, societies and the natural environment. 
the approach rests on our employees and is refl ected in a variety of ways 
including a network of vibrant employee resource groups. in 2014, the 
company launched valor (veterans and allies leading for organizational 
results), which matches newly hired veterans to a veteran employee 
mentor and other professional development services. volunteering is 
a hallmark of MHFi’s new cr strategy and commitment to stronger 
communities. in May of last year, 4,500 employees around the globe 
participated in the company’s inaugural community impact Month, 
which featured 170 volunteer projects from Hyderabad to Mexico city.

For more information about MHFi’s corporate responsibility programs 
and policies, visit www.mhfi .com/corporate-responsibility.

in 2014 
4,500 
empLoyees 
VoLUnteered 
for 170 
proJects 
gLobaLLy.

eMployeeS volunteeRed In MexICo CIty 
by painting the outdoor facilities of aqui nadie 

se rinde, a nonprofi t organization that provides 
comprehensive care for children with cancer.
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as chief strategy officer. lucy steps into 
the role previously held by Ken vittor, who 
retired last year pursuant to the company’s 
longstanding retirement policies for  
senior executives. i want to thank Ken  
for his extraordinary contributions over 
many years. 

Sincere tHanKS

as previously announced, terry Mcgraw 
has decided not to stand for re-election 
as a Director at the next annual Meeting. 
speaking on behalf of the Board of 
Directors, our Presiding Director ed rust 
said on February 25, 2015, “terry has been 
a visionary and dedicated leader of this 
company since he became President and 
ceo in 1998 and he has earned the respect 
of the global business community for his 
many achievements. He has always been 
focused on serving customers and giving 
employees the best possible training and 
resources to provide superior service.” 

i know that i speak for all our employees 
and you, our shareholders, when i thank 
terry for his outstanding leadership and 
his consistent dedication to our values of 
fairness, integrity and transparency since 
he joined the company in 1980.  

i also want to welcome a new Director, 
rebecca Jacoby, chief information officer 
of cisco systems, inc., who joined the 
Board in october. rebecca is a global 
business leader whose expertise in cutting 
edge technologies and data practices is 
a great benefit to the company given the 
critically important role technology plays 
in the creation and effective distribution  
of our benchmarks and analyses.  

Many people are responsible for our  
accomplishments. i thank the 17,000 
analysts, data specialists, economists, 
editors, researchers, software engineers 
and all our people who create the essential 
intelligence that our customers value  
so much.  

as we go forward, the entire organization 
is aligned around the following key goals: 

  Providing superior customer service; 

  extending our global capabilities; 

  Delivering on our financial targets; 

  ensuring our resources are deployed 
wisely; and 

  operating with integrity, independence 
and a robust control and compliance 
environment.  

in closing, i thank our shareholders for the 
trust you place in Mcgraw Hill Financial as 
we maintain our focus on creating growth 
and driving performance by bringing 
transparency and independent insights  
to our customers and the global markets. 

sincerely,

douglas l. peterson
President and chief executive officer

pReSIdent And Ceo douG peteRSon  
joined leaders for the world economic forum  
in davos, switzerland in January 2014.  
he moderated a panel geared toward the  
financial services industry entitled “preparing  
for prosperous Longevity” and spoke about  
the imperative of financing the world’s 
infrastructure.

“i thank the 17,000 analysts, data specialists,  

economists, editors, researchers, software engineers  

and all our people who create the essential intelligence  

that our customers value so much.”
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reconciliation oF non-gaap Financial inForMation 
the following is provided to supplement certain non-gaaP financial measures discussed in the letter to shareholders and the  
financial highlights section of this report (inside front cover, pages 2-3) both as reported (on a gaaP basis) and as adjusted by 
excluding certain items (non-gaaP) as explained below. this information is provided in order to allow investors to make meaningful 
comparisons of the company’s operating performance between periods and to view the company’s business from the same  
perspective as company management. these non-gaaP measures may be different than similar measures used by other companies.

operating results by Segment – reported vs. performance
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(dollars in millions)

(unaudited) 2014 2013 % change 
     non-gaaP    non-gaaP 
    reported adjustments Performance reported adjustments Performance reported Performance

s&P ratings services $ (583 )  $ 1,657 a  $ 1,074   $ 882   $ 70 d  $ 952   n/M   13 % 
s&P capital iQ  228    9 b   237    189    12 d   201   21 %  18 % 
s&P Dow Jones indices  347    4 c   351    266    —    266   30 %  32 % 
commodities & commercial Markets  290    16 b   306    280    (2 ) d  278    3 %   10 % 

 segment operating profit  282    1,686    1,968    1,617    80    1,697    (83 ) %  16 % 
Unallocated expense  (169 )   16 b   (152 )   (259 )   117 e   (142 )   (35 ) %  7 % 

 operating profit  113    1,702    1,815    1,358    197    1,555    (92 ) %  17 % 
interest expense, net  59    —    59    59    —    59    (1 ) %  (1 )% 

 income before taxes on income  54    1,702    1,756    1,298    197    1,495    (96 ) %  17 % 
Provision for taxes on income  245    336    581    425    82    506    (42 ) %  15 % 

(loss) income from continuing operations  (191 )   1,366    1,175    874    115    989    n/M    19 % 
income from discontinued operations  178    (178 )   —    592    (592 )   —    (70 ) %  — % 

 net (loss) income  (13 )   1,188    1,175    1,466    (477 )   989    n/M    19 % 
less: nci net income - continuing  (102 )   —    (102 )   (91 )   4    (87 )   12 %   18 % 
less: nci net income - discontinued  —    —    —    1    (1 )   —    n/M    — % 

 net (loss) income - continuing  (293 )   1,366    1,073    783    119    902    n/M    19 % 
 net income - discontinued  178    (178 )   —    593    (593 )   —    (70 ) %  — % 

 net (loss) income attributable to MHFi $ (115 )  $ 1,188   $ 1,073   $ 1,376   $ (474 )  $ 902    n/M    19 % 

Diluted (loss) earnings per share - continuing $ (1.08 )  $ 4.96   $ 3.88 f  $ 2.80   $ 0.43   $ 3.22    n/M    20 % 
Diluted (loss) earnings per share - total $ (0.42 )  $ 4.30   $ 3.88 f  $ 4.91   $ (1.69 )  $ 3.22    n/M    20 %

n/M  – not meaningful

note – totals presented may not sum across due to rounding.

(a) includes restructuring charges and legal and regulatory settlements of $1.6 billion for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(b) includes restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(c) includes professional fees largely related to corporate development activities for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(d)  the year ended December 31, 2013 includes restructuring charges across all segments;  a gain on the sale of an equity investment held by crisil and legal settlements of approximately 
$77 million at s&P ratings services; a loss on the sale of Financial communications at s&P capital iQ; and a gain on the sale of aviation week at commodities & commercial Markets.

(e)  the year ended December 31, 2013 includes a $36 million non-cash impairment charge related to the sale of a data center and $13 million related to terminating various leases.  
the twelve months ended December 31, 2013 also includes costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure of $64 million.

(f)  Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding of 276.2 million were used to calculate adjusted diluted ePs for the year ended December 31, 2014. this amount includes securities  
that had an antidilutive effect to reported diluted ePs due to a loss from continuing operations. 

adjusted S&p dow Jones indices net operating profit
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(dollars in millions)

(unaudited)  2014  2013 % change 

adjusted s&P Dow Jones indices operating profit $ 351 $ 266 32 %
income attributable to noncontrolling interests  92  73 

 adjusted s&P Dow Jones indices net operating Profit $ 259 $ 193 35 %
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  c&c consists of business-to-business companies specializing 
in commercial and commodities markets that deliver their 
customers access to high-value information, data, analytic 
services and pricing and quality benchmarks. as of august 1, 
2013, we completed the sale of aviation week and the results 
have been included in c&c’s results through that date. 

on november 3, 2014, we completed the sale of Mcgraw Hill 
construction, which has historically been part of the c&c 
segment, to symphony technology group for $320 million in 
cash, completing the portfolio rationalization to create Mcgraw 
Hill Financial. we recorded an after-tax gain on the sale of $160 
million, which is included in income from discontinued operations, 
net of tax in the consolidated statement of income for the year 
ended December 31, 2014. we intend to use a portion of the 
after-tax proceeds to make selective acquisitions, investments, 
share repurchases and for general corporate purposes.

on March 22, 2013, we completed the sale of Mcgraw-Hill 
education (“MHe”) to investment funds affiliated with apollo 
global Management, llc for a purchase price of $2.4 billion in 
cash. we recorded an after-tax gain on the sale of $589 million, 
which is included in income from discontinued operations, net of 
tax in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended 
December 31, 2013. we have used a portion of the after-tax 
proceeds from the sale to pay down short-term debt, for the 
special dividend paid in 2012, and to continue share repurchases. 
we intend to continue to use a portion of the after-tax proceeds 
to make selective acquisitions, investments, share repurchases 
and for general corporate purposes.

in 2014, we continued to focus on investments in targeted  
financial assets, divested selected non-core assets and reductions  
in our real estate portfolio and increased shareholder return.

investments in targeted Financial assets /  
divested Selected non-core assets
During 2014, we continued to execute our strategy of exiting 
non-core assets while investing for growth in markets that have 
size and scale.

  c&c — we acquired eclipse energy group as, which complements  
our north american natural gas capabilities, which we obtained 
from our Bentek energy llc acquisition in 2011;

  s&P ratings — we acquired Brc investor services s.a., a 
colombia-based ratings firm providing risk classifications 
of banks, financial services providers, insurance companies, 
corporate bonds and structured issues that will expand our 
presence in the latin american credit markets.

in 2014, in addition to the divestiture of Mcgraw Hill construction 
discussed above, we streamlined our infrastructure by reducing 
our real estate footprint by selling our data facility, initiating the 
consolidation of our corporate headquarters with our operations 
in new York city, as well as disposing of our corporate aircraft.

During 2013, we acquired approximately 11 million equity shares 
representing 15.07% of crisil’s total outstanding equity shares 
for $214 million, increasing our ownership percentage in crisil 
to 67.84% from 52.77%.

ManageMent’S diScuSSion and 
analySiS oF Financial condition 
and reSultS oF operationS
the following Management Discussion and analysis (“MD&a”) 
provides a narrative of the results of operations and financial 
condition of Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. (together with its  
consolidated subsidiaries, the “company,” “we,” “us” or “our”)  
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
the MD&a should be read in conjunction with the consolidated 
financial statements and accompanying notes included in our 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, which have 
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United states of america (“U.s. gaaP”). 

the MD&a includes the following sections:

 overview
 results of operations
 liquidity and capital resources
 reconciliation of non-gaaP Financial information
 critical accounting estimates
 recently issued or adopted accounting standards

certain of the statements below are forward-looking statements 
within the meaning of the Private securities litigation reform  
act of 1995. in addition, any projections of future results of  
operations and cash flows are subject to substantial uncertainty. 
see Forward-looking statements on page 35 of this report.

oVerView
we are a leading benchmarks & ratings, analytics, data and 
research provider serving the global capital, commodities and 
commercial markets. the capital markets include asset managers, 
investment banks, commercial banks, exchanges, and issuers; the 
commodities markets include producers, traders and intermediaries  
within energy, metals, and agriculture; and the commercial 
markets include professionals and corporate executives within 
automotive and marketing / research information services.

our operations consist of four reportable segments: standard 
& Poor’s ratings services (“s&P ratings”), s&P capital iQ, s&P 
Dow Jones indices (“s&P DJ indices”) and commodities  
& commercial (“c&c”).

  s&P ratings is an independent provider of credit ratings, 
research and analytics, offering investors and market  
participants information, ratings and benchmarks.

  s&P capital iQ is a global provider of multi-asset-class  
data, research and analytical capabilities, which integrate 
cross-asset analytics and desktop services.

  s&P DJ indices is a global index provider that maintains a 
wide variety of valuation and index benchmarks for investment 
advisors, wealth managers and institutional investors.



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 13 12 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

  s&P ratings — coalition Development ltd., a privately-held 
U.K. analytics company.

refer to note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures to our consolidated 
financial statements for further discussion.

increased Shareholder return
During the three years ended December 31, 2014, we have 
returned $3.3 billion to our shareholders through a combination of 
share repurchases, our quarterly dividend and a special dividend.

we completed share repurchases of $1.6 billion and distributed 
regular quarterly dividends totaling approximately $920 million 
during the three years ended December 31, 2014. on December 
6, 2012, our Board of Directors approved a special dividend in 
the amount of $2.50 per share on our common stock, payable 
on December 27, 2012 to shareholders of record on December 
18, 2012. this returned an additional approximately $700 million 
to our shareholders. also, on February 12, 2015, the Board of 
Directors approved an increase in the quarterly common stock 
dividend from $0.30 per share to $0.33 per share.

impact of higher restructuring charges recorded in 2014, increased 
compensation costs, and higher technology costs. operating profit 
was also favorably impacted by lower expenses resulting from the 
closure of several non-core businesses.

S&p dJ indiceS — revenue and operating profit increased 12% 
and 30%, respectively. revenue increased due to higher average 
levels of assets under management for etFs and mutual funds. 
additionally, higher volumes for exchange-traded derivatives 
also contributed to revenue growth. operating profit increased 
compared to 2013 primarily due to the increases in revenue, the 
favorable impact of a $26 million non-cash impairment charge 
recorded in 2013 associated with an intangible asset acquired 
with the formation of the s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint 
venture, and a reduction of royalty expenses. these increases 
were partially offset by an increase in compensation costs.

c&c — revenue and operating profit increased 6% and 3%, 
respectively. the revenue increase was primarily driven by 
continued demand for Platts’ proprietary content as annualized 
contract values increased and increases at J.D. Power driven 
by strong demand for auto consulting engagements in the U.s. 
and singapore. operating profit increased primarily due to the 
increases in revenue, partially offset by the unfavorable impact 

in 2013, we also completed certain dispositions of our non-core 
assets that allow us to apply greater focus on our high-growth, 
high-margin benchmark businesses.

  c&c — we completed the sale of aviation week to Penton, a 
privately held business information company;

  s&P capital iQ — we completed the sale of Financial communi-
cations as well as the closure of several non-core businesses.

During 2012, we completed several acquisitions and formed a 
joint venture that we believe position us for long-term growth 
across all our segments.

  s&P DJ indices — our transaction with cMe group, inc. and 
cMe group index services llc to form a new company, s&P 
Dow Jones indices llc;

  s&P capital iQ — credit Market analysis limited, a provider of 
independent data concerning the over-the-counter markets; 
QuantHouse, an independent global provider of end-to-end 
systematic low-latency market data solutions; and r² technolo-
gies, a provider of advanced risk and scenario-based analytics;

  c&c — Kingsman sa, a privately-held, switzerland-based 
provider of price information and analytics for the global sugar 
and biofuels markets;

2014
S&p ratingS — revenue increased 8% primarily driven by growth 
in both corporate and financial services bond ratings revenue, 
increases in bank loan ratings, higher annual fees, an increase in 
ratings evaluation services activity (“res”), and increases at crisil 
primarily related to growth in their global research & analytics busi-
ness. the revenue increase was partially offset by declines in struc-
tured finance revenues. operating (loss) profit decreased compared 
to 2013 due to the impact of $1.6 billion of legal and regulatory 
settlements in 2014 compared to legal settlements of $77 million 
in 2013 (see note 12 — Commitments and Contingencies to the 
consolidated financial statements of our Form 10-K), the unfavor-
able impact of higher restructuring charges recorded in 2014, the 
gain on the sale of an equity investment held by crisil in the third 
quarter of 2013 and increased legal costs. these decreases were 
partially offset by the increases in revenues discussed above.

S&p capital iQ — revenue and operating profit increased 6% and 
21%, respectively. the revenue increase was primarily attributable  
to growth at the s&P capital iQ Desktop, ratingsXpress® and 
ratingsDirect® due to an increase in average contract values 
driven by new customer relationships and increases in existing 
accounts. operating profit increased compared to 2013 primarily 
due to the increases in revenue, partially offset by the unfavorable 

key ReSultS
 Years ended December 31,  % change 1

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

revenue  $ 5,051 $ 4,702 $ 4,270 7 % 10 %
operating profit $ 113 $ 1,358 $ 1,170 (92 )%  16 %
% operating margin  2 %  29 %  27 %    
Diluted (loss) earnings per share from continuing operations $ (1.08)  $ 2.80  $ 2.29  n/M  22 %

n/M - not meaningful

 1 % changes in the tables throughout the MD&a are calculated off of the actual number, not the rounded number presented.
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outlook
we strive to be the leading provider of transparent and indepen-
dent benchmarks & ratings, analytics, data and research in the 
global capital, commodities and commercial markets. we seek  
to promote sustainable growth in the global capital, commodities 
and commercial markets by providing customers with essential 
intelligence and superior service. we intend to provide essential 
intelligence through benchmarks and ratings, analytics, data, 
and research that enables mission-critical decisions in investment 
management, investment banking, cBis (commercial banking, 
insurance and specialty), and corporates.

we are aligning our efforts against two key strategic priorities, 
creating growth and driving performance.

creating growth
  we will strive to drive global growth by focusing on customers 

and innovation.

driving performance
  we will strive to boost operational excellence, productivity, risk 

management, and compliance; and to attract and develop the 
finest talent.

there can be no assurance that we will achieve success in 
implementing any one or more of these strategies as a variety 
of factors could unfavorably impact operating results, including 
prolonged difficulties in the global credit markets and a change 
in the regulatory environment affecting our businesses. see item 
1a, Risk Factors, in our annual report on Form 10-K.

Further projections and discussion on our 2015 outlook for our 
segments can be found within “ – results of operations”.

of higher restructuring charges recorded in 2014 and the gain on 
the sale of aviation week in the third quarter of 2013. additionally,  
increased costs at J.D. Power and Platts related to additional 
headcount, merit increases, and other operating costs to support 
business growth unfavorably impacted operating profit.

2013
S&p ratingS — revenue and operating profit increased 12% and 
9%, respectively. revenue growth was driven by strong high-yield 
and investment grade corporate bond issuance in the U.s. in the 
first half of 2013 and in europe for the full year driven by refinancing 
activity and increases in bank loan ratings and structured finance. 
revenue growth in the first half of 2013 was partially offset by a 
decrease in U.s. corporate bond issuance in the second half of the 
year. operating profit increased compared to 2012 primarily due to 
the increases in revenue, the gain on sale of an equity investment  
held by crisil and favorable foreign exchange rates. these 
increases were partially offset by legal settlements of $77 million, 
increased compliance and regulatory costs, higher incentive costs 
due to improved performance, higher advertising expenses and 
the impact of crisil’s acquisition of coalition Development ltd.  
in July of 2012. 

S&p capital iQ — revenue and operating profit increased 4% and  
3%, respectively. the revenue increase was primarily attributable  
to growth at the s&P capital iQ Desktop driven by market share  
gains and increased average contract values for existing accounts 
and increases in our subscription base for ratingsXpress®. 
operating profit benefited from revenue increases and lower 
expenses resulting from the closure of several non-core businesses,  
reduced outside consulting fees, lower restructuring costs and a 
favorable impact from foreign exchange rates. these increases 
to operating profit were partially offset by higher incentive costs 
due to increased performance, increased cost of sales for 
exchange fees incurred by QuantHouse and costs related to 
additional headcount in developing regions.

S&p dJ indiceS — revenue and operating profit increased 27% 
and 32%, respectively. the revenue increases were primarily due 
to revenue from our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture. 
excluding revenue from the joint venture, revenue increased due 
to higher average levels of assets under management for etF 
products. operating profit increased primarily due to the increases 
in revenue, partially offset by the impact of higher data fees, 
increased incentive costs due to improved financial performance 
and higher marketing costs due to increased advertising levels 
as building the s&P DJ indices brand was a focus in 2013. the 
increase in 2013 was also partially offset by the impact of a full 
year of expenses for our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.  
additionally, we incurred a $26 million non-cash impairment 
charge associated with an intangible asset acquired through the 
formation of our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture. 

c&c — revenue and operating profit increased 6% and 28%, 
respectively. the revenue increase was primarily driven by continued 
demand for Platts’ proprietary content as annualized contract 
values increased and by increases at J.D. Power. operating profit 
increased due to the increases in revenue, the gain on the sale of 
aviation week and lower expenses at J.D. Power. operating profit 
was partially offset by additional headcount and other operating 
costs to support business growth at Platts.
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2013
revenue increased $432 million or 10% as compared to 2012. 
subscription / non-transaction revenue increased primarily due to 
increases in non-issuance related revenue for corporate ratings, 
primarily for entity credit ratings and increased res activity, 
continued demand for Platts’ proprietary content, growth at 
capital iQ driven by market share gains and increased contract 
values for existing accounts and an increase in our subscription 
base at ratingsXpress®. non-subscription / transaction revenue 
also increased due to strong high-yield corporate bond issuance in 
the U.s. during the first half of 2013 and in europe for the full year 
resulting from refinancing activity, increases in bank loan ratings, 
growth in structured finance and higher assets under management 
for etF products at s&P DJ indices. see “ – segment review” 
below for further information.

Foreign exchange rates had an unfavorable impact of $10 million 
on revenue. 

2014
revenue increased $349 million or 7% as compared to 2013. 
subscription / non-transaction revenue increased primarily due 
to growth at s&P capital iQ due to an increase in the average 
contract values driven by new customer relationships and 
increases in existing accounts, growth in non-issuance related 
revenue for corporate ratings primarily related to higher annual 
fees, and continued demand for Platts’ proprietary content. 
non-subscription / transaction revenue increased primarily due 
to strong growth in corporate bond ratings revenue, an increase 
in bank loan ratings and higher assets under management for 
etFs and mutual funds at s&P DJ indices, partially offset by 
lower structured finance revenues. see “ – segment review” 
below for further information.

Foreign exchange rates had an unfavorable impact of $4 million 
on revenue. this impact refers to constant currency comparisons 
estimated by re-calculating current year results of foreign  
operations using the average exchange rate from the prior year.

Revenue
 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

subscription / non-transaction revenue $ 3,045   $ 2,849   $ 2,640   7%   8 %
non-subscription / transaction revenue $ 2,006   $ 1,853   $ 1,630   8%   14 %
            
Domestic revenue $ 2,911   $ 2,723   $ 2,508   7%   9 %
international revenue $ 2,140   $ 1,979   $ 1,762   8%   12 %

reSultS oF operationS
ConSolIdAted RevIew
 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

Revenue $ 5,051   $ 4,702   $ 4,270   7 %  10 %
expenses:            
     operating-related expenses  1,627    1,564    1,433   4 %  9 %
     selling and general expenses  3,168    1,631    1,578   94 %  3 %
     Depreciation and amortization  134    137    141   (2 ) % (2 ) %

          total expenses  4,929    3,332    3,152   48 %  6 %

     other loss (income)  9    12    (52 )  (25 ) % n/M

operating profit  113    1,358    1,170   (92 ) % 16 %
     interest expense, net  59    59    81   (1 ) % (26 ) %
     Provision for taxes on income  245    425    388   (42 ) % 9 %

(loss) income from continuing operations  (191 )   874    701   n/M   25 %

discontinued operations, net  178    592    (209 )  (70 ) % n/M
 less: net income from continuing operations attributable  (102 )   (91 )   (50 )  12 %  81 % 
  to noncontrolling interests
 less: net loss (income) from discontinuing operations attributable to   —    1    (5 )  n/M   n/M 
  noncontrolling interests 

net (loss) income attributable to McGraw Hill Financial, Inc. $ (115 )  $ 1,376   $ 437   n/M   n/M

n/M – not meaningful
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excluding these amounts, selling and general expenses increased 
as compared to 2013, primarily driven by increased legal costs 
at s&P ratings, increased commissions and incentives at s&P 
capital iQ, partially offset by decreases at s&P DJ indices primarily 
related to a $26 million non-cash impairment charge recorded  
in 2013 associated with an intangible asset acquired with the  
formation of the s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.

depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased $3 million or 2% 
as compared to 2013, primarily due an intangible asset that 
became fully amortized in 2013.

operating-related expenses
operating-related expenses increased $63 million or 4% as 
compared to 2013, primarily driven by increased costs at s&P 
ratings,  c&c and s&P capital iQ. these increases were primarily 
attributable to an increase in compensation costs and higher 
technology costs.

intersegment eliminations relates to a royalty charged to s&P 
capital iQ for the rights to use and distribute content and data 
developed by s&P ratings.

Selling and general expenses
selling and general expenses in 2014 were impacted by $1.6 
billion of  legal and regulatory settlements, $86 million of 
restructuring charges and $4 million of professional fees related 
to corporate development activities. in 2013, selling and general 
expenses were impacted by $64 million in costs necessary to 
enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure and 
$77 million for legal settlements. additionally, 2013 was also 
impacted by $28 million of restructuring charges, primarily related 
to severance associated with streamlining our management 
structure and our decision to exit non-strategic businesses; and 
$13 million related to terminating various leases as we reduce our 
real estate portfolio.

totAl expenSeS
the following tables provide an analysis by segment of our operating-related expenses and selling and general expenses for the  
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

    2014 2013 % change

    operating-  Selling and  operating-  selling and  operating-  selling and 
    related  general  related  general  related  general 
(in millions) expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses

s&P ratings 1 $ 777  $ 2,219  $ 741  $ 624   5 % n/M
s&P capital iQ  553   407   538   390   3 % 4 %
s&P DJ indices  95   102   92   126   3 % (18 ) %
c&c    288   291   271   278   6 % 4 %
intersegment eliminations  (86 )  —   (76 )  —   (13 ) % — %

 total segments  1,627   3,019   1,566   1,418   4 % n/M

corporate 2  —   149   (2 )  213   n/M  (30 ) %

    $ 1,627  $ 3,168  $ 1,564  $ 1,631   4 % 94 %

n/M - not meaningful

1 in 2014, selling and general expenses includes $1.6 billion for legal and regulatory settlements. in 2013, selling and general expenses includes $77 million for legal settlements.

2  in 2014, selling and general expenses includes restructuring charges of $16 million. in 2013, selling and general expenses primarily include $64 million necessary to enable the  
separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure, restructuring charges and charges related to our reduction in our real estate portfolio.
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excluding these costs, selling and general expenses increased 
compared to 2012, primarily due to higher costs associated with 
increased sales and additional incentive compensation driven  
by improved performance at s&P ratings and s&P DJ indices. 
the increase in 2013 at s&P DJ indices was also impacted by 
a $26 million non-cash impairment charge associated with an 
intangible asset acquired through the formation of our s&P  
Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.

depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased $4 million or 2% as 
compared to 2012, primarily due to asset write offs in 2013 as 
we consolidated office locations, partially offset by additional 
intangible asset amortization related to our acquisitions in 2012.

operating-related expenses
operating-related expenses increased $131 million or 9% as 
compared to 2012, primarily driven by increased costs at s&P 
capital iQ and s&P ratings. at s&P capital iQ, the increases were 
primarily a result of additional headcount in developing regions 
and costs to further develop our content and purchase new data 
sets. this was partially offset by lower compensation expense at 
c&c due to a reduction in headcount from restructuring actions. 
at s&P ratings, the increases were primarily a result of higher 
personnel costs, including incentive compensation. 

intersegment eliminations relates to a royalty charged to s&P 
capital iQ for the rights to use and distribute content and data 
developed by s&P ratings.

Selling and general expenses
selling and general expenses were impacted by costs necessary 
to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure 
of $64 million and $226 million for 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
2013 costs were primarily driven by additional professional 
fees and costs related to our separation from MHe. 2012 costs 
primarily include professional fees, charges associated with our 
outsourcing initiatives, severance charges, a charge related to  
a reduction in our lease commitments and transaction costs  
for our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture. additionally, 
2013 was also impacted by legal settlements of approximately 
$77 million and charges we recorded in the fourth quarter of 
2013 as we continued to evaluate our remaining cost structure, 
particularly in light of recent divestitures. this resulted in $28 
million of restructuring charges, primarily related to severance, 
associated with streamlining our management structure and 
our decision to exit non-strategic businesses; and $13 million 
related to terminating various leases as we reduce our real 
estate portfolio.

the following tables provide an analysis by segment of our operating-related expenses and selling and general expenses for the  years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

    2013 2012 % change

    operating-  selling and  operating-  selling and  operating-  selling and 
    related  general  related  general  related  general 
(in millions) expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses  expenses

s&P ratings $ 741  $ 624  $ 692  $ 491   7 % 27 %
s&P capital iQ  538   390   455   435   18 % (10 ) %
s&P DJ indices  92   126   72   105   27 % 19 %
c&c    271   278   284   268   (5 ) % 4 %
intersegment eliminations  (76 )  —   (69 )   —   (11 ) % — %

 total segments  1,566   1,418   1,434   1,299   9 % 9 %

corporate 1  (2 )  213   (1 )   279   n/M  (24 ) %

    $ 1,564  $ 1,631  $ 1,433  $ 1,578   9 % 3 %

n/M - not meaningful

 1  in 2013, selling and general expenses primarily include $64 million necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure, restructuring charges and charges related to 
our reduction in our real estate portfolio. in 2012, selling and general expenses includes expenses of $156 million necessary to enable the separation of  MHe and reduce our cost structure 
partially offset by a vacation accrual reversal of $52 million. these costs were necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure and primarily include professional fees 
and charges associated with our outsourcing initiatives and 2012 also includes severance charges, a charge related to a reduction in our lease commitments and transaction costs for our 
s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.
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During 2013, we recorded a net pre-tax loss of $12 million within 
other loss (income) in the consolidated statement of income:

  During the fourth quarter of 2013, we recognized a non-cash 
impairment charge of $36 million related to the pending sale 
of our data center.

  on september 30, 2013, we completed the sale of Financial  
communications, which was part of our s&P capital iQ segment.

  on august 27, 2013, crisil sold its 49% equity interest in india 
index services & Products ltd. this investment was held within 
our s&P ratings segment.

  on august 1, 2013, we completed the sale of aviation week 
within our c&c segment to Penton, a privately held business 
information company.  

in the fourth quarter of 2012, we recorded a pre-tax gain of  
$52 million within other loss (income) in the consolidated  
statement of income related to a change in our vacation policy. 
the change in our vacation policy modified the number of days 
that employees are entitled to for unused vacation time upon 
termination of employment as they will only be paid for vacation 
days equivalent to what they have earned in the current year.

otHeR loSS (InCoMe)
During 2014, we completed the following transactions that 
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $9 million within other loss (income) 
in the consolidated statement of income:

  on July 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the company’s 
aircraft to Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s  
Board of Directors and former President and ceo of the 
company (“Mr. Mcgraw”) for a purchase price of $20 million, 
which is modestly higher than the independent appraisal 
obtained. During the second quarter of 2014, we recorded a 
non-cash impairment charge of  $6 million within other loss 
(income) in our consolidated statement of income as a result  
of the pending sale. see note 13 – Related Party Transactions  
to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

  on June 30, 2014, we completed the sale of our data center to 
Quality technology services, llc (“Qts”) which owns, operates, and 
manages data centers. net proceeds from the sale of $58 million 
were received in July of 2014. the sale includes all of the facilities 
and equipment on the south campus of our east windsor, new 
Jersey location, inclusive of the rights and obligations associated 
with an adjoining solar power field. the sale resulted in an expense 
of $3 million recorded within other loss (income) in our consoli-
dated statement of income, which is in addition to the non-cash 
impairment charge we recorded in the fourth quarter of 2013.

opeRAtInG pRoFIt
we consider operating profit to be an important measure for evaluating our operating performance and we evaluate operating profit 
for each of the reportable business segments in which we operate.

we internally manage our operations by reference to “segment operating profit” with economic resources allocated primarily based 
on segment operating profit. segment operating profit is defined as operating profit before unallocated expense. segment operating 
profit is one of the key metrics we use to evaluate operating performance. segment operating profit is not, however, a measure of 
financial performance under U.s. gaaP, and may not be defined and calculated by other companies in the same manner.

as part of our transformation to Mcgraw Hill Financial, a comprehensive review of our accounting and reporting practices and policies 
was undertaken. as a result, beginning on January 1, 2014, to the extent they can be attributed to continuing operations, all shared 
operating services have been allocated to the segments utilizing a methodology that more closely aligns with each segment’s usage 
of these services. the costs that remain in unallocated expense primarily relate to corporate center functions and shared operating 
costs allocable to discontinued operations reclassified during the current year. the updated methodology is reflected in the segment 
results for the year ended December 31, 2014, and accordingly, the segment results for the prior year comparative periods have been 
reclassified to conform with the new presentation. 

the table below reconciles segment operating profit to total operating profit:

 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

s&P ratings 1 $ (583 )  $ 882   $ 809   n/M   9 %
s&P capital iQ  228    189    183   21 %  3 %
s&P DJ indices  347    266    202   30 %  32 %
c&c    290    280    219   3 %  28 %

 total segment operating profit  282    1,617    1,413   (83 ) % 14 %

Unallocated expense 2  (169 )   (259 )   (243 )  (35 ) % 6 % 

 total operating profit $ 113   $ 1,358   $ 1,170   (92 ) % 16 %

n/M - not meaningful

1  2014 includes $1.6 billion of legal and regulatory settlements and 2013 includes $77 million of legal settlements.

2  2014 includes restructuring charges. 2013 and 2012 include depreciation expense and costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure, including 
restructuring costs and other related non-recurring costs. 2013 also includes a non-cash impairment charge related to the pending sale of our data center and charges related to a 
reduction in our real estate portfolio. 2012 includes a benefit related to a vacation accrual reversal.
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are in the process of selling and $13 million related to terminating 
various leases as we reduce our real estate portfolio. in 2012, 
unallocated expense was partially offset by a vacation accrual 
reversal of $52 million. excluding these items, unallocated 
expense increased slightly compared to 2012, primarily due to 
increased unoccupied office space.

Foreign exchange rates had a favorable impact of $20 million on 
operating profit for 2013. 

InteReSt expenSe, net
net interest expense for 2014 remained relatively flat as compared 
to 2013, decreasing 1%. net interest expense for 2013 decreased 
26% as compared to 2012, primarily driven by the maturity of our 
$400 million, 5.375% senior notes on november 15, 2012.

pRovISIon FoR InCoMe tAxeS
our effective tax rate from continuing operations was 453.7%, 
32.7% and 35.6% for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. the 
increase in the 2014 effective tax rate from the prior year period 
was primarily due to the expected tax treatment of charges for 
legal settlements. the decrease in the 2013 effective tax rate 
from the prior year period was primarily due to the full year effect 
of the partnership structure of the s&P Dow Jones indices llc 
joint venture, an increase in income in lower tax rate jurisdictions 
and tax planning.

including discontinued operations, the effective tax rate was 
103.5%, 33.1% and 45.8% for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
the increase in the 2014 effective tax rate from the prior year 
period was primarily due to the expected tax treatment of charges 
for legal settlements. the decrease in the 2013 effective tax rate 
including discontinued operations was primarily due to the good-
will impairment recorded at MHe in 2012. additionally, the 2013 
effective tax rate including discontinued operations was favorably 
impacted by the items listed above for continuing operations.

dISContInued opeRAtIonS, net
2014
income from discontinued operations was $178 million in 2014 
and $592 million in 2013, primarily as a result of after-tax gains of 
$160 million and $589 million recorded on the sale of Mcgraw Hill 
construction in 2014 and the sale of MHe in 2013, respectively.

2013
income from discontinued operations was $592 million in 2013 
as compared to a loss from discontinued operations of $209 
million in 2012, primarily as a result of an after-tax gain of $589 
million recorded on the sale of MHe in 2013.

2014
SegMent operating proFit — Decreased $1.3 billion, or 83% 
as compared to 2013. segment operating profit margins were 
unfavorably impacted by $1.6  billion of legal and regulatory 
settlements in 2014 compared to legal settlements of $77 
million in 2013, and higher restructuring charges recorded in 
2014. as a result, segment operating margins decreased to  
6% in 2014 compared to 34% in 2013. the reduction in operating  
margin was partially offset by strong revenue growth at s&P 
ratings, s&P capital iQ, s&P DJ indices and c&c.  see “ – 
segment review” below for further information.   

unallocated expenSe — Decreased by $90 million or 35% as 
compared to 2013. Unallocated expense includes restructuring 
charges of $16 million in 2014 and 2013 includes $64 million in 
costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our 
cost structure. Unallocated expense in 2013 was also impacted 
by a $36 million non-cash impairment charge related to the  
sale of our data center and $13 million related to terminating 
various leases as we reduce our real estate portfolio. excluding 
these items, unallocated expense increased by $11 million  
or 7% compared to 2013, primarily due to the impact of a  
$9 million pre-tax loss as discussed previously and an increase 
in unoccupied office space. see “ – other loss (income)” above 
for further discussion.

Foreign exchange rates had a favorable impact of $21 million on 
operating profit as compared to 2013, with a $15 million posi-
tive impact on current year operating profit. this was a result of 
foreign exchange gains and constant currency having a favorable 
impact on operating profit of $3 million and $12 million in 2014, 
respectively, compared to foreign exchange losses of $6 million in 
2013. this impact refers to constant currency comparisons and 
the remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities. constant 
currency impacts are estimated by recalculating current year 
results of foreign operations using the average exchange rate 
from the prior year. remeasurement impacts are based on the 
variance between current-year and prior-year foreign exchange 
rate fluctuations on monetary assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in currencies other than the individual business’ functional 
currency.  the favorable impact on 2014 was driven by the devalu-
ation of the argentinian peso as well as early strength of  
the British pound.

2013
SegMent operating proFit — increased $204 million, or 14% 
as compared to 2012. segment operating income margins 
were 34% and 33% for 2013 and 2012, respectively. substantial 
revenue growth at corporate ratings and s&P DJ indices, and 
strong demand for Platts’ proprietary content were the primary 
drivers of the increase. see “ – segment review” below for 
further information.   

unallocated expenSe — increased by $16 million or 6% as 
compared to 2012. Unallocated expense was impacted by costs 
necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our 
cost structure of $64 million in 2013 and $156 million in 2012. 
Unallocated expense in 2013 was also impacted by a $36 million 
non-cash impairment charge related to the facilities and  
associated infrastructure of one of our data centers that we  
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SegMent reView
StAndARd & pooR’S RAtInGS SeRvICeS
credit ratings are one of several tools that investors can use when making decisions about purchasing bonds and other fixed 
income investments. they are opinions about credit risk and our ratings express our opinion about the ability and willingness of 
an issuer, such as a corporation or state or city government, to meet its financial obligations in full and on time. our credit ratings 
can also relate to the credit quality of an individual debt issue, such as a corporate or municipal bond, and the relative likelihood 
that the issuer may default.

s&P ratings differentiates its revenue between transaction and non-transaction. transaction revenue primarily includes fees 
associated with:

  ratings related to new issuance of corporate and government debt instruments, and structured finance debt instruments;
  bank loan ratings; and
  corporate credit estimates, which are intended, based on an abbreviated analysis, to provide an indication of our opinion 

regarding creditworthiness of a company which does not currently have an s&P ratings credit rating.

non-transaction revenue primarily includes fees for surveillance of a credit rating, annual fees for customer relationship-based 
pricing programs and fees for entity credit ratings.

 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

revenue:               
 transaction $ 1,129   $ 1,035   $ 903   9 %  15 %
 non-transaction  1,326    1,239    1,131   7 %  10 %

total revenue $ 2,455   $ 2,274   $ 2,034   8 %  12 %

% of total revenue:               
 transaction  46 %   46 %   44 %      
 non-transaction  54 %   54 %   56 %      
               
Domestic revenue $ 1,305   $ 1,214   $ 1,102   8 %  10 %
international revenue $ 1,150   $ 1,060   $ 932   8 %  14 %
               
operating (loss) profit 1 $ (583 )  $ 882   $ 809   n/M   9 %
% operating margin  (24 ) %  39 %   40 %

n/M - not meaningful

1  2014 includes $1.6 billion of legal and regulatory settlements and restructuring charges of approximately $45 million. 2013 includes $77 million of legal settlements, restructuring 
charges of approximately $10 million, and a $16 million gain on the sale of an equity investment held by crisil.

revenue
2014
Both transaction and non-transaction revenue grew compared 
to 2013, with transaction revenue growing at a slightly higher 
rate. additionally, both domestic and international revenue grew 
compared to 2013. Domestic revenue was mostly driven by bond 
ratings revenue. international growth was primarily driven by annual 
fees and bank loan ratings in europe and bond ratings in asia.

transaction revenue increased in 2014 primarily driven by growth 
in both corporate and financial services bond ratings revenue 
with strong growth in all regions. corporates transaction revenue 
also benefitted from bank loan rating revenue growth in the 
U.s. and europe. growth was driven by Mergers & acquisitions 
(“M&a”), as well as the continued low interest rate environment. 
these increases were partially offset by declines in structured 
finance, primarily due to a decreased number of U.s. collateral 
loan obligations (“clo’s”) rated during 2014, and a lower volume 
of rated conduit transactions during the year.

non-transaction revenue increased primarily due to growth in  
annual fees. annual fees include surveillance fees and other customer  
relationship-based fees. also contributing to the growth in non- 
transaction revenue were increases at crisil, primarily related to 
growth in their global research & analytics business as sales to 
new clients increased and the scope of work expanded with existing 
clients. additionally, non-transaction revenue was favorably impacted 
by increased res activity with growth driven by M&a and new rating 
engagements. non-transaction revenue includes an intersegment 
royalty charged to s&P capital iQ for the rights to use and distribute 
content and data developed by s&P ratings. royalty revenue for  
2014 and 2013 was $77 million and $72 million, respectively.

2013
Both transaction revenue and non-transaction revenue grew 
compared to 2012, with transaction revenue growing at a higher rate. 
additionally, both domestic and international revenue grew compared 
to 2012, with international growing at a faster pace, reflecting strong 
growth in europe as the economic outlook has improved.
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“domicile”, which is based on where an issuer is located or where 
the assets associated with an issue are located, or based on 
“marketplace”, which is where the bonds are sold. the following 
tables depict changes in issuance levels as compared to the prior 
year, based on thomson Financial, Harrison scott Publications, 
Dealogic and s&P rating’s internal estimates.

    2014 compared to 2013

corporate Bond issuance U.s. europe

High-Yield issuance (12 ) % 11 %
investment grade 13 %  10 %
total new issue Dollars—corporate issuance 6 %  10 %

  corporate issuance in the U.s. was up as increased investment- 
grade debt issuance was partially offset by weakness in high-yield 
debt issuance. investment-grade bond issuance growth was 
driven by M&a activity, financial institutions taking advantage 
of the low interest rate environment to rebuild their capital 
structures, as well as opportunistic financing. High-yield debt 
issuance reflects lower refinancing activity in 2014; debt 
maturities have already been extended and credit terms have 
been favorably restructured for many issuers. issuance was  
also negatively impacted by geopolitical concerns. 

  corporate issuance in europe increased for 2014 with issuers 
being attracted to the market in the first half of the year looking 
to take advantage of improving economic conditions. However, 
high-yield debt issuance and investment grade issuance were 
both down in the second half of the year as a result of economic 
and social uncertainty in the european markets. 

    2014 compared to 2013

structured Finance U.s. europe

asset-Backed securities (“aBs”) 20 %  59 %
collateralized Debt obligations (“cDo”) 49 %  107 %
commercial Mortgage-Backed securities (“cMBs”) 7 %  (58 ) %
residential Mortgage-Backed securities (“rMBs”) 2 %  122 %
covered Bonds  *  (10 ) %
total new issue Dollars—structured Finance 23 %  19 %

* represents no activity in 2014 and 2013. 

  aBs issuance in the U.s. was up, driven by continued strength 
in autos and credit cards. increased auto activity included a 
mix of prime and subprime loan lending driven by non-banking 
entities. credit card activity was up as consumer borrowing 
continued to expand and favorable spreads encouraged 
banks to tap into securitization for alternate funding. these 
increases were partially offset by a decline in student loan 
activity driven by lower Federal Family education loan 
Program (“FFelP”) refinancing with minimal private market 
deals. aBs issuance in europe was also up, driven by favorable 
spreads and investors looking for diversification.

  issuance was up in the U.s. cDo market due to an increase in 
clo issuance as favorable interest rates continued to drive 
solid corporate loan activity and also provided incentives to 
refinance legacy transactions. european cDo issuance was 
also up, driven in large part by U.K. placements and strong 
leveraged loan clo volume.

  cMBs issuance was up in the U.s. and reached the highest full year 
volume since 2007. Favorable fundamentals in the sector and 
tighter spreads drove the increase in volume in 2014. european 
cMBs issuance was down with very low activity in 2014 and 2013.

transaction revenue grew in 2013 due to strong high-yield 
corporate bond issuance in the U.s. during the first half of 2013 
and in europe for the full year, driven by refinancing activity and 
borrowers taking advantage of lower rates. increases in U.s. and 
europe bank loan ratings resulting from refinancing activity also 
contributed to the full year increase. these increases were partially 
offset by a decline in U.s. corporate bond issuance in the second 
half of the year, reflecting interest rate volatility in the early part 
of the third quarter of 2013 and challenging comparisons to 2012 
related to robust refinancing activity. additionally, transaction 
revenue was favorably impacted by growth in structured finance 
revenues driven primarily by increased issuance of U.s. clo’s and 
U.s. commercial mortgage backed securities (“cMBs”).

non-transaction revenue increased in 2013 due to growth in 
non-issuance related revenue for corporate ratings, primarily for 
entity credit ratings in the U.s. and europe and increased res 
activity. additionally, crisil’s acquisition of coalition Development 
ltd. in July of 2012 had a favorable impact. non-transaction 
revenue includes an intersegment royalty charged to s&P capital 
iQ for the rights to use and distribute content and data developed 
by s&P ratings. royalty revenue for 2013 and 2012 was $72 
million and $69 million, respectively.

Foreign exchange rates had an unfavorable impact of $5 million 
on revenue for 2013.

operating (loss) profit
2014
operating (loss) profit decreased compared to 2013 primarily 
due to $1.6 billion of legal and regulatory settlements in 2014 
compared to $77 million of legal settlements in 2013, the unfa-
vorable impact of higher restructuring charges recorded in 2014, 
and the $16 million gain on the sale of an equity investment held 
by crisil in the third quarter of 2013. operating (loss) profit was 
also impacted by higher legal defense costs primarily driven by 
increased litigation activity including the Department of Justice 
case. these decreases were partially offset by the increases in 
revenue noted above and a favorable impact to expenses from 
foreign exchange rates of $17 million. excluding the unfavorable 
items that impacted operating profit, total expenses for s&P 
ratings have increased slightly from the prior year. 

2013
operating profit increased compared to 2012 due to the increases 
in revenue as noted above. additionally, the gain on sale of an 
equity investment held by crisil of $16 million in 2013 and the 
favorable impact from foreign exchange rates of $11 million also 
contributed to the increase in operating profit. these increases 
were partially offset by legal settlements of $77 million, increased 
compliance and regulatory costs, higher incentive costs due to 
improved performance, increased advertising expenses, higher 
technology investments and crisil’s acquisition of coalition 
Development ltd. in July of 2012.

issuance Volumes
we monitor issuance volumes as an indicator of trends in  
transaction revenue streams within s&P ratings. issuance volumes 
noted within the discussion that follows are based on the domicile 
of the issuer. issuance volumes can be reported in two ways: by 
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may from time to time establish official rating agencies or credit 
ratings criteria or procedures for evaluating local issuers. we have 
reviewed the new laws, regulations and rules which have been adopted 
and we have implemented, or are planning to implement, changes as 
required. we do not believe that such new laws, regulations or rules 
will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results 
of operations. other laws, regulations and rules relating to credit 
rating agencies are being considered by local, national, foreign and 
multinational bodies and are likely to continue to be considered in the 
future, including provisions seeking to reduce regulatory and investor 
reliance on credit ratings, rotation of credit rating agencies and 
liability standards applicable to credit rating agencies. the impact 
on us of the adoption of any such laws, regulations or rules remains 
uncertain, but could increase the costs and legal risks relating to  
s&P ratings’ rating activities, or adversely affect our ability to 
compete, or result in changes in the demand for credit ratings.

in the normal course of business both in the United states and 
abroad, s&P ratings (or the legal entities comprising s&P ratings) 
are defendants in numerous legal proceedings and are often the 
subject of government and regulatory proceedings, investigations 
and inquiries. Many of these proceedings, investigations and inquiries 
relate to the ratings activity of s&P ratings brought by issuers and 
alleged purchasers of rated securities. in addition, various government 
and self-regulatory agencies frequently make inquiries and conduct 
investigations into s&P ratings’ compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. any of these proceedings, investigations or inquiries could 
ultimately result in adverse judgments, damages, fines, penalties or 
activity restrictions, which could adversely impact our consolidated 
financial condition, cash flows, business or competitive position.

For a further discussion of the legal and regulatory environment 
in our s&P ratings business, see note 12 - Commitments and 
Contingencies to the consolidated financial statements under item 
8, Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, 
in our annual report on Form 10-K, and for a further discussion of 
competitive and other risks inherent in our s&P ratings business, 
see item 1a, Risk Factors, in our annual report on Form 10-K.

United States
the businesses conducted by our s&P ratings segment are, in 
certain cases, regulated under the reform act, the Dodd-Frank act, 
the exchange and/or the laws of the states or other jurisdictions 
in which they conduct business. the financial services industry is 
subject to the potential for increased regulation in the United states.

s&P ratings is a credit rating agency that is registered with the 
sec as a nationally recognized statistical rating organization 
(“nrsro”). the sec first began informally designating nrsros in 
1975 for use of their credit ratings in the determination of capital 
charges for registered brokers and dealers under the sec’s net 
capital rule. the reform act created a new sec registration system 
for rating agencies that choose to register as nrsros. Under the 
reform act, the sec is given authority and oversight of nrsros and 
can censure nrsros, revoke their registration or limit or suspend 
their registration in certain cases. the rules implemented by the 
sec pursuant to the reform act address, among other things, 
prevention or misuse of material non-public information, conflicts 
of interest and improving transparency of ratings performance and 
methodologies. the public portions of the current version of s&P 
ratings’ Form nrsro are available on s&P ratings’ web site. 

  rMBs volume was up slightly in the U.s. driven by a higher volume 
of prime deals. even with the increase, the market continues to 
be challenged by the unfavorable economics of transactions, 
minimal private loan activity with most loans originated by the 
government sponsored enterprises (“gses”) and a decrease 
in servicer advance activity. european rMBs volume was also 
up benefitting from the refocusing of the Funding for lending 
scheme (“Fls”) program away from mortgage lending.

  covered bond issuance (which are debt securities backed by 
mortgages or other high-quality assets that remain on the 
issuer’s balance sheet) in europe was down reflecting the 
impact of the european central Bank’s long term refinancing 
offering, the drive for banks to increase deposit funding and 
the impact of lower mortgage production in many jurisdictions 
— all collectively reducing funding needs.

industry Highlights and outlook
global revenue growth in 2014 was primarily driven by growth in 
corporate and financial services bond ratings revenue, bank loan 
ratings revenue and annual fees, as well as rating evaluation services 
fees. corporate and financial service bond rating and bank loan 
rating activity is expected to continue to grow in 2015, but not at the 
same pace as seen in prior years.  increased M&a activity is expected 
to continue, but concerns relating to international economic condi-
tions and the threat of recession, as well as continued geopolitical 
uncertainties are likely to cause market volatility in 2015.

structured finance issuance in the U.s. is expected to continue 
its steady recovery in 2015. U.s. aBs issuance volume increased 
in 2014 driven by solid auto and credit card issuance, offset by 
lower FFelP student loan refinancing activity. continued growth 
in vehicle sales along with improving consumer indicators will 
benefit the automobile market while ongoing bank diversification 
of funding will remain a key driver of credit card volume. volumes 
in the U.s. cMBs market are expected to grow in 2015. the U.s.  
cDo market continued to experience strong activity in 2014, 
driven by favorable interest rates and solid corporate loan activity.  
clo volume is expected to fall off slightly year over year as the  
incentives to refinance transactions due to the impact of upcoming 
regulatory changes were accelerated by managers in 2014.

During 2014, the eMea structured Finance markets that grew were 
largely driven by favorable spreads or changes to government spon-
sored programs. For 2015, volumes are expected to grow year over 
year partially driven by the recent european central Bank (“ecB”) 
announcement of purchase program (“aBsPP”) which is anticipated 
to benefit securitization volumes. the momentum gained in the  
clo market during the last quarter of 2014 along with an increase  
in rMBs activity are both expected to continue in 2015.

legal and regulatory environment
General
s&P ratings and many of the securities that it rates are subject to 
extensive regulation in both the United states and in other countries,  
and therefore existing and proposed laws and regulations can impact 
the company’s operations and the markets in which it operates.  
additional laws and regulations have been adopted but not yet imple-
mented or have been proposed or are being considered. in addition,  
in certain countries, governments may provide financial or other 
support to locally-based rating agencies. For example, governments 
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  impose mandatory rotation requirements on credit rating agen-
cies hired by issuers of securities for ratings of resecuritizations, 
which may limit the number of years a credit rating agency can 
issue ratings for such securities of a particular issuer;

  impose restrictions on credit rating agencies or their shareholders  
if certain ownership thresholds are crossed; and

  impose additional procedural and substantive requirements 
on the pricing of services.

the financial services industry is subject to the potential for 
increased regulation in the european Union.

Other Jurisdictions
outside of the United states and the european Union, regulators 
and government officials have also been implementing formal 
oversight of credit rating agencies. s&P ratings is subject to 
regulations in several foreign jurisdictions in which it operates 
and continues to work closely with regulators globally, including 
iosco and others to promote the global consistency of regulatory  
requirements. s&P ratings expects regulators in additional 
countries to introduce new regulations in the future.

European Union
in the european Union, the credit rating industry is registered and 
supervised through a pan-european regulatory framework which is  
a compilation of three sets of legislative actions. in 2009, the euro-
pean Parliament passed a regulation (“cra1”) that established an 
oversight regime for the credit rating industry in the european Union, 
which became effective in 2010. cra1 requires the registration, 
formal regulation and periodic inspection of credit rating agencies 
operating in the european Union. s&P ratings applied for registra-
tion in august 2010 and was granted registration in october 2011.  
in January 2011, the european Union established the esMa, which 
has had direct supervisory responsibility for the registered credit 
rating industry throughout the european Union since July 2011.

additional rules augmenting the supervisory framework for credit 
rating agencies went into effect in 2013. commonly referred to 
as cra3, these rules, among other things:

  impose various additional procedural requirements with 
respect to ratings of sovereign issuers;

  require member states to adopt laws imposing liability on 
credit rating agencies for an intentional or grossly negligent 
failure to abide by the applicable regulations;

S&p CApItAl IQ
s&P capital iQ’s portfolio of capabilities are designed to help the financial community track performance, generate better investment 
returns (alpha), identify new trading and investment ideas, perform risk analysis, and develop mitigation strategies.

s&P capital iQ includes the following business lines:

  s&P capital iQ Desktop & enterprise solutions — a product suite that provides data, analytics and third-party research for global 
finance professionals, which includes the s&P capital iQ Desktop and integrated bulk data feeds that can be customized, which 
include QuantHouse, s&P securities evaluations, cUsiP and compustat;

  s&P credit solutions — commercial arm that sells standard & Poor’s ratings services’ credit ratings and related data, analytics 
and research, which includes subscription-based offerings, ratingsDirect® and ratingsXpress®; and

  s&P capital iQ Markets intelligence — a comprehensive source of market research for financial professionals, which includes 
global Markets intelligence, leveraged commentary & Data and equity research services.

 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

revenue  $ 1,237   $ 1,170   $ 1,124   6 %  4 %

subscription revenue $ 1,118   $ 1,056   $ 1,014   6 %  4 %
non-subscription revenue $ 119   $ 114   $ 110   4 %  4 %

Domestic revenue $ 809   $ 767   $ 749   5 %  2 %
international revenue $ 428   $ 403   $ 375   6 %  7 %

operating profit $ 228   $ 189   $ 183   21 %  3 %
% operating margin  18 %   16 %   16 %      

revenue
2014
revenue grew compared to 2013 primarily due to growth from 
the s&P capital iQ Desktop, ratingsXpress® and ratingsDirect®, 
driven by increases in average contract values for each product. 
this was partially offset by an unfavorable impact related to the 
closure of several non-core businesses.

growth in the average contract value of the s&P capital iQ Desktop 
was primarily driven by new customer relationships and increases for 
existing accounts. increases for existing accounts continued to be 
driven by bundled solution offerings integrated within the s&P capital 
iQ Desktop, new datasets and expanded coverage of existing datasets 
combined with improved functionality of the s&P capital iQ Desktop. 
the number of users on the s&P capital iQ Desktop continued to  
grow over 2013. additionally, s&P capital iQ Desktop benefited in 
2014 from a higher customer retention rate compared to 2013.
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operating profit
2014
operating profit increased as compared to 2013 due to the 
increase in revenue as discussed above, expense savings from the 
closure of several non-core businesses and a favorable impact 
from foreign exchange rates of $8 million. Partially offsetting the 
increases to operating profit were increased compensation costs, 
primarily due to improved sales performance and additional  
headcount in developing regions, and higher technology costs.  
operating profit was also unfavorably impacted by higher 
restructuring charges in 2014 as compared to 2013.

2013
operating profit increased slightly as compared to 2012 due to the 
increase in revenue as discussed above, lower expenses resulting 
from the closure of several non-core businesses, reductions in 
outside consulting fees, lower restructuring costs in 2013 as 
compared to 2012 and a favorable impact from foreign exchange 
rates of $9 million. Partially offsetting the increases to operating 
profit were higher incentive costs due to improved performance, 
increased costs of sales for exchange fees incurred by QuantHouse, 
costs related to additional headcount in developing regions and a 
loss on the sale of Financial communications of $3 million in 2013.

industry Highlights and outlook
in 2014, s&P capital iQ continued to focus on integrating and 
evolving its assets and capabilities into one scaled business 
that offers unique, high-value offerings across all asset classes. 
s&P capital iQ continued to build new functionality filling critical 
capability gaps to bolster its foundation for future growth.

in 2015, s&P capital iQ will seek to expand key data sets, tools 
and analytics. the group will also seek to grow revenues outside 
the U.s. by addressing data gaps in key markets.

legal and regulatory environment
the financial services industry is subject to the potential for 
increased regulation in the United states and abroad. the 
businesses conducted by s&P capital iQ are in certain cases 
regulated under the U.s. investment advisers act of 1940 (the 
“investment advisers act”) and/or the laws of the states or other 
jurisdictions in which they conduct business.

MHFre is authorized and regulated in the United Kingdom by the 
Financial conduct authority. MHFre is authorized to arrange and 
advise on investments. MHFre is entitled to exercise a passport 
right to provide specified cross border services into other european 
economic area (“eea”) states, under and subject to the conditions 
in the Markets in Financial instruments Directive (“MiFiD”).

the markets for financial research, investment and advisory 
services are very competitive. s&P capital iQ competes domes-
tically and internationally on the basis of a number of factors, 
including the quality of its research and advisory services, client 
service, reputation, price, geographic scope, range of products and 
services, and technological innovation. For a further discussion of 
competitive and other risks inherent in our s&P capital iQ business, 
see item 1a, Risk Factors, in our annual report on Form 10-K.

Both domestic and international revenue increased over 2013, 
with international revenue growing at a slightly higher rate than 
domestic revenue. international revenue increased 6% over 2013 
and represented 35% of s&P capital iQ’s total revenue. inter-
national revenue growth in 2014 was primarily driven by sales 
growth of the s&P capital iQ Desktop in europe, asia and canada.

the subscription base for ratingsXpress® is growing due to 
new client relationships and expanded relationships within 
existing accounts as the number of customers has increased 
3% in 2014 as compared to 2013. ratingsXpress® continues 
to benefit from improvements made to the speed and timeli-
ness through delivery on the Xpressfeed platform. additionally, 
ratingsXpress® continues to benefit from increased compliance 
requirements which have created a greater need for alternative 
risk tools. ratingsDirect® also had revenue growth in 2014 as 
increased contract values were driven by the sale of bundled 
packages including the s&P capital iQ Desktop. customer  
retention rates for both ratingsXpress® and ratingsDirect®  
also improved in 2014 compared to 2013.

2013
revenue grew compared to 2012 primarily due growth at the s&P  
capital iQ Desktop and ratingsXpress®, partially offset by an unfavor-
able impact related to the closure of several non-core businesses  
and declines in several of our investment research products.

the increase at the s&P capital iQ Desktop was driven by market 
share gains and increased contract values for existing accounts. 
the number of users on the s&P capital iQ Desktop grew over 
2012. contract value growth was driven by success in the 
corporate and investment management client segments. these 
segments also grew as a result of our bundled solution offerings 
integrated within the capital iQ platform. increased contract 
values were also driven by new datasets and expanded coverage 
of existing datasets combined with improved functionality and 
performance of the s&P capital iQ Desktop platform.

Both domestic and international revenue increased over 2012, 
however, international increased at a higher rate due to the 
continued sales growth of the s&P capital iQ Desktop in europe 
and asia and the growth of QuantHouse. international growth 
was partially offset by our decision to close certain businesses 
and products within s&P capital iQ Markets intelligence.

the subscription base for ratingsXpress® grew due to new client 
relationships and expanded relationships within existing accounts 
as the number of customers increased 5% in 2013 as compared 
to 2012. ratingsXpress® benefited from increased compliance 
requirements which created a greater need for alternative risk 
tools. improvements made to the speed and timeliness through 
delivery on the Xpressfeed platform also contributed to growth in  
ratingsXpress®. sales related to ratingsDirect® increased more 
toward the second half of 2013 as the product became available 
on the s&P capital iQ Desktop platform and growth in contract 
values  was driven by being able to sell bundled packages with 
other s&P capital iQ Desktop data sets.

the 2012 acquisitions of QuantHouse and credit Market analysis 
limited also contributed to the increase in revenue.
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of 2013. volumes for exchange-traded derivatives continued to 
increase primarily for certain chicago Board options exchange 
(“cBoe”) products. Higher rates for certain new contracts also 
contributed to revenue growth in 2013.

40 new etFs were launched during 2013 compared to 85 launched 
during 2012. assets under management for etFs rose 43% to 
$668 billion in 2013 from $466 billion in 2012. as the etF market 
becomes more mature, we are beginning to evaluate those etF’s 
that have been launched that have not been as successful and 
making efforts to close them down.

operating profit
2014
operating profit grew compared to 2013 due to the increase in 
revenue as discussed above, the favorable impact of a $26 million 
non-cash impairment charge recorded in 2013 associated with 
an intangible asset acquired with the formation of the s&P Dow 
Jones indices llc joint venture and a reduction of royalty expenses. 
the reduction of royalty expenses was the result of purchases of 
intellectual property rights to certain commodities indices developed 
by goldman sachs, and Broad Market indices (“BMi”) from citigroup 
global Markets inc. as well as the expiration of a licensing arrange-
ment for commodities indices in June of 2014. these expense 
reductions were partially offset by an increase in compensation 
costs related to additional headcount and higher incentive costs.

revenue
2014
revenue at s&P DJ indices grew compared to 2013, primarily 
driven by higher average levels of assets under management  
(“aUM”) for etFs and mutual funds. Higher volumes for exchange-
traded derivatives also contributed to revenue growth. these 
increases were partially offset by the unfavorable impact of lower 
over-the-counter derivative trading volumes in 2014 driven by the 
expiration of a licensing arrangement for commodities indices in 
June of 2014.

45 new etFs were launched during 2014 compared to 40 launched 
during 2013. aUM for etFs rose 25% to $832 billion in 2014 from 
$668 billion in 2013. aUM for the fourth quarter of 2014 surpassed 
the record amount set in the third quarter of 2014 and s&P DJ 
indices continues to be the leading index provider for the etF 
market with assets representing 29% of global etF assets.

2013
revenue at s&P DJ indices grew compared to 2012 primarily due 
to the incremental revenue from the s&P Dow Jones indices llc 
joint venture. excluding the incremental revenue from the joint 
venture, revenue increased primarily due higher average levels of 
assets under management for etF products. the trend toward etF 
products continued in 2013 driving a fourth consecutive quarterly 
record for etF assets under management in the fourth quarter 

S&p dJ IndICeS
s&P DJ indices is a global index provider that maintains a wide variety of indices to meet an array of investor needs. s&P DJ indices’ 
mission is to provide transparent benchmarks to help with decision making, collaborate with the financial community to create  
innovative products and provide investors with tools to monitor world markets.

s&P DJ indices generates subscription revenue but primarily derives revenue from non-subscription products based on the s&P and 
Dow Jones indices. specifically, s&P DJ indices generate revenue from the following sources:

  investment vehicles — such as etFs, which are based on the s&P Dow Jones indices’ benchmarks and generate revenue through 
fees based on assets and underlying funds;

  exchange listed derivatives — which generate royalties based on trading volumes of derivatives contracts listed on various 
exchanges;

  index-related licensing fees — which are either fixed or variable annual and per-issue fees for over-the-counter derivatives and 
retail-structured products; and

  Data and customized index subscription fees — which support index fund management, portfolio analytics and research.

 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

revenue  $ 552   $ 493   $ 388   12 %  27 %
             
subscription revenue $ 111   $ 103   $ 87   8 %  19 %
non-subscription revenue $ 441   $ 390   $ 301   13 %  30 %
             
Domestic revenue $ 440   $ 385   $ 301   14 %  28 %
international revenue $ 112   $ 108   $ 87   4 %  24 %
             
operating profit $ 347   $ 266   $ 202   30 %  32 %
 less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests  92   $ 73   $ 34   25 %  n/M

net operating profit $ 255   $ 193   $ 168   32 %  15 %

% operating margin  63 %   54 %   52 %    
% net operating margin  46 %   39 %   43 %    

n/M - not meaningful
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categorization and treatment of certain classes of derivatives; 
(iii) expand the categories of trading venue that are subject to 
regulation; and (iv) provide for the mandatory trading of certain 
derivatives on exchanges (complementing the mandatory 
derivative clearing requirements in the e.U. Market infrastructure 
regulation of 2011). although the MiFiD ii package is “frame-
work” legislation (meaning that much of the detail of the rules 
will be set out in subordinate measures to be agreed upon in 
the period before 2017), it is possible that the introduction of 
these laws and rules could affect s&P DJ indices’ ability both to 
administer and license its indices.

in July 2013, iosco issued Financial Benchmark Principles, which 
are intended to promote the reliability of benchmark determina-
tions, and address governance, benchmark quality and account-
ability mechanisms, including with regard to the indices published 
by s&P DJ indices. even though the Financial Benchmark Princi-
ples are not binding law, s&P DJ indices has taken steps to align 
its operations with the Financial Benchmark Principles.

Benchmark regulation is continuing to be considered in the 
european Union, and at the same time the United Kingdom 
is also reviewing its domestic framework for the supervision 
of benchmark administrators; as a result of these measures, 
as well as measures that could be taken in other jurisdictions 
outside of europe, s&P DJ indices could in due course be 
required to obtain registration or authorization in connection 
with its benchmark activities in europe and elsewhere.

the markets for index providers are very competitive. s&P DJ 
indices competes domestically and internationally on the basis 
of a number of factors, including the quality of its benchmark 
indices, client service, reputation, price, geographic scope, range 
of products and services, and technological innovation.

For a further discussion of competitive and other risks inherent 
in our s&P DJ indices business, see item 1a, Risk Factors, in our 
annual report on Form 10-K.

2013
operating profit increased due to the increase in revenue as 
discussed above and from the reduction of transaction costs 
associated with our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture in 
2012. this was partially offset by the impact of higher data fees, 
increased incentive costs due to improved financial performance 
and higher marketing costs due to increased advertising levels 
as building the s&P DJ indices brand was a focus in 2013. the 
increase in 2013 was also partially offset by the impact of a full 
year of expenses for our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture. 
additionally, we incurred a $26 million non-cash impairment 
charge associated with an intangible asset acquired through the 
formation of the s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.

industry Highlights and outlook
s&P DJ indices, the leading index provider for the etF market 
space, grew in 2014 as the trend toward etFs continued, driving 
record aUM levels. in 2015, we expect this favorable trend to 
continue driving higher aUM levels over the long-term. s&P DJ 
indices will also seek to diversify their portfolio of index offerings 
through asset class expansion, new geographies, and invest-
ment strategies. this group will seek to expand its fixed income 
offering and grow its local presence in emerging markets.

legal and regulatory environment
the financial services industry generally and the benchmark 
industry specifically are subject to the potential for increased 
regulation in the United states and abroad.

the european Union has recently finalized a package of legis-
lative measures known as MiFiD ii, which revise and update 
the existing e.U. Markets in Financial instruments Directive 
framework. MiFiD ii will apply in full in all e.U. Member states 
from January 3, 2017. MiFiD ii includes provisions that, among 
other things: (i) impose new conditions and requirements on 
the licensing of benchmarks and provide for non-discrimina-
tory access to exchanges and clearing houses; (ii) modify the 

CoMModItIeS & CoMMeRCIAl
c&c consists of business-to-business companies specializing in the commodities and commercial markets that deliver their 
customers access to high-value information, data, analytic services and pricing and quality benchmarks. c&c includes the following 
brands:

  plattS — provides essential price data, analytics, and industry insight that enable commodities markets to perform with greater 
transparency and efficiency; and

  J.d. power — provides essential consumer intelligence to help businesses measure, understand, and improve the key  
performance metrics that drive growth and profitability.

on november 3, 2014, we completed the sale of Mcgraw Hill construction, which has historically been part of our c&c segment, to 
symphony technology group for $320 million in cash completing the portfolio rationalization to create Mcgraw Hill Financial. accordingly,  
the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 and all prior periods presented have been reclassified to reflect the business  
as a discontinued operation. the assets and liabilities have been removed from the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 
and classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2013. see note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures for further discussion.

the c&c business is driven by the need for high-value information and transparency in a variety of industries. c&c seeks to deliver 
premier content that is deeply embedded in customer workflows and decision making processes.
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forward curve products. additionally, growth has been driven by the 
continued licensing of our proprietary market price data and price 
assessments to various commodity exchanges.  while petroleum is 
still the biggest driver, the revenue mix continues to become more 
diversified as other sectors showed positive annualized contract 
value growth including petrochemicals, natural gas, coal and metals 
and agriculture. the acquisition of Kingsman in the fourth quarter  
of 2012 also contributed to the growth in the agriculture sector.

additionally, growth at J.D. Power contributed to the increase. 
revenue at J.D. Power for 2013 represented a record revenue 
year. revenue growth was due to strong demand in china for 
auto consulting engagements, growth in U.s. auto driven by 
additional consulting and proprietary engagements and growth 
in Pin. international revenue at J.D. Power increased 13% for  
the year as compared to 2012.

operating profit
2014
operating profit increased compared to 2013 as the increase in 
revenue as discussed above was partially offset by a pre-tax gain 
of $11 million on the sale of aviation week that was recorded in 
the third quarter of 2013 and the unfavorable impact of higher 
restructuring charges in 2014 as compared to 2013. additionally, 
increased costs at Platts and J.D. Power related to additional 
headcount, merit increases, and other operating costs to support 
business growth also partially offset the revenue increases.

2013
operating profit increased primarily due to higher revenue at 
Platts and J.D. Power as noted above. growth at J.D. Power was 
also due to lower expenses primarily due to increased productivity 
and lower incentive costs. additionally, the sale of aviation week 
during the third quarter of 2013 resulted in a pre-tax gain of $11 
million. Partially offsetting the increases at Platts were additional 
headcount and other operating costs to support business growth.

revenue
2014
revenue increased compared to 2013 due to continued demand 
for Platts’ proprietary content as Platts’ revenue grew across 
all regions. this growth was mainly driven by strength in Platts’ 
market data and price assessment products across all commodity 
sectors, led by petroleum. while petroleum is still the biggest 
driver, the revenue mix continues to become more diversified as 
other sectors continued to show positive annualized contract 
value growth including petrochemicals, natural gas, coal, metals 
and agriculture. Platts’ revenue in 2014 was also favorably 
impacted by the acquisition of eclipse energy group as and its 
operating subsidiaries (“eclipse”) in July of 2014. see note 2 — 
Acquisitions and Divestitures for further discussion.

additionally, growth at J.D. Power also contributed to the revenue 
increase. increases at J.D. Power were driven by strong demand for  
auto consulting engagements in the U.s. and singapore and growth 
in the U.s. Power information network® (“Pin”) business. Pin provides 
real-time automotive information and decision-support tools based 
on the collection and analysis of daily new- and used-vehicle  
retail transaction data from thousands of automotive franchises.  
international revenue at J.D. Power increased 8% in 2014 compared 
to 2013. the asia-Pacific region represented approximately 31%  
of J.D. Power’s total revenue in 2014 and 2013.

the increases in revenue discussed above were partially offset by the 
unfavorable impact of the sale of aviation week on august 1, 2013  
as the results have been included in c&c’s results through that date.

2013
revenue increased due to continued demand for Platts’ proprietary 
content as Platts’ revenue grew across all regions. this growth was 
mainly driven by strength in Platts’ market data and price assess-
ment products across all commodity sectors, led by petroleum, 
complemented by gains in demand for shipping data and risk 

c&c’s revenue is generated primarily through the following sources:

  subscription revenue — subscriptions to our real-time news, market data and price assessments, along with other information 
products, primarily serving the energy and automotive industry; and

  non-subscription revenue — primarily from licensing of our proprietary market price data and price assessments to commodity 
exchanges, syndicated and proprietary research studies, conference sponsorship, consulting engagements, and events.

as of august 1, 2013, we completed the sale of aviation week and results have been included in c&c’s results through that date.  
see note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

 Years ended December 31,  % change

(in millions)   2014  2013  2012  ’14 vs ’13  ’13 vs ’12

total revenue $ 893   $ 841   $ 793   6 %  6 %
               
subscription revenue $ 576   $ 527   $ 477   9 %  10 %
non-subscription revenue $ 317   $ 314   $ 316   1 %  — %
               
Domestic revenue $ 401   $ 394   $ 387   2 %  2 %
international revenue $ 492   $ 447   $ 406   10 %  10 %
               
operating profit $ 290   $ 280   $ 219   3 %  28 %
% operating margin  32 %   33 %   28 %      
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on october 5, 2012, iosco issued its Pra Principles which sets out 
principles that iosco states are intended to enhance the reliability 
of oil price assessments referenced in derivative contracts subject 
to regulation by iosco members. Platts has taken steps to align 
its operations with the Pra Principles and as recommended by 
iosco in its final report on the Pra Principles, is in the process of 
completing its alignment to the Pra Principles for other commod-
ities for which it publishes benchmarks. the cost of compliance 
with the Pra Principles as well as obtaining annual third-party 
reviews of its adherence to the Pra principles will increase Platts’ 
cost of doing business.

Benchmark regulation is continuing to be considered in the  
european Union, and at the same time the United Kingdom is  
also reviewing its domestic framework for the supervision of 
benchmark administrators; as a result of these measures, as well 
as measures that could be taken in other jurisdictions outside  
of europe, Platts could in due course be required to obtain  
registration or authorization in connection with its benchmark  
and price assessment activities in europe and elsewhere.

the markets for commodities price assessments and informa-
tion are very competitive. Platts competes domestically and 
internationally on the basis of a number of factors, including the 
quality of its assessments and other information it provides to 
the commodities and related markets, client service, reputation, 
price, geographic scope, range of products and services, and 
technological innovation.  Furthermore, sustained downward 
pressure on oil and other commodities prices and trading activity 
in those markets could have a material adverse impact on the 
rate of growth of Platts’ revenue.

For a further discussion of the legal and regulatory environment in 
our c&c business, see note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies 
to the consolidated financial statements under item 8, Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, in our annual 
report on Form 10-K, and for a further discussion of competitive 
and other risks inherent in our c&c business, see item 1a, Risk 
Factors, in our annual report on Form 10-K.

liQuidity and  
capital reSourceS
we continue to maintain a strong financial position. our primary 
source of funds for operations is cash from our businesses and our 
core businesses have been strong cash generators. in 2015, cash on 
hand, cash flows from operations and availability under our existing 
credit facility are expected to be sufficient to meet any additional 
operating and recurring cash needs into the foreseeable future.  
we use our cash for a variety of needs, including among others: 
ongoing investments in our businesses, strategic acquisitions,  
share repurchases, dividends, repayment of debt, capital  
expenditures and investment in our infrastructure.

industry Highlights and outlook
c&c expects to continue to invest in digital capabilities that will 
enable our brands to become more integrated in our customers’ 
workflows, compete more effectively in the marketplace, and create 
a foundation for the development of new products and revenue 
streams. the segment expects to further expand its presence in 
selected markets and geographies to help drive growth.

High growth in supply and an uncertain pace of demand growth 
causes volatility in energy prices, which will drive market participant  
demand for Platts’ proprietary content, including news, price 
assessments and analytics. However, if commodity prices remain 
at levels that are lower than in recent years, this is likely to have an 
adverse impact on the rate of growth for subscription and conference  
revenue in some of Platts’ customer segments. the international 
energy agency (“iea”), in its first monthly forecast of 2015, 
predicted that world oil consumption will rise to 93.3 million barrels 
per day in 2015, a gain of 0.9 million barrels per day compared to 
2014.  the iea expected non-oPec total liquids supply to expand 
by 950,000 barrels per day in 2015, following growth of 1.9 million 
barrels per day in 2014. in 2015, Platts will continue to invest in 
technology and customer engagement activities to seek to drive 
additional revenue growth across all commodity sectors. they will 
also seek to continue to leverage the capabilities and content from 
recent acquisitions and expand into adjacent markets. similar 
to 2014, they expect to continue to introduce a number of new 
products and price assessments within all commodity sectors. 
on october 30, 2014, Platts confirmed that they had completed 
their second annual assurance review for oil price assessments, 
confirming their alignment with the iosco’s Pra Principles. By  
the end of 2014, Platts had largely implemented the Principles 
for their assessments for power, gas, metals, petrochemicals and 
agriculture. Platts plans to undertake a comprehensive assurance 
review for non-oil commodities beginning in January 2015.

Demand for our automotive studies is driven by the perfor-
mance of the automotive industry. in 2014, global and U.s. light 
vehicle sales increased approximately 3% and 6%, respectively, 
compared to 2013, with growth across most primary markets 
except russia and Brazil. For 2015, J.D. Power projects growth 
for both global and U.s. light vehicles sales of 3%. in 2015, J.D. 
Power will strive to grow the core business by strengthening their 
benchmark studies, leveraging new initiatives to drive opera-
tional efficiencies and enhance customer delivery and increasing 
the distribution of their syndicated studies. international growth 
will continue to be a key focus in 2015 as they will look to extend 
product offerings to increase penetration in the asia-Pacific 
region and exploring growth opportunities in target growth 
markets (china, Brazil and Mexico).

legal and regulatory environment
Platts’ commodities price assessment and information business 
is subject to increasing regulatory scrutiny in the United states 
and abroad.

in the european Union, for a discussion on the effects of MiFiD ii, 
which may also impact Platts’ business, see “-s&P DJ indi-
ces-legal and regulatory environment.” although the MiFiD ii 
package is “framework” legislation, it is possible that the  
introduction of these laws and rules could affect Platts’ ability 
both to administer and license its price assessments.
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investing activities
our cash outflows from investing activities are primarily for 
acquisitions and capital expenditures, while cash inflows are 
primarily from dispositions.

cash used for investing activities decreased to $65 million for 
2014 from $130 million in 2013. this was primarily due to higher 
proceeds from dispositions related to the sale of our data center 
to Qts and proceeds from the sale of the company’s aircraft. 
additionally, lower capital expenditures in 2014 compared 
to 2013 contributed to the decrease. these decreases were 
partially offset by a higher amount of cash paid for acquisitions 
in 2014 compared to 2013.

cash used for investing activities decreased $116 million to  
$130 million for 2013, primarily due to a lower amount of cash 
paid for acquisitions and higher proceeds from dispositions 
primarily due to our sale of aviation week and the sale of an 
equity investment held by crisil. these decreases were partially 
offset by an increase related to cash outflows for the purchase  
of short-term investments in 2013 compared to cash inflows 
from short-term investments in 2012.

refer to note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures to our consolidated 
financial statements for further information.

Financing activities
our cash outflows from financing activities consist primarily of 
share repurchases, dividends and repayment of debt, while cash 
inflows are primarily inflows from commercial paper borrowings 
and proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

cash used for financing activities decreased $1.3 billion to 
$462 million in 2014. this decrease is primarily attributable to a 
decrease in cash used for share repurchases and the repayment 
of short-term debt that occurred in the first quarter of 2013. 

cash used for financing activities increased $838 million to 
$1.7 billion in 2013. this increase is primarily attributable to an 
increase in cash used for share repurchases, the repayment of 
short-term debt in the first quarter of 2013 and the purchase 
of crisil equity shares in the third quarter of 2013. these 
increases were partially offset by a decrease in cash used for 
dividends paid to shareholders due to a special dividend paid 
in 2012 and the payment related to the maturity of our $400 
million, 5.375% senior notes in november of 2012. 

During 2014, we used cash to repurchase 4.6 million shares 
for $362 million at an average price paid per share of $79.02, 
excluding commissions. included in the repurchase were 0.5 million 
shares of the company’s common stock from the personal holdings 
of Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s Board of Directors 
and former President and ceo of the company (“Mr. Mcgraw”). 
the shares were purchased at a discount of 0.35% from the June 
24, 2014 new York stock exchange closing price pursuant to a 
private transaction with Mr. Mcgraw. we repurchased these shares 
with cash for $41 million at an average price of $82.66 per share. 

CASH Flow oveRvIew
cash and cash equivalents were $2.5 billion as of December 31, 
2014, an increase of $955 million as compared to December 31, 
2013, and consisted of approximately 60% of domestic cash and 
40% of cash held abroad. typically, cash held outside the U.s. 
is anticipated to be utilized to fund international operations or 
to be reinvested outside of the U.s., as a significant portion of 
our opportunities for growth in the coming years is expected to 
be abroad. in the event funds from international operations are 
needed to fund operations in the U.s., we would be required to 
accrue for and pay taxes in the U.s. to repatriate these funds.

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014   2013   2012

net cash provided by (used for):
 operating activities from  
  continuing operations $ 1,209  $ 782  $ 730 
 investing activities from  
  continuing operations  (65 )  (130 )  (246 )
 Financing activities from  
  continuing operations  (462 )  (1,743 )  (905 )

in 2014, free cash flow increased to $1.0 billion compared 
to $590 million in 2013. the increase was primarily due to 
the increase in cash provided from operating activities as 
discussed below. Free cash flow is a non-gaaP financial 
measure and reflects our cash flow provided by operating 
activities less capital expenditures and dividends and other 
payments paid to noncontrolling interests. capital expenditures 
include purchases of property and equipment and additions to 
technology projects. see “MDa – reconciliation of non-gaaP 
Financial information” below for a reconciliation of cash flow 
provided by operating activities, the most directly comparable 
U.s. gaaP financial measure, to free cash flow.

operating activities
cash provided by operating activities increased $427 million to 
$1.2 billion in 2014. the increase is mainly due to a tax refund 
received in the first quarter of 2014 related to an overpayment 
in 2013 and the timing of our estimated tax payment which was 
made in the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the fourth 
quarter of 2012. additionally, improved collections in 2014 
impacting accounts receivable also contributed to the increase. 
these increases were partially offset by higher incentive 
payments in 2014 compared to 2013.

cash provided by operating activities increased $52 million to 
$782 million in 2013. the increase is mainly due to higher oper-
ating results and improved cash collections in 2013 impacting 
accounts receivable. these increases were partially offset by a tax 
payment made in the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the 
fourth quarter of 2012, our legal settlements and higher incentive 
compensation payments in 2013 reflecting greater achievement 
against targeted results in 2012 as compared to 2011.

in 2015, we intend to pay the accrued legal and regulatory 
settlement charges incurred in 2014.
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AddItIonAl FInAnCInG
currently, we have the ability to borrow a total of $1.0 billion 
through our commercial paper program, which is supported by 
our $1.0 billion four-year credit agreement (our “credit facility”) 
that we entered into in June 2013 and will terminate on June 19, 
2017. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had no outstanding 
commercial paper. 

we pay a commitment fee of 20 to 45 basis points for our credit 
facility, depending on our indebtedness to cash flow ratio, whether 
or not amounts have been borrowed and currently pay a commit-
ment fee of 20 basis points. the interest rate on borrowings under 
our credit facility is, at our option, calculated using rates that are 
primarily based on either the prevailing london inter-Bank offer 
rate, the prime rate determined by the administrative agent or 
the Federal Funds rate. For certain borrowings under this credit 
facility there is also a spread based on our indebtedness to cash 
flow ratio added to the applicable rate. 

our credit facility contains certain covenants. the only financial 
covenant requires that our indebtedness to cash flow ratio, as 
defined in our credit facility, is not greater than 3.25 to 1, and 
this covenant has never been exceeded.

on January 22, 2015, Fitch ratings revised its ratings outlook 
from negative to stable and affirmed our BBB+ long-term debt 
rating and F2 short-term/commercial debt rating.

dIvIdendS
on February 12, 2015, the Board of Directors approved an 
increase in the quarterly common stock dividend from $0.30 per 
share to $0.33 per share.

on December 6, 2012, our Board of Directors approved a special 
dividend in the amount of $2.50 per share on our common stock, 
payable on December 27, 2012 to shareholders on record on 
December 18, 2012.

ContRACtuAl oBlIGAtIonS
we typically have various contractual obligations, which are 
recorded as liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets, 
while other items, such as certain purchase commitments 
and other executory contracts, are not recognized, but are 
disclosed herein. For example, we are contractually committed 
to contracts for information-technology outsourcing, certain 
enterprise-wide information-technology software licensing and 
maintenance and make certain minimum lease payments for  
the use of property under operating lease agreements.

we believe that the amount of cash and cash equivalents on 
hand, cash flow expected from operations and availability under 
our credit facility will be adequate for us to execute our business 
strategy and meet anticipated requirements for lease obligations, 
capital expenditures, working capital and debt service for 2015.

this transaction was approved by the nominating and corporate 
governance committee of the company’s Board of Directors after 
consultation with members of the Financial Policy committee.

During 2013, we used cash to repurchase 16.8 million shares 
for $978 million, including commissions. the average price per 
share, excluding commissions, was $58.36. an additional 0.1 
million shares were repurchased in the fourth quarter of 2013 
for  approximately $10 million, which settled in January of 2014. 
including these additional shares, we utilized cash to repurchase 
shares at an average price of $58.52, excluding commissions. 
During 2012, we used cash to repurchase 6.8 million shares for 
$295 million, including commissions. the average price per share, 
excluding commissions, was $50.35. the average price per share 
for 2012 does not include the accelerated share repurchase 
transaction as discussed in more detail in note 8 – Equity to our 
consolidated financial statements. the repurchased shares may 
be used for general corporate purposes, including the issuance 
of shares for stock compensation plans and to offset the dilutive 
effect of the exercise of employee stock options.

on December 4, 2013, the Board of Directors approved a new 
stock repurchase program authorizing the purchase of up to 
50 million shares (the “2013 repurchase Program”), which 
was approximately 18% of the total shares of our outstanding 
common stock at that time. the 2013 repurchase Program 
has no expiration date and purchases under this program may 
be made from time to time on the open market and in private 
transactions, depending on market conditions. as of December 
31, 2014, 45.6 million shares remained available under the 2013 
repurchase Program.

discontinued operations
cash flows from discontinued operations reflects the classification 
of Mcgraw Hill construction and MHe as discontinued operations.

cash provided by operating activities from discontinued operations 
of $18 million in 2014 relates to Mcgraw Hill construction and cash 
used for operating activities from discontinued operations of $231 
million in 2013 relates both to MHe and Mcgraw Hill construction. 
cash used for operating activities from discontinued operations  
was $231 million in 2013 compared to cash provided by operating 
activities of $537 million in 2012 primarily as a result of the  
completion of the sale of MHe that occurred on March 22, 2013. 

cash provided by investing activities from discontinued operations 
decreased to $320 million in 2014 compared to $2.1 billion in 
2013 due to lower proceeds received from the sale of Mcgraw Hill 
construction compared to the proceeds received from the sale 
of  MHe. cash provided by investing activities from discontinued 
operations was $2.1 billion in 2013 compared to cash used for 
investing activities from discontinued operations of $199 million 
in 2012. the increase in 2013 is primarily due to proceeds received 
from the sale of MHe in 2013. 

cash used for financing activities decreased $25 million in 2014 
as there was no impact related to Mcgraw Hill construction and 
increased $13 million in 2013 related to the sale of MHe. 
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reconciliation oF non-gaap  
Financial inForMation
Free cash flow is a non-gaaP financial measure and reflects our 
cash flow provided by operating activities less capital expenditures  
and dividends and other payments paid to noncontrolling interests.  
capital expenditures include purchases of property and equipment 
and additions to technology projects. our cash flow provided by 
operating activities is the most directly comparable U.s. gaaP 
financial measure to free cash flow.

we believe the presentation of free cash flow allows our investors  
to evaluate the cash generated from our underlying operations in  
a manner similar to the method used by management. we use free 
cash flow to conduct and evaluate our business because we believe 
it typically presents a more conservative measure of cash flows 
since capital expenditures and dividends and other payments paid 
to noncontrolling interests are considered a necessary component 
of ongoing operations. Free cash flow is useful for management and 
investors because it allows management and investors to evaluate 
the cash available to us to service debt, make strategic acquisitions 
and investments, repurchase stock and fund ongoing operation  
and working capital needs.

the presentation of free cash flow is not intended to be considered 
in isolation or as a substitute for the financial information prepared 
and presented in accordance with U.s. gaaP. Free cash flow, as we 
calculate it, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures 
employed by other companies. the following table presents a 
reconciliation of our cash flow provided by operating activities to 
free cash flow:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014   2013   2012

cash provided by operating activities $  1,209  $ 782  $ 730 
 capital expenditures  (92 )  (117 )  (96 )
 Dividends and other payments paid  
  to noncontrolling interests  (84 )  (75 )  (24 )

Free cash flow $ 1,033  $ 590  $ 610

as of December 31, 2014 we had $118 million of liabilities for 
unrecognized tax benefits. we have excluded the liabilities for 
unrecognized tax benefits from our contractual obligations table 
because reasonable estimates of the timing of cash settlements 
with the respective taxing authorities are not practicable.

as of December 31, 2014, we have recorded $810 million for our 
redeemable noncontrolling interest in our s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc partnership discussed in note 8 – Equity to our consolidated 
financial statements.  specifically, this amount relates to the put 
option under the terms of the operating agreement of s&P Dow 
Jones indices llc, whereby, after December 31, 2017, cMe group 
and cgis will have the right at any time to sell, and we are obligated 
to buy, at least 20% of their share in s&P Dow Jones indices llc. we 
have excluded this amount from our contractual obligations table 
because we are uncertain as to the timing and the ultimate amount 
of the potential payment we may be required to make.

we make contributions to our pension and postretirement plans in 
order to satisfy minimum funding requirements as well as additional 
contributions that we consider appropriate to improve the funded 
status of our plans. During 2014, we contributed $22 million and $9 
million to our domestic and international retirement and postretire-
ment plans, respectively. expected employer contributions in 2015 
are $15 million and $10 million for our domestic and international 
retirement and postretirement plans, respectively. in 2015, we may 
elect to make additional non-required contributions depending on 
investment performance and the pension plan status. see note 6 –  
Employee Benefits to our consolidated financial statements for 
further discussion.

oFF-BAlAnCe SHeet ARRAnGeMentS
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not have any relation-
ships with unconsolidated entities, such as entities often referred 
to as specific purpose or variable interest entities where we are 
the primary beneficiary, which would have been established for 
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or 
other contractually narrow or limited purposes. as such we are not 
exposed to any financial liquidity, market or credit risk that could 
arise if we had engaged in such relationships.

the following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2014, 
over the next several years that relate to our continuing operations. additional details regarding these obligations are provided in the 
notes to our consolidated financial statements, as referenced in the footnotes to the table: 

    less than   More than 
(in millions) 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years total

legal and regulatory settlements 1 $ 1,609 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,609
Debt: 2

 Principal payments  —  400  —  399  799
 interest payments  50  99  52  472  673
operating leases 3  152  229  191  162  734
Purchase obligations and other 4  86  109  21  —  216

total contractual cash obligations $ 1,897 $ 837 $ 264 $ 1,033 $ 4,031

1  see note 12 – Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion on our legal and regulatory settlements.

2  our debt obligations are described in note 5 – Debt to our consolidated financial statements.

3  amounts shown include taxes and escalation payments, see note 12 – Commitments and Contingencies to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion on our operating 
lease obligations.

4  other consists primarily of commitments for unconditional purchase obligations in contracts for information-technology outsourcing and certain enterprise-wide information-technology 
software licensing and maintenance.
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revenue is recognized when the page is run. subscription income 
is recognized over the related subscription period.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, no 
significant changes have been made to the underlying assumptions 
related to estimates of revenue or the methodologies applied. Based 
on our current outlook these assumptions are not expected to 
significantly change in 2015.

AllowAnCe FoR douBtFul ACCountS
the allowance for doubtful accounts reserve methodology is 
based on historical analysis, a review of outstanding balances 
and current conditions. in determining these reserves, we 
consider, amongst other factors, the financial condition and risk 
profile of our customers, areas of specific or concentrated risk 
as well as applicable industry trends or market indicators. the 
impact on operating profit for a one percentage point change in 
the allowance for doubtful accounts is approximately $10 million.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we 
made no material changes in our assumptions regarding the 
determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Based 
on our current outlook these assumptions are not expected to 
significantly change in 2015.

ACCountInG FoR tHe IMpAIRMent oF  
lonG-lIved ASSetS (InCludInG otHeR  
IntAnGIBle ASSetS)
we evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
of an asset may not be recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, 
recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by 
comparing the carrying amount of an asset to current forecasts 
of undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated 
by the asset. if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its 
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized 
equal to the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset 
exceeds the fair value of the asset. For long-lived assets held for 
sale, assets are written down to fair value, less cost to sell. Fair 
value is determined based on market evidence, discounted cash 
flows, appraised values or management’s estimates, depending 
upon the nature of the assets.

on July 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the company’s 
aircraft to Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s 
Board of Directors and former President and ceo of the company 
for a purchase price of $20 million. During the second quarter of 
2014, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $6 million 
within other loss (income) in our consolidated statement of 
income as a result of the pending sale. see note 13 – Related 
Party Transactions to our consolidated financial statements for 
further discussion.

on June 30, 2014, we completed the sale of our data center to 
Quality technology services, llc (“Qts”) which owns, operates, 
and manages data centers. net proceeds from the sale of $58 
million were received in July of 2014. the sale includes all of the 
facilities and equipment on the south campus of our east windsor, 
new Jersey location, inclusive of the rights and obligations 
associated with an adjoining solar power field. the sale resulted 

critical accounting eStiMateS
our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and 
results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.s. 
gaaP. the preparation of these financial statements requires 
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Unless otherwise 
indicated, all discussion and analysis of our financial condition 
and results of operations relate to our continuing operations.

on an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, 
including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for 
doubtful accounts, valuation of long-lived assets, goodwill and 
other intangible assets, pension plans, incentive compensation 
and stock-based compensation, income taxes, contingencies 
and redeemable noncontrolling interests. we base our estimates 
on historical experience, current developments and on various 
other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under these 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making 
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
cannot readily be determined from other sources. there can be no 
assurance that actual results will not differ from those estimates.

Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if 
it required assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the 
time the estimate was made and changes in the estimate or 
different estimates could have a material effect on our results 
of operations. Management has discussed the development 
and selection of our critical accounting estimates with the audit 
committee of our Board of Directors. the audit committee has 
reviewed our disclosure relating to them in this MD&a.

we believe the following critical accounting policies require us to 
make significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of 
our consolidated financial statements:

Revenue ReCoGnItIon
revenue is recognized as it is earned when services are rendered. 
we consider amounts to be earned once evidence of an arrangement  
has been obtained, services are performed, fees are fixed or 
determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. revenue 
relating to products that provide for more than one deliverable 
is recognized based upon the relative fair value to the customer 
of each deliverable as each deliverable is provided. revenue 
relating to agreements that provide for more than one service is 
recognized based upon the relative fair value to the customer of 
each service component as each component is earned. if the fair 
value to the customer for each service is not objectively deter-
minable, we make our best estimate of the services’ stand alone 
selling price and recognize revenue as earned as the services are 
delivered. the allocation of consideration received from multiple 
element arrangements that involve initial assignment of ratings 
and the future surveillance of ratings is determined through an 
analysis that considers cash consideration that would be received 
for instances when the service components are sold separately. 
in such cases, we defer portions of rating fees that we estimate 
will be attributed to future surveillance and recognize the deferred 
revenue ratably over the estimated surveillance periods. advertising 
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indefinite-lived intangible assets
we evaluate the recoverability of indefinite-lived intangible assets 
by first performing a qualitative analysis evaluating whether any 
events and circumstances occurred that provide evidence that it 
is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired. 
if, based on our evaluation of the events and circumstances that 
occurred during the year we do not believe that it is more likely 
than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired, no quantitative 
impairment test is performed. conversely, if the results of our 
qualitative assessment determine that it is more likely than not 
that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired a quantitative impairment 
test is performed. if necessary, the impairment test is performed 
by comparing the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to 
its carrying value. if the indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying 
value exceeds its fair value, an impairment analysis is performed  
using the income approach. the fair value of loss is recognized in 
an amount equal to that excess. significant judgments inherent in 
these analyses include estimating the amount and timing of future 
cash flows and the selection of appropriate discount rates, royalty 
rates and long-term growth rate assumptions. changes in these 
estimates and assumptions could materially affect the  
determination of fair value for this indefinite-lived intangible  
asset and could result in an impairment charge, which could be 
material to our financial position and results of operations.

we performed our impairment assessment of goodwill and  
indefinite-lived intangible assets at our s&P ratings, s&P 
capital iQ, s&P DJ indices and c&c operating segments and 
concluded that no impairment existed for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

RetIReMent plAnS And poStRetIReMent  
HeAltHCARe And otHeR BeneFItS
our employee pension and other postretirement benefit costs and 
obligations are dependent on assumptions concerning the outcome 
of future events and circumstances, including compensation 
increases, long-term return on pension plan assets, healthcare 
cost trends, discount rates and other factors. in determining such 
assumptions, we consult with outside actuaries and other advisors 
where deemed appropriate. in accordance with relevant accounting 
standards, if actual results differ from our assumptions, such  
differences are deferred and amortized over the estimated remaining 
lifetime of the plan participants. while we believe that the assump-
tions used in these calculations are reasonable, differences in actual 
experience or changes in assumptions could affect the expense and 
liabilities related to our pension and other postretirement benefits.

the following is a discussion of some significant assumptions 
that we make in determining costs and obligations for pension 
and other postretirement benefits:

  Discount rate assumptions are based on current yields on 
high-grade corporate long-term bonds.

  Healthcare cost trend assumptions are based on historical 
market data, the near-term outlook and an assessment of 
likely long-term trends.

  the expected return on assets assumption is calculated based 
on the plan’s asset allocation strategy and projected market 
returns over the long-term.

in an expense of $3 million recorded within other loss (income) in 
our consolidated statement of income, which is in addition to the 
non-cash impairment charge of $36 million we recorded in the 
fourth quarter of 2013 to adjust the value facilities and associated 
infrastructure classified as held for sale to their fair value.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we also incurred a $26 million 
non-cash impairment charge associated with an intangible asset 
acquired through the formation of our s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc joint venture.

there were no material impairments of long-lived assets for the 
year ended December 31, 2012.

GoodwIll And IndeFInIte-lIved  
IntAnGIBle ASSetS
goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related  
costs over the value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable 
intangible assets of businesses acquired. as of December 31, 
2014 and 2013, the carrying value of goodwill and other indefinite- 
lived intangible assets was $2.1 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively.  
goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not  
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment annually during 
the fourth quarter each year or more frequently if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.

goodwill
as part of our annual impairment test of our 4 reporting units,  
we initially perform a qualitative analysis evaluating whether  
any events and circumstances occurred that provide evidence 
that it is more likely than not that the fair value of any of our 
reporting units is less than its carrying amount. our qualitative 
assessment included, but was not limited to, consideration of 
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market conditions,  
cost factors, cash flows, changes in key company personnel and 
our share price. if, based on our evaluation of the events and 
circumstances that occurred during the year we do not believe 
that it is more likely than not that the fair value of any of our 
reporting units is less than its carrying amount, no quantitative 
impairment test is performed. conversely, if the results of our 
qualitative assessment determine that it is more likely than not 
that the fair value of any of our reporting units is less than its 
respective carrying amount we perform a two-step quantitative 
impairment test. For 2014, based on our qualitative assessments, 
we determined that it is more likely than not that our reporting 
units’ fair value was greater than their respective carrying 
amounts. 

if the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying 
value, a second step is performed which compares the implied 
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to the carrying value of 
the goodwill. the implied fair value of the goodwill is determined 
based on the difference between the fair value of the reporting 
unit and the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities 
of the reporting unit. if the implied fair value of the goodwill is 
less than the carrying value, the difference is recognized as an 
impairment charge.
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Judgment is required in determining our provision for income 
taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and unrecognized tax 
benefits. in determining the need for a valuation allowance, the 
historical and projected financial performance of the operation 
that is recording a net deferred tax asset is considered along 
with any other pertinent information.

we file income tax returns in the U.s. federal jurisdiction, various 
states, and foreign jurisdictions, and we are routinely under audit 
by many different tax authorities. we believe that our accrual 
for tax liabilities is adequate for all open audit years based on 
our assessment of many factors including past experience and 
interpretations of tax law. this assessment relies on estimates 
and assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgments 
about future events. it is possible that examinations will be settled 
prior to December 31, 2015. if any of these tax audit settlements 
do occur within that period we would make any necessary adjust-
ments to the accrual for unrecognized tax benefits. Until formal 
resolutions are reached between us and the tax authorities, the 
determination of a possible audit settlement range with respect to 
the impact on unrecognized tax benefits is not practicable. on the 
basis of present information, it is our opinion that any assessments 
resulting from the current audits will not have a material effect on 
our consolidated financial statements.

we have determined that the undistributed earnings of our foreign 
subsidiaries are permanently reinvested within those foreign 
operations. accordingly, we have not provided deferred income 
taxes on these indefinitely reinvested earnings. a future distribution 
by the foreign subsidiaries of these earnings could result in  
additional tax liability, which may be material to our future 
reported results, financial position and cash flows.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we made  
no material changes in our assumptions regarding the determination 
of the provision for income taxes. However, certain events could occur  
that would materially affect our estimates and assumptions 
regarding deferred taxes. changes in current tax laws and applicable 
enacted tax rates could affect the valuation of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities, thereby impacting our income tax provision.

ContInGenCIeS
we are subject to a number of lawsuits and claims that arise in the 
ordinary course of business. we recognize a liability for such contin-
gencies when both (a) information available prior to issuance of the 
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability had 
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and (b) the 
amount of loss can reasonably be estimated. we continually assess 
the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to our contin-
gencies, as well as potential amounts or ranges of probable losses, 

our discount rate and return on asset assumptions used to determine the net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost on our 
U.s. retirement plans are as follows:

    retirement Plans Postretirement Plans

January 1 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 

Discount rate 1 4.15 % 5.00 % 4.10 % 3.60 % 4.20 % 3.45 %
return on assets 6.25 % 7.125 % 7.25 %     
weighted-average healthcare cost rate       7.0 % 7.0 % 7.5 %

1  the discount rate assumption used to determine the net periodic pension and postretirement benefit cost on our U.s. retirement plans on January 1 is based on the discount rate 
assumption used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 31 of the previous year.

in addition to the assumptions in the above table, assumed mortality 
is also a key assumption in determining benefit obligations. at 
December 31, 2014, the company updated the assumed mortality 
rates to reflect life expectancy improvements.

StoCk-BASed CoMpenSAtIon
stock-based compensation expense is measured at the grant date 
based on the fair value of the award and is recognized over the requi-
site service period, which typically is the vesting period. stock-based 
compensation is classified as both operating-related expense and 
selling and general expense in our consolidated statements of income.

we use a lattice-based option-pricing model to estimate the fair 
value of options granted. the following assumptions were used 
in valuing the options granted (in 2012, stock options were not 
granted as part of employees’ total stock-based incentive awards):

    Years ended December 31,

    2014 2013 2012

risk-free average interest rate 0.1 - 2.9 % 0.1 - 2.9 % n/a
Dividend yield 1.8 - 1.4 % 2.09 - 2.07 % n/a
volatility  18 - 41 % 29 - 45 % n/a
expected life (years) 6.25 - 6.21  6.1 - 6.2  n/a
weighted-average grant-date  
 fair value per option $ 23.41  $ 14.46  n/a

Because lattice-based option-pricing models incorporate ranges  
of assumptions, those ranges are disclosed. these assumptions 
are based on multiple factors, including historical exercise patterns, 
post-vesting termination rates, expected future exercise patterns 
and the expected volatility of our stock price. the risk-free interest 
rate is the imputed forward rate based on the U.s. treasury yield at 
the date of grant. we use the historical volatility of our stock price 
over the expected term of the options to estimate the expected 
volatility. the expected term of options granted is derived from the 
output of the lattice model and represents the period of time that 
options granted are expected to be outstanding.

InCoMe tAxeS
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future 
tax consequences attributable to differences between financial 
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled. we recognize liabili-
ties for uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken 
in income tax returns. accrued interest and penalties related to 
unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in interest expense and 
operating expense, respectively.
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  the health of debt and equity markets, including credit quality  
and spreads, the level of liquidity and future debt issuances;

  the level of interest rates and the strength of the credit and 
capital markets in the U.s. and abroad;

  the demand and market for credit ratings in and across the 
sectors and geographies where we operate;

  concerns in the marketplace affecting our credibility or  
otherwise affecting market perceptions of the integrity or utility  
of independent credit agency ratings;

  our ability to maintain adequate physical, technical and  
administrative safeguards to protect the security of confidential 
information and data, and the potential of a system or network 
disruption that results in regulatory penalties, remedial costs  
and/or improper disclosure of confidential information or data;

  the effect of competitive products and pricing;
  consolidation in our end customer market;
  the impact of cost-cutting pressures across the financial  

services industry; 
  a decline in the demand for credit risk management tools by 

financial institutions;
  the level of success of new product development and global 

expansion;
  the level of merger and acquisition activity in the U.s. and abroad;
  the volatility of the energy marketplace;
  the health of the commodities markets;
  the impact of cost-cutting pressures and reduced trading in oil 

and other commodities markets;
  the level of our future cash flows;
  our ability to make acquisitions and dispositions and to integrate, 

and realize expected synergies, savings or benefits from, the 
businesses we acquire;

  the level of our capital investments;
 the level of restructuring charges we incur;
  the strength and performance of the domestic and international 

automotive markets;
  our ability to successfully recover should we experience a disaster 

or other business continuity problem, such as a hurricane, flood, 
earthquake, terrorist attack, pandemic, security breach, cyber 
attack, power loss, telecommunications failure or other natural  
or man-made disaster;

  changes in applicable tax or accounting requirements;
  the impact on our net income caused by fluctuations in foreign 

currency exchange issues; and
  our exposure to potential criminal sanctions or civil remedies if we 

fail to comply with foreign and U.s. laws and regulations that are 
applicable in the domestic and international jurisdictions in which 
we operate, including sanctions laws relating to countries such 
as iran, russia, cuba, sudan and syria, anti-corruption laws such 
as the U.s. Foreign corrupt Practices act and the U.K. Bribery act 
of 2010, local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to government 
officials, as well as import and export restrictions.

the factors above are not exhaustive. Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. 
and it subsidiaries operate in a dynamic business environment in 
which new risks may emerge frequently. accordingly, we caution 
readers not to place undue reliance on the above forward-looking 
statements, which speak only as of the dates on which they are 
made. the company undertakes no obligation to update or revise 
any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances 
arising after the date on which it is made. Further information about 
our businesses, including information about factors that could 
materially affect our results of operations and financial condition, is 
contained in the company’s filings with the sec, including item 1a, 
Risk Factors, in our annual report on Form 10-K. 

and recognize a liability, if any, for these contingencies based on an 
analysis of each matter with the assistance of outside legal counsel 
and, if applicable, other experts. Because many of these matters 
are resolved over long periods of time, our estimate of liabilities 
may change due to new developments, changes in assumptions or 
changes in our strategy related to the matter. when we accrue for 
loss contingencies and the reasonable estimate of the loss is within 
a range, we record its best estimate within the range. we disclose 
an estimated possible loss or a range of loss when it is at least 
reasonably possible that a loss may have been incurred.

RedeeMABle nonContRollInG InteReSt
the fair value component of the redeemable noncontrolling interest 
in s&P DJ indices business is based on a combination of an income 
and market valuation approach. our income and market valuation 
approaches may incorporate level 3 measures for instances when 
observable inputs are not available, including assumptions related 
to expected future net cash flows, long-term growth rates, the 
timing and nature of tax attributes, and the redemption features.

 recent accounting StandardS
see note 1 – Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial 
statements for a detailed description of recent accounting 
standards. we do not expect these recent accounting standards 
to have a material impact on our results of operations, financial 
condition, or liquidity in future periods.

Forward-looKing StateMentS
our annual report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking state-
ments,” as defined in the Private securities litigation reform act of 
1995. these statements, which express management’s current views 
concerning future events, trends, contingencies or results, appear 
at various places throughout this report and use words like “antici-
pate,” “assume,” “believe,” “continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” 
“future,” “intend,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “strategy,” 
“target” and similar terms, and future or conditional tense verbs like 
“could,” “may,” “might,” “should,” “will” and “would.” For example, we 
may use forward-looking statements when addressing topics such as: 
the outcome of contingencies; future actions by regulators; changes 
in our business strategies and methods of generating revenue; the 
development and performance of our services and products; the 
expected impact of acquisitions and dispositions; our effective tax 
rates; and our cost structure, dividend policy, cash flows or liquidity.

Forward-looking statements are subject to inherent risks and 
uncertainties. Factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-
looking statements include, among other things:

  the rapidly evolving regulatory environment, in the United states  
and abroad, affecting standard & Poor’s ratings services, Platts,  
s&P Dow Jones indices, s&P capital iQ and our other businesses, 
including new and amended regulations and our compliance 
therewith;

  the outcome of litigation, government and regulatory proceedings, 
investigations and inquiries;

  worldwide economic, financial, political and regulatory conditions;
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   Year ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012

Revenue $ 5,051   $ 4,702  $ 4,270 
expenses:        
 operating-related expenses  1,627    1,564   1,433 
 selling and general expenses  3,168    1,631   1,578 
 Depreciation  86    86   93 
 amortization of intangibles  48    51   48 

total expenses  4,929    3,332   3,152 
other loss (income)  9    12   (52 )

operating profit  113    1,358   1,170 
 interest expense, net  59    59   81 

Income from continuing operations before taxes on income  54    1,299   1,089 
 Provision for taxes on income  245    425   388 

(loss) income from continuing operations  (191 )   874   701 
discontinued operations, net of tax:        
 income (loss) from discontinued operations  18    3   (209 )
 gain on sale of discontinued operations (includes $(75) accumulated  
  other comprehensive income reclassifications in 2013 for  
  foreign currency translation adjustment)  160    589   — 

 Discontinued operations, net  178    592   (209 )

net (loss) income  (13 )   1,466   492 

 less: net income from continuing operations attributable to noncontrolling interests  (102 )   (91 )  (50 )
 less: net loss (income) from discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling interests  —    1   (5 )

net (loss) income attributable to McGraw Hill Financial, Inc. $ (115 )  $ 1,376  $ 437 

Amounts attributable to McGraw Hill Financial, Inc. common shareholders:        
 (loss) income from continuing operations $ (293 )  $ 783  $ 651 
 income (loss) from discontinued operations  178    593   (214 )

 net (loss) income $ (115 )  $ 1,376  $ 437 

earnings (loss) per share attributable to McGraw Hill Financial, Inc. common shareholders:        
 (loss) income from continuing operations:        
  Basic $ (1.08 )  $ 2.85  $ 2.33 
  Diluted $ (1.08 )  $ 2.80  $ 2.29 
 income (loss) from discontinued operations:        
  Basic $ 0.66   $ 2.16  $ (0.77 )
  Diluted $ 0.66   $ 2.12  $ (0.75 )
 net (loss) income:        
  Basic $ (0.42 )  $ 5.01  $ 1.57 
  Diluted $ (0.42 )  $ 4.91  $ 1.53 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding:        
  Basic  271.5    274.5   278.6 
  Diluted  271.5    279.8   284.6   
 
Dividend declared per common share $ 1.20   $ 1.12  $ 1.02 
special dividend declared per common share $ —   $ —  $ 2.50 

see accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF incoMe
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   Year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

net income $ (13 ) $ 1,466  $ 492 
other comprehensive income:        
 Foreign currency translation adjustment  (108 )  93   29 
 income tax effect  2   (2 )  (19 )

     (106 )  91   10 
        
 Pension and other postretirement benefit plans  (357 )  385   (164 )
 income tax effect  142   (154 )  63 

     (215 )  231   (101 )
        
 Unrealized gain (loss) on investment and forward exchange contract  4   2   (4 )
 income tax effect  (1 )  (2 )  2 

     3   —   (2 )

comprehensive income  (331 )  1,788   399 

 less: comprehensive income attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests  (10 )  (18 )  (20 )
 less: comprehensive income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests  (92 )  (73 )  (34 )

comprehensive income attributable to Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. $ (433 ) $ 1,697  $ 345 

see accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF coMpreHenSiVe incoMe
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   December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013

ASSetS     
current assets:     
 cash and equivalents $ 2,497  $ 1,542 
 short-term investments  3   18 
 accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts: 2014 - $38; 2013 - $50  932   949 
 Deferred income taxes  363   108 
 Prepaid and other current assets  171   227 
 assets held for sale  —   97 

  total current assets  3,966   2,941 

Property and equipment:     
 Buildings and leasehold improvements  287   436 
 equipment and furniture  482   422 

  total property and equipment  769   858 

 less: accumulated depreciation  (563 )  (609 )

  Property and equipment, net  206   249 

goodwill    1,387   1,409 
other intangible assets, net  1,004   1,033 
asset for pension benefits  28   261 
other non-current assets  180   168 

   total assets $ 6,771  $ 6,061 

lIABIlItIeS And eQuIty     
current liabilities:     
 accounts payable $ 191  $ 210 
 accrued compensation and contributions to retirement plans  410   423 
 income taxes currently payable  32   15 
 Unearned revenue  1,323   1,268 
 accrued legal and regulatory settlements  1,609   — 
 other current liabilities  402   402 
 liabilities held for sale  —   54 

  total current liabilities  3,967   2,372 

 long-term debt  799   799 
 Pension and other postretirement benefits  333   264 
 Deferred income taxes  56   206 
 other non-current liabilities  267   266 

   total liabilities  5,422   3,907 

redeemable noncontrolling interest  810   810 
commitments and contingencies (note 12)     
equity:     
 common stock, $1 par value: authorized - 600 million shares; issued - 412 million shares in 2014 and 2013  412   412 
 additional paid-in capital  493   447 
 retained income  6,946   7,384 
 accumulated other comprehensive loss  (514 )  (196 )
 less: common stock in treasury - at cost: 2014 - 140 million shares; 2013 - 141 million shares  (6,849 )  (6,746 )

   total equity – controlling interests  488   1,301 

   total equity – noncontrolling interests (2013 includes $25 attributable to discontinued operations)  51   43 

   total equity  539   1,344 

   total liabilities and equity $ 6,771  $ 6,061 

see accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

conSolidated Balance SHeetS
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   Year ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

operating Activities:        
 net (loss) income $ (13 ) $ 1,466  $ 492 
 less: income (loss) from discontinued operations  178   592   (209 )

net (loss) income from continuing operations  (191 )  874   701 
adjustments to reconcile (loss) income from continuing operations to cash provided by  
 operating activities from continuing operations:        
 Depreciation  86   86   93 
 amortization of intangibles  48   51   48 
 Provision for losses on accounts receivable  11   22   32 
 Deferred income taxes  (245 )  43   53 
 stock-based compensation  100   96   90 
 accrued legal and regulatory settlements  1,587   —   — 
 other   80   96   3 
changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions and dispositions:        
 accounts receivable  (9 )  (35 )  (250 )
 Prepaid and other current assets  (7 )  (29 )  3 
 accounts payable and accrued expenses  (130 )  (94 )  73 
 Unearned revenue  78   109   23 
 other current liabilities  (51 )  (89 )  (68 )
 net change in prepaid / accrued income taxes  (93 )  (238 )  119 
 net change in other assets and liabilities  (55 )  (110 )  (190 )

cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations  1,209   782   730 

Investing Activities:        
 capital expenditures  (92 )  (117 )  (96 )
 acquisitions, including contingent payments, net of cash acquired  (71 )  (47 )  (177 )
 Proceeds from dispositions  83   51   — 
 changes in short-term investments  15   (17 )  27 

cash used for investing activities from continuing operations  (65 )  (130 )  (246 )

Financing Activities:        
 (Payments on) / additions to short-term debt  —   (457 )  457 
 Payments on senior notes  —   —   (400 )
 Dividends paid to shareholders  (326 )  (308 )  (984 )
 Dividends and other payments paid to noncontrolling interests  (84 )  (75 )  (24 )
 repurchase of treasury shares  (362 )  (978 )  (295 )
 exercise of stock options  193   258   299 
 contingent payments  (11 )  (12 )  — 
 Purchase of additional crisil shares  —   (214 )  — 
 excess tax benefits from share-based payments  128   43   42 

cash used for financing activities from continuing operations  (462 )  (1,743 )  (905 )

effect of exchange rate changes on cash from continuing operations  (65 )  (1 )  5 
cash provided by (used for) continuing operations  617   (1,092 )  (416 )

discontinued operations:        
 cash provided by (used for) operating activities  18   (231 )  537 
 cash provided by (used for) investing activities  320   2,129   (199 )
 cash used for financing activities  —   (25 )  (12 )
 effect of exchange rate changes on cash  —   1   3 
 effect of change in cash and equivalents  —   —   12 

cash provided by discontinued operations  338   1,874   341 

net change in cash and equivalents  955   782   (75 )
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year  1,542   760   835 

Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 2,497  $ 1,542  $ 760 

Cash paid during the year for:        
 interest (including discontinued operations) $ 50  $ 50  $ 77 
 income taxes (including discontinued operations) $ 419  $ 787  $ 243 

see accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF caSH FlowS
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       accumulated 
     additional  other less:    
    common Paid-in retained comprehensive treasury  total MHFi noncontrolling total 
(in millions) stock $1 par capital income loss stock equity interests equity

Balance as of december 31, 2011 $ 412  $ 94  $ 7,667  $ (425 ) $ 6,240  $ 1,508  $ 76  $ 1,584
 comprehensive income 1        437   (92 )     345   20   365
 Dividends        (989 )        (989 )  (22 )  (1,011 )
 noncontrolling interest transactions     350   (573 )        (223 )     (223 )
 share repurchases     50         345   (295 )  (3 )  (298 )
 employee stock plans, net of tax benefit     (2 )        (440 )  438      438
 change in redemption value of redeemable  
  noncontrolling interest        (17 )        (17 )     (17 )
 other                  —   2   2

Balance as of december 31, 2012 $ 412  $ 492  $ 6,525  $ (517 ) $ 6,145  $ 767  $ 73  $ 840

 comprehensive income 1        1,376   321      1,697   18   1,715
 Dividends        (315 )        (315 )  (10 )  (325 )
 noncontrolling interest adjustments related to  
  discontinued operations                 —   (22 )  (22 )
 share repurchases              989   (989 )     (989 )
 employee stock plans, net of tax benefit     (45 )        (388 )  343      343
 change in redemption value of redeemable  
  noncontrolling interest        11         11      11
 increase in crisil ownership        (216 )        (216 )  (17 )  (233 )
 other         3         3   1   4

Balance as of december 31, 2013 $ 412  $ 447  $ 7,384  $ (196 ) $ 6,746  $ 1,301  $ 43  $ 1,344

 comprehensive income 1        (115 )  (318 )     (433 )  10   (423 )
 Dividends        (324 )        (324 )  (8 )  (332 )
 share repurchases              352   (352 )  6   (346 )
 employee stock plans, net of tax benefit     46         (249 )  295      295
 change in redemption value of redeemable  
  noncontrolling interest        (1 )        (1 )     (1 )
 other         2         2   —   2

Balance as of december 31, 2014 $ 412  $ 493  $ 6,946  $ (514 ) $ 6,849  $ 488  $ 51  $ 539

1  excludes $92 million, $73 million and $34 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest. 

see accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF eQuity
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see note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures for further discussion 
on discontinued operations.

diScontinued operationS in determining whether a group of 
assets disposed or to be disposed of should be presented as a 
discontinued operation, we make a determination of whether the 
group of assets being disposed of comprises a component of the 
entity; that is, whether it has historic operations and cash flows 
that can be clearly distinguished both operationally and for financial 
reporting purposes. we also determine whether the cash flows 
associated with the group of assets have been or will be eliminated 
from our ongoing operations as a result of the disposal transaction 
and whether we will have significant continuing involvement in the 
operations of the group of assets after the disposal transaction. if 
we conclude that the cash flows have been eliminated and we have 
no significant continuing involvement, then the results of operations 
of the group of assets being disposed of (as well as any gain or loss 
on the disposal transaction) are aggregated for separate presenta-
tion apart from our continuing operating results in the consolidated 
financial statements. see note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures for 
a summary of discontinued operations. Unless otherwise indicated, 
all disclosures and amounts in the notes to our consolidated  
financial statements relate to our continuing operations.

principleS oF conSolidation the consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries and our 
share of earnings or losses of joint ventures and affiliated 
companies under the equity method of accounting. all significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

uSe oF eStiMateS the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in 
the United states of america requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in 
the financial statements and accompanying notes. actual results 
could differ from those estimates.

caSH and caSH eQuiValentS cash and cash equivalents include 
ordinary bank deposits and highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that consist primarily of money 
market funds with unrestricted daily liquidity and fixed term time 
deposits. such investments and bank deposits are stated at cost, 
which approximates market value and were $2.5 billion and $1.5 
billion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. these 
investments are not subject to significant market risk.

SHort-terM inVeStMentS short-term investments are securities 
with original maturities greater than 90 days that are available for 
use in our operations in the next twelve months. the short-term 
investments, primarily consisting of certificates of deposit, are 
classified as held-to-maturity and therefore are carried at cost. 
interest and dividends are recorded into income when earned.

accountS receiVaBle credit is extended to customers based 
upon an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition. accounts 
receivable, which include billings consistent with terms of 
contractual arrangements, are recorded at net realizable value.

allowance For douBtFul accountS the allowance for doubtful 
accounts reserve methodology is based on historical analysis,  
a review of outstanding balances and current conditions. in 
determining these reserves, we consider, amongst other factors, 

noteS to tHe conSolidated  
Financial StateMentS

1. accounting policieS
nature oF operationS Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. (together with 
its consolidated subsidiaries, the “company,” the “registrant,” 
“we,” “us” or “our”) is a leading benchmarks & ratings, analytics, 
data and research provider serving the global capital, commodities  
and commercial markets. the capital markets include asset 
managers, investment banks, commercial banks, exchanges,  
and issuers; the commodities markets include producers, traders 
and intermediaries within energy, metals, and agriculture; and the 
commercial markets include professionals and corporate executives 
within automotive and marketing / research information services.

our operations consist of four reportable segments: standard & Poor’s 
ratings services (“s&P ratings”), s&P capital iQ, s&P Dow Jones 
indices (“s&P DJ indices”) and commodities & commercial (“c&c”). 

  s&P ratings is an independent provider of credit ratings, 
research and analytics, offering investors and market  
participants information, ratings and benchmarks.

   s&P capital iQ is a global provider of  multi-asset-class data, 
research and analytical capabilities, which integrate cross-asset 
analytics and desktop services.

  s&P DJ indices is a global leading index provider that maintains 
a wide variety of valuation and index benchmarks for investment 
advisors, wealth managers and institutional investors.

  c&c consists of business-to-business companies specializing 
in commercial and commodities markets that deliver their 
customers access to high-value information, data, analytic 
services and pricing and quality benchmarks. as of august 1, 
2013, we completed the sale of aviation week and the results 
have been included in c&c’s results through that date. 

see note 11 – Segment and Geographic Information for further 
discussion on our operating segments, which are also our 
reportable segments.

on november 3, 2014, we completed the sale of Mcgraw Hill 
construction, which has historically been part of our c&c 
segment, to symphony technology group for $320 million in cash 
completing the portfolio rationalization to create Mcgraw Hill 
Financial. accordingly, the results of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 and all prior periods presented have been 
reclassified to reflect the business as a discontinued operation. 
the assets and liabilities have been removed from the consolidated 
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and classified as held for 
sale as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 

we completed the sale of our Mcgraw-Hill education business 
(“MHe”) on March 22, 2013 and, accordingly, the results of oper-
ations of MHe have been reclassified to reflect the business as a 
discontinued operation for the years ended December 31, 2013  
and December 31, 2012. the assets and liabilities of MHe have been 
removed from the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 
2013 and classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2012.
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income as a result of the pending sale. see note 13 – Related 
Party Transactions for further discussion.

on June 30, 2014, we completed the sale of our data center to 
Quality technology services, llc (“Qts”) which owns, operates, 
and manages data centers. net proceeds from the sale of $58 
million were received in July of 2014. the sale includes all of the 
facilities and equipment on the south campus of our east windsor, 
new Jersey location, inclusive of the rights and obligations 
associated with an adjoining solar power field. the sale resulted 
in an expense of $3 million recorded within other loss (income) in 
our consolidated statement of income, which is in addition to the 
non-cash impairment charge of $36 million we recorded in the 
fourth quarter of 2013 to adjust the value facilities and associated 
infrastructure classified as held for sale to their fair value.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we also incurred a $26 million 
non-cash impairment charge associated with an intangible asset 
acquired through the formation of our s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc joint venture.

there were no material impairments of long-lived assets for the 
year ended December 31, 2012.

goodwill and otHer indeFinite-liVed intangiBle aSSetS 
goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs 
over the value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable intangible 
assets of businesses acquired. goodwill and other intangible assets 
with indefinite lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for 
impairment annually during the fourth quarter each year or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
asset might be impaired. we have four reporting units with goodwill 
that are evaluated for impairment.

we initially perform a qualitative analysis evaluating whether any 
events and circumstances occurred or exist that provide evidence 
that it is more likely than not that the fair value of any of our 
reporting units is less than its carrying amount. if, based on our 
evaluation we do not believe that it is more likely than not that 
the fair value of any of our reporting units is less than its carrying 
amount, no quantitative impairment test is performed. conversely, 
if the results of our qualitative assessment determine that it is 
more likely than not that the fair value of any of our reporting  
units is less than their respective carrying amounts we perform  
a two-step quantitative impairment test.

when conducting the first step of our two step impairment test to 
evaluate the recoverability of goodwill at the reporting unit level, the  
estimated fair value of the reporting unit is compared to its carrying 
value including goodwill. Fair value of the reporting units are estimated  
using the income approach, which incorporates the use of a 
discounted free cash flow (“DcF”) analyses and are corroborated 
using the market approach, which incorporates the use of revenue 
and earnings multiples based on market data. the DcF analyses 
are based on the current operating budgets and estimated long-
term growth projections for each reporting unit. Future cash flows 
are discounted based on a market comparable weighted average 
cost of capital rate for each reporting unit, adjusted for market and 
other risks where appropriate. in addition, we analyze any difference 
between the sum of the fair values of the reporting units and our 
total market capitalization for reasonableness, taking into account 
certain factors including control premiums.

the financial condition and risk profile of our customers, areas of 
specific or concentrated risk as well as applicable industry trends 
or market indicators.

deFerred tecHnology coStS we capitalize certain software 
development and website implementation costs. capitalized costs 
only include incremental, direct costs of materials and services 
incurred to develop the software after the preliminary project stage 
is completed, funding has been committed and it is probable that 
the project will be completed and used to perform the function 
intended. incremental costs are expenditures that are out-of-pocket 
to us and are not part of an allocation or existing expense base. 
software development and website implementation costs are 
expensed as incurred during the preliminary project stage.  
capitalized costs are amortized from the year the software is ready 
for its intended use over its estimated useful life, three to seven 
years, using the straight-line method. Periodically, we evaluate  
the amortization methods, remaining lives and recoverability  
of such costs. capitalized software development and website  
implementation costs are included in other non-current assets  
and are presented net of accumulated amortization. gross  
deferred technology costs were $123 million and $131 million  
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. accumulated 
amortization of deferred technology costs was $55 million and  
$71 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Fair Value certain assets and liabilities are required to be 
recorded at fair value and classified within a fair value hierarchy 
based on inputs used when measuring fair value. we have an 
immaterial amount of forward exchange contracts that are 
adjusted to fair value on a recurring basis.

other financial instruments, including cash and equivalents and 
short-term investments, are recorded at cost, which approximates 
fair value because of the short-term maturity and highly liquid 
nature of these instruments. the fair value of our long-term debt 
borrowings were $871 million and $801 million as of December 31, 
2014 and 2013, respectively, and was estimated based on quoted 
market prices.

accounting For tHe iMpairMent oF long-liVed aSSetS 
(including otHer intangiBle aSSetS) we evaluate long-lived 
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recoverability of assets to 
be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount  
of an asset to current forecasts of undiscounted future net cash 
flows expected to be generated by the asset. if the carrying amount 
of the asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment 
charge is recognized equal to the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. For  
long-lived assets held for sale, assets are written down to fair 
value, less cost to sell. Fair value is determined based on market 
evidence, discounted cash flows, appraised values or manage-
ment’s estimates, depending upon the nature of the assets.

on July 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the company’s 
aircraft to Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s 
Board of Directors and former President and ceo of the company 
for a purchase price of $20 million. During the second quarter of 
2014, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $6 million 
within other loss (income) in our consolidated statement of 
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to the customer of each service component as each component 
is earned. if the fair value to the customer for each service is not 
objectively determinable, management makes its best estimate 
of the services’ stand-alone selling price and records revenue as 
it is earned over the service period. For arrangements that include 
multiple services, fair value of the service components are determined 
using an analysis that considers cash consideration that would be  
received for instances when the service components are sold 
separately. advertising revenue is recognized when the page is run. 
subscription income is recognized over the related subscription period.

depreciation the costs of property and equipment are depre-
ciated using the straight-line method based upon the following 
estimated useful lives: buildings and improvements from 15 to 
40 years and equipment and furniture from 2 to 10 years. the 
costs of leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser 
of the useful lives or the terms of the respective leases.

adVertiSing expenSe the cost of advertising is expensed as 
incurred. we incurred $35 million, $41 million and $31 million in 
advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 
and 2012, respectively.

StocK-BaSed coMpenSation stock-based compensation 
expense is measured at the grant date based on the fair value 
of the award and is recognized over the requisite service period, 
which typically is the vesting period. stock-based compensation 
is classified as both operating-related expense and selling and 
general expense in the consolidated statements of income.

incoMe taxeS Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets 
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to 
be applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. we recognize 
liabilities for uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken 
in income tax returns. accrued interest and penalties related to 
unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in interest expense and 
operating expense, respectively.

Judgment is required in determining our provision for income 
taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and unrecognized tax 
benefits. in determining the need for a valuation allowance, the 
historical and projected financial performance of the operation 
that is recording a net deferred tax asset is considered along 
with any other pertinent information.

we file income tax returns in the U.s. federal jurisdiction, various 
states, and foreign jurisdictions, and we are routinely under audit 
by many different tax authorities. we believe that our accrual  
for tax liabilities is adequate for all open audit years based on  
our assessment of many factors including past experience and 
interpretations of tax law. this assessment relies on estimates  
and assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgments 
about future events. it is possible that examinations will be settled 
prior to December 31, 2015. if any of these tax audit settlements 
do occur within that period we would make any necessary  
adjustments to the accrual for unrecognized tax benefits. Until 
formal resolutions are reached between us and the tax authorities,  
the determination of a possible audit settlement range with 

if the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, 
a second step is performed which compares the implied fair value 
of the reporting unit’s goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwill. 
the fair value of the goodwill is determined based on the difference 
between the fair value of the reporting unit and the net fair value 
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the reporting unit. if the 
implied fair value of the goodwill is less than the carrying value, the 
difference is recognized as an impairment charge.

we evaluate the recoverability of indefinite-lived intangible assets 
by first performing a qualitative analysis evaluating whether any 
events and circumstances occurred that provide evidence that it 
is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired. 
if, based on our evaluation of the events and circumstances that 
occurred during the year we do not believe that it is more likely 
than not that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired, no quantitative  
impairment test is performed. conversely, if the results of our 
qualitative assessment determine that it is more likely than not 
that the indefinite-lived asset is impaired a quantitative impairment  
test is performed. if necessary, the impairment test is performed 
by comparing the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to 
its carrying value. if the indefinite-lived intangible asset carrying 
value exceeds its fair value, an impairment analysis is performed  
using the income approach. the fair value of loss is recognized in 
an amount equal to that excess.

significant judgments inherent in these analyses include estimating 
the amount and timing of future cash flows and the selection of 
appropriate discount rates, royalty rates and long-term growth rate 
assumptions. changes in these estimates and assumptions could 
materially affect the determination of fair value for each reporting 
unit and indefinite-lived intangible asset and could result in an 
impairment charge, which could be material to our financial  
position and results of operations.

we performed our impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite- 
lived intangible assets and concluded that no impairment existed 
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.  
as further discussed in note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures, we 
determined that during the year ended December 31, 2012, the 
goodwill at MHe’s school education group was impaired.

Foreign currency tranSlation we have operations in many 
foreign countries. For most international operations, the local 
currency is the functional currency. For international operations 
that are determined to be extensions of the parent company, the 
U.s. dollar is the functional currency. For local currency operations, 
assets and liabilities are translated into U.s. dollars using end of 
period exchange rates, and revenue and expenses are translated 
into U.s. dollars using weighted-average exchange rates. Foreign 
currency translation adjustments are accumulated in a separate 
component of equity.

reVenue recognition revenue is recognized as it is earned 
when services are rendered. we consider amounts to be earned 
once evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, services 
are performed, fees are fixed or determinable and collectability is 
reasonably assured. revenue relating to products that provide for 
more than one deliverable is recognized based upon the relative  
fair value to the customer of each deliverable as each deliverable  
is provided. revenue relating to agreements that provide for more  
than one service is recognized based upon the relative fair value 
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of the new standard is for the recognition of revenue to depict 
the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that 
reflect the payment to which the company expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services. the new standard will 
also result in enhanced revenue disclosures, provide guidance for 
transactions that were not previously addressed comprehensively 
and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements. the 
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that 
reporting period. early adoption is not permitted. we are currently 
in the process of assessing the impact the adoption of this  
guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements.

in april of 2014, the FasB issued final guidance that raises the 
threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discontinued operation 
and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations 
and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a 
discontinued operation. the guidance is intended to reduce the 
frequency of disposals reported as discontinued operations by 
focusing on strategic shifts that have or will have a major effect 
on an entity’s operations and financial results. in addition, the 
guidance permits companies to have continuing cash flows and 
significant continuing involvement with the disposed component. 
the FasB’s amended guidance is effective for our annual reporting 
period beginning January 1, 2015, however, early adoption is 
permitted. we do not expect the adoption of the guidance to have 
a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

in July of 2013, the FasB issued amended guidance that resolves 
the diversity in practice for the presentation of an unrecognized tax 
benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, 
or a tax credit carryforward exists. this new accounting guidance 
requires the netting of unrecognized tax benefits (“UtBs”) against 
a deferred tax asset for a loss or other carryforward that would 
apply in settlement of the uncertain tax positions. Under the new 
standard, UtBs will be netted against all available same-jurisdiction 
loss or other tax carryforwards that would be utilized, rather than 
only against carryforwards that are created by the UtBs. the new 
standard requires prospective adoption but allows retrospective 
adoption for all periods presented. the amendments were effective 
on January 1, 2014, and the adoption of the guidance did not have  
a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

in March of 2013, the FasB issued amended guidance that resolves 
the diversity in practice for the accounting for the cumulative transla-
tion adjustment upon derecognition of certain subsidiaries or groups 
of assets within a foreign entity. the amended guidance requires that 
when a parent entity ceases to have a controlling financial interest 
in a subsidiary or group of assets within a foreign entity, the parent 
is required to release any related cumulative translation adjustment 
into net income in instances when a sale or transfer results in the 
complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity in 
which the subsidiary or group of assets had resided. additionally, the 
amended guidance clarifies that the sale of an investment in a foreign 
entity includes both (1) events that result in the loss of a controlling 
financial interest in a foreign entity and (2) events that result in an 
acquirer obtaining control of an acquiree in which it held an equity 
interest immediately before the acquisition date. in these instances, 
an entity is required to release the cumulative translation adjustment 
into net income. the amendments were effective on January 1, 2014, 
and the adoption of the guidance did not have a significant impact on 
our consolidated financial statements.

respect to the impact on unrecognized tax benefits is not  
practicable. on the basis of present information, our opinion is 
that any assessments resulting from the current audits will not 
have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

redeeMaBle noncontrolling intereSt the agreement with 
the minority partners of our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint 
venture discussed in note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures, 
contains redemption features whereby interests held by our 
minority partners are redeemable both at the option of the holder 
and upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within our 
control. since redemption of the noncontrolling interest is outside 
of our control, this interest is presented on our consolidated balance 
sheets under the caption “redeemable noncontrolling interest.” 
if the interest were to be redeemed, we would be required to 
purchase all of such interest at fair value on the date of redemption. 
we adjust the redeemable noncontrolling interest each reporting 
period to its estimated redemption value, but never less than its 
initial fair value, using a combination of an income and market 
valuation approach. our income and market valuation approaches  
may incorporate level 3 measures for instances when observable  
inputs are not available, including assumptions related to expected 
future net cash flows, long-term growth rates, the timing and 
nature of tax attributes, and the redemption features. any  
adjustments to the redemption value will impact retained income. 
see note 8 – Equity, for further detail.

contingencieS we accrue for loss contingencies when both (a) 
information available prior to issuance of the financial statements 
indicates that it is probable that a liability had been incurred at the 
date of the financial statements and (b) the amount of loss can 
reasonably be estimated. we continually assess the likelihood of 
any adverse judgments or outcomes to our contingencies, as well 
as potential amounts or ranges of probable losses, and recognize 
a liability, if any, for these contingencies based on an analysis of 
each matter with the assistance of outside legal counsel and, if 
applicable, other experts. Because many of these matters are 
resolved over long periods of time, our estimate of liabilities may 
change due to new developments, changes in assumptions or 
changes in our strategy related to the matter. when we accrue 
for loss contingencies and the reasonable estimate of the loss is 
within a range, we record its best estimate within the range. we 
disclose an estimated possible loss or a range of loss when it is at 
least reasonably possible that a loss may have been incurred.

recent accounting StandardS in august of 2014, the Finan-
cial accounting standards Board (“FasB”) issued guidance that 
requires management to evaluate, at each annual and interim 
reporting period, whether there are conditions or events that 
raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a 
going concern within one year after the date the financial state-
ments are issued and provide related disclosures. this guidance 
is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2016, however, early adoption is permitted. we do not expect 
the adoption of this guidance to have a significant impact on our 
consolidated financial statements.

in May of 2014, the FasB and the international accounting standards 
Board (“iasB”) issued jointly a converged standard on the recognition  
of revenue from contracts with customers which is intended to 
improve the financial reporting of revenue and comparability of 
the top line in financial statements globally. the core principle 
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2013
For the year ended December 31, 2013, we paid cash for acquisitions,  
net of cash acquired, totaling $273 million. none of our acquisitions 
were material either individually or in the aggregate, including the 
pro forma impact on earnings. all acquisitions were funded with 
cash flows from operations. acquisitions completed during the 
year ended December 31, 2013 by segment included:

S&p dJ indices
  in December of 2013, we purchased the intellectual property  

rights to a range of commodities indices developed by 
goldman sachs as well as a limited-use license to promote 
the commodities indices using the goldman sachs commodity 
index trademarks.  the commodities indices provide us with a 
leading benchmark that measures general price movements 
and inflation in the world economy. we accounted for the 
acquisition of the intellectual property on a cost basis. 

S&p ratings
  in June of 2013, we made a voluntary open offer to purchase up 

to an additional 22.23% of the total equity shares outstanding in 
crisil limited (“crisil”), our majority owned indian credit rating 
agency within our s&P ratings segment. in august of 2013, at  
the conclusion of the tender offer period, we acquired approximately  
11 million equity shares representing 15.07% of crisil’s total 
outstanding equity shares for $214 million, increasing our 
ownership percentage in crisil to 67.84% from 52.77%.

Following crisil’s acquisition of coalition that occurred in July of 
2012, we made a contingent purchase price payment in 2013 for 
$12 million that has been reflected in the consolidated statement  
of cash flows as a financing activity.

intangible assets recorded for all transactions during 2013 are 
considered intangible assets with indefinite lives which are not 
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment annually during 
the fourth quarter each year or more frequently if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired.

2012
For the year ended December 31, 2012, we paid cash for acquisitions, 
net of cash acquired, totaling $177 million. none of our acquisitions 
were material either individually or in the aggregate, including the 
pro forma impact on earnings. all acquisitions were funded with 
cash flows from operations. acquisitions completed during the 
year ended December 31, 2012 by segment included:

S&p dJ indices
  on June 29, 2012, we closed our transaction with cMe group, 

inc. (“cMe group”) and cMe group index services llc (“cgis”), 
a joint venture between cMe group and Dow Jones & company, 
inc., to form a new company, s&P Dow Jones indices llc. see 
below for further detail related to this transaction.

S&p capital iQ
  on June 29, 2012, we acquired credit Market analysis limited 

(“cMa”) from the cMe group. cMa provides independent data 
concerning the over-the-counter markets. cMa’s data and 
technology will enhance our capability to provide pricing and 
related over-the-counter information.   

reclaSSiFication certain prior year amounts have been  
reclassified for comparability purposes.

2. acQuiSitionS and diVeStitureS
2014
For the year ended December 31, 2014, we paid cash for acqui-
sitions, net of cash acquired, totaling $82 million. none of our 
acquisitions were material either individually or in the aggregate, 
including the pro forma impact on earnings. all acquisitions were 
funded with cash flows from operations. acquisitions completed 
during the year ended December 31, 2014 by segment included:

S&p ratings
  in october of 2014, we acquired Brc investor services s.a. 

(“Brc”), a colombia-based ratings firm providing risk clas-
sifications of banks, financial services providers, insurance 
companies, corporate bonds and structured issues that will 
expand our presence in the latin american credit markets.  
we accounted for the acquisition of Brc using the purchase 
method of accounting.  the acquisition is not material to our 
consolidated financial statements.

  Following crisil’s acquisition of coalition Development ltd. 
(“coalition”) that occurred in July of 2012, we made a contin-
gent purchase price payment in 2014 for $11 million that has 
been reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows as 
a financing activity.

c&c
  in July of 2014, we acquired eclipse energy group as and its 

operating subsidiaries (“eclipse”), which provides a compre-
hensive suite of data and analytics products on the european 
natural gas and liquefied natural gas markets as well as a range 
of advisory services leveraging eclipse’s knowledge base, data 
capabilities, and modeling suite of products. this transaction 
complements our north american natural gas capabilities, 
which we obtained from our Bentek energy llc acquisition in 
2011. we accounted for the acquisition of eclipse using the 
purchase method of accounting. the acquisition of eclipse is 
not material to our consolidated financial statements.

S&p dJ indices
  in March of 2014, we acquired the intellectual property of a 

family of Broad Market indices (“BMi”) from citigroup global 
Markets inc. the BMi provides a broad measure of the global 
equities markets which includes approximately 11,000 compa-
nies in more than 52 countries covering both developed and 
emerging markets. we accounted for the acquisition of the 
intellectual property on a cost basis and it was not material to 
our consolidated financial statements.

For acquisitions during 2014 that were accounted for using the 
purchase method, the excess of the purchase price over the 
fair value of the net assets acquired is allocated to goodwill and 
other intangibles. intangible assets recorded for all transactions 
are amortized using the straight-line method for periods not 
exceeding 7 years. none of the goodwill acquired from our  
acquisitions during 2014 will be deductible for tax purposes.
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allocation oF purcHaSe price Because we consolidate s&P 
Dow Jones indices llc, we have applied the purchase method 
of accounting to the s&P Dow Jones indices llc contributed 
business. DJi’s results of operations have been included in our 
consolidated results of operations subsequent to June 29, 2012 
(the “acquisition Date”).

the fair value of the DJi business acquired of $792 million was  
estimated by applying a market approach and an income approach. 
this fair value measurement is based on significant inputs not 
observable in the market and thus represents a level 3 measurement.  
the fair value estimates of the proportionate shares of the  
contributed businesses are based on, but not limited to, future 
expected cash flows, appropriate discount rates ranging from  
10% to 11%, long term growth rates of 2.5% to 3.5%, assumed  
financial multiples of companies deemed to be similar to the DJi, 
and market rate assumptions for contractual obligations. s&P  
index continues to be recorded at its historical or carry-over basis. 

at the acquisition Date, our noncontrolling interest has been 
recorded at the fair value of DJi we acquired plus the proportionate 
interest of the s&P index business at our carry-over basis. as of 
June 30, 2012, we recorded a redeemable noncontrolling interest 
in our consolidated financial statements (see note 8 – Equity for 
further discussion) at the preliminary fair value of 27% of s&P 
Dow Jones indices llc or $792 million due to the redemption 
provisions described above, representing cMe group’s and cgis’ 
interest in s&P Dow Jones indices llc. 

the tables below present the consideration transferred and the 
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities of the 
DJi business acquired as a result of the transaction.

consideration transferred

(in millions) 

Fair value of 27% of s&P index $ 571 
Fair value of redeemable noncontrolling interest  
 associated with net assets acquired  221 

total   $ 792 

purchase price allocation

(in millions) 

current assets $ 79 
intangible assets: 
     indefinite-lived intangibles  470 
     customer relationships  110 
 other intangibles  33 
 goodwill  111 
current liabilities  (11 )

  total net assets $ 792

the intangible assets, excluding goodwill and indefinite-lived 
intangibles, will be amortized over their anticipated useful lives 
of between 5 and 20 years.

incoMe taxeS we are responsible for the tax matters for s&P 
Dow Jones indices llc, including the filing of returns and the 
administration of any proceedings with taxing authorities. For 
U.s. federal income tax purposes, s&P Dow Jones indices llc is 
treated as a partnership. the income of s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc flows through and is subject to tax at the partners’ level. 

  on april 3, 2012, we completed the acquisition of QuantHouse,  
an independent global provider of end-to-end systematic low- 
latency market data solutions. the acquisition allows us to offer 
real-time monitors, derived data sets and analytics as well as the 
ability to package and resell this data as part of a core solution. 

  on February 8, 2012, we completed the acquisition of r² tech-
nologies (“r²”). r² provides advanced risk and scenario-based 
analytics to traders, portfolio and risk managers for pricing, 
hedging and capital management across asset classes. 

c&c
  on november 1, 2012, we completed the acquisition of Kingsman 

sa (“Kingsman”), a privately-held, switzerland-based provider of 
price information and analytics for the global sugar and biofuels 
markets. the acquisition of Kingsman will expand our presence in 
sugar and biofuels information markets and has the potential to 
provide growth in the global agricultural information markets.  

S&p ratings
  on July 4, 2012, crisil, our majority owned indian credit rating 

agency, completed the acquisition of coalition, a privately-held 
U.K. analytics company, and its subsidiaries. coalition provides 
high-end analytics to leading global investment banks and 
other financial services firms. coalition has been integrated  
into crisil’s global research & analytics business.

our acquisitions during 2012 were accounted for using the purchase 
method. Under the purchase method, the excess of the purchase 
price over the fair value of the net assets acquired is allocated to 
goodwill and other intangibles. intangible assets recorded for all 
transactions are amortized using the straight-line method for 
periods not exceeding 20 years. none of the goodwill acquired from 
our acquisitions during 2012 will be deductible for tax purposes.

acquisition of dow Jones index Business 
we own 73% and cMe group and cgis collectively own 27% of 
s&P Dow Jones llc.  in exchange for their 27% minority interest, 
cMe group and cgis contributed their Dow Jones index (“DJi”) 
business; in exchange for our 73% and controlling interest, we 
contributed our standard & Poor’s index (“s&P index”) business. 
the DJi business focuses on the development of financial bench-
marks used by licensees to create exchange-traded funds, option 
contracts and futures contracts traded on exchanges as well as 
used as a metric to evaluate economic performance. the combi-
nation of these businesses creates the world’s premier provider of 
financial market indices; we expect to increase revenue through 
international and asset-class expansion, new product develop-
ment, enhanced market data offerings and increased cross-selling 
opportunities. the pro forma impact on revenue and earnings from 
our joint venture with the DJi business was not material to our 
consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2012.

the terms of the operating agreement of s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc contain redemption features whereby interests held by minority 
partners are redeemable. see note 8 – Equity for further discussion.

acQuiSition-related expenSeS During the year ended 
December 31, 2013, we incurred $15 million of acquisition-related 
costs related to the formation of s&P Dow Jones indices llc. 
these expenses are included in selling and general expenses in 
our consolidated statement of income.
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  on september 30, 2013, we completed the sale of Financial  
communications, which was part of our s&P capital iQ segment.

  on august 27, 2013, crisil sold its 49% equity interest in india 
index services & Products ltd. this investment was held within 
our s&P ratings segment.

  on august 1, 2013, we completed the sale aviation week within our   
c&c segment to Penton, a privately held business information company.  

additionally, s&P capital iQ closed several of their non-core businesses  
during 2013.

we did not complete any dispositions during the year ended 
December 31, 2012. 

dISContInued opeRAtIonS
on november 3, 2014, we completed the sale of Mcgraw Hill  
construction, which has historically been part of the c&c segment, to 
symphony technology group for $320 million in cash completing the 
portfolio rationalization to create Mcgraw Hill Financial. we recorded an 
after-tax gain on the sale of $160 million, which is included in income 
from discontinued operations, net of tax in the consolidated statement of 
income for the year ended December 31, 2014. we intend to use a 
portion of the after-tax proceeds to make selective acquisitions,  
investments, share repurchases and for general corporate purposes. 

on March 22, 2013, we completed the sale of MHe to investment 
funds affiliated with apollo global Management, llc for a purchase 
price of $2.4 billion in cash. we recorded an after-tax gain on the sale 
of  $589 million, which is included in discontinued operations, net in 
the consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 
31, 2013. we have used a portion of the after-tax proceeds from the 
sale to pay down short-term debt, for the special dividend paid in 
2012, and to continue share repurchases. we intend to continue to 
use a portion of the after-tax proceeds to make selective acquisitions, 
investments, share repurchases and for general corporate purposes.  

the key components of income from discontinued operations 
consist of the following:

However, s&P Dow Jones indices llc incurs current and deferred 
income taxes in a limited number of states and localities and 
its foreign subsidiaries incur immaterial current and deferred 
foreign income taxes.

we recognized $216 million of non-current deferred tax liabilities  
in connection with cMe group and cgis acquiring an indirect 
noncontrolling interest in the s&P index business in exchange 
for our acquisition of a portion of our interest in the DJi business.  
Because we maintained control of the s&P index business, the 
excess of fair value received over historical carrying value and the 
related tax impact were recorded in additional paid-in capital.

goodwill and identiFiaBle intangiBleS goodwill consists 
primarily of intangible assets that do not qualify for separate 
recognition, including assembled workforce, noncontractual 
relationships and agreements. the goodwill is not expected to  
be deductible for tax purposes.

non-cash investing activities
liabilities assumed in conjunction with the acquisition of businesses  
are as follows:
    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

Fair value of assets acquired $ 67 $ — $ 1,071
Fair value of consideration  
 transferred for DJi business  —  —  792
cash paid (net of cash acquired)  52  —  177

liabilities assumed 1 $ 15 $ — $ 102

1 2013 acquisitions did not result in any liabilities assumed.

dIveStItuReS - ContInuInG opeRAtIonS
During the year ended December 31, 2014, we completed  
the following dispositions that resulted in a net pre-tax loss 
of $9 million, which was included in other loss (income) in the 
consolidated statement of income:

  on July 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the company’s 
aircraft to Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s  
Board of Directors and former President and ceo of the 
company for a purchase price of $20 million. During the second 
quarter of 2014, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge 
of $6 million within other (income) loss in our consolidated 
statement of income as a result of the pending sale. see note 
13 — Related Party Transactions for further information.

  on June 30, 2014, we completed the sale of our data center 
to Quality technology services, llc which owns, operates and 
manages data centers. net proceeds from the sale of $58 million 
were received in July 2014. the sale includes all of the facilities 
and equipment on the south campus of our east windsor, new 
Jersey location, inclusive of the rights and obligations associated 
with an adjoining solar power field. the sale resulted in an expense 
of $3 million recorded within other loss (income) in our consoli-
dated statement of income, which is in addition to the non-cash 
impairment charge we recorded in the fourth quarter of 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we completed the 
following dispositions that resulted in a net pre-tax gain of  
$24 million, which was included in other loss (income) in the 
consolidated statement of income:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

revenue  $ 139  $ 441  $ 2,242 
expenses  110   436   2,426 

 operating income (loss)  29   5   (184 )
interest expense (income), net  —   2   (2 )

 income (loss) before taxes on income (loss)  29   3   (182 )
Provision for taxes on income (loss)  11   —   27 

 Income (loss) from discontinued  
  operations, net of tax  18   3   (209 )

Pre-tax gain on sale from discontinued  
 operations  289   888   — 
Provision for taxes on gain on sale  129   299   — 

 Gain on sale of discontinued  
  operations, net of tax  160   589   — 

 discontinued operations, net  178   592   (209 )

 less: net (loss) income attributable  
  to noncontrolling interests  —   (1 )  5 

 Income (loss) from discontinued  
  operations attributable to  
  McGraw Hill Financial, Inc.  
  common shareholders $ 178  $ 593  $ (214 )



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 49 48 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

3. goodwill and otHer intangiBle aSSetS
GoodwIll
goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs over the value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable  
intangible assets of businesses acquired.

the change in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment is shown below:

    s&P s&P s&P 
(in millions) ratings capital iQ DJ indices c&c total

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 130  $ 457  $ 380  $ 468  $ 1,435 
 Dispositions  —   (3 )  (4 )  (29 )  (36 )
 other (primarily Fx)  (5 )  15   —   —   10 

Balance as of December 31, 2013  125   469   376   439   1,409 

 acquisitions  4   —   —   38   42 
 Dispositions  —   —   —   (32 )  (32 )
 other (primarily Fx)  (7 )  (17 )  —   (8 )  (32 )

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 122  $ 452  $ 376  $ 437  $ 1,387

goodwill additions and dispositions in the table above relate to transactions discussed in note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures.

otHeR IntAnGIBle ASSetS
other intangible assets include both indefinite-lived assets not subject to amortization and definite-lived assets subject to amortization. 
we have indefinite-lived assets with a carrying value of $693 million and $634 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, 
that consist of:

  $380 million and $90 million, for Dow Jones indices intellectual property and the Dow Jones tradename, respectively, that we recorded 
as part of the transaction to form s&P Dow Jones indices llc in 2012 further described in note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures;

  $164 million within our c&c segment for the J.D. Power and associates tradename;
  $44 million within our s&P Dow Jones indices segment for the Broad Market indices intellectual property; and
  $15 million within our s&P Dow Jones indices segment for the goldman sachs commodity index intellectual property.

results from discontinued operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 included the after-tax gain on sale of 
Mcgraw Hill construction of $160 million.

results from discontinued operations for the year ended December 
31, 2013 included the after-tax gain on sale of MHe of $589 million.

results from discontinued operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 included several non-recurring items:

  intangible asset impairments of $497 million that consisted of 
goodwill, prepublication and inventory assets at MHe’s school 
education group (“seg”). 

 –  as a result of the offer we received from apollo global 
Management, llc in the fourth quarter of 2012, we performed 
a goodwill impairment review at MHe, which  resulted in a full 
impairment of goodwill of $478 million at seg. 

 –  an impairment charge of $19 million was recorded on 
certain prepublication and inventory assets as targeted 
school programs were shut down.  

  restructuring charges of $39 million consisting primarily  
of employee severance costs related to a workforce reduction 
of approximately 530 positions. 

  Direct transaction costs of $17 million for legal and professional 
fees related to the sale of MHe.

  a charge related to a lease commitment of $3 million. 
  these charges were partially offset by a vacation accrual 

reversal of $17 million related to a change in our vacation policy.

the components of assets and liabilities held for sale related 
to Mcgraw Hill construction in the consolidated balance sheet 
consist of the following:

(in millions) December 31, 2013

accounts receivable, net $ 30
goodwill   3
other assets  3

 assets held for sale $ 36

 
accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 13
Unearned revenue  41

 liabilities held for sale $ 54
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the following table summarizes our definite-lived intangible assets:

(in millions) Databases and  customer  other 
Cost   software content relationships tradenames intangibles total

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 126  $ 139  $ 225  $ 45  $ 159  $ 694

 acquisitions  —   —   —   —   44   44
     Dispositions  (9 )  —   —   —   (13 )  (22 )
     impairment 1  —   —   —   —   (26 )  (26 )
     other (primarily Fx)  (2 )  —   —   —   (6 )  (8 )

Balance as of December 31, 2013  115   139   225   45   158   682

 acquisitions  —   —   —   —   13   13
     transfers  —   —   —   —   (44 )  (44 )
     other (primarily Fx)  (2 )  —   3   1   (16 )  (14 )

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 113  $ 139  $ 228  $ 46  $ 111  $ 637

Accumulated amortization                

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 80  $ 31  $ 55  $ 30  $ 49  $ 245

 current year amortization  9   14   11   2   15   51
     Dispositions  (6 )  —   —   —   (9 )  (15 )
     other (primarily Fx)  —   —   1   —   1   2

Balance as of December 31, 2013  83   45   67   32   56   283

 current year amortization  6   14   13   3   12   48
     other (primarily Fx)  (1 )  —   —   —   (4 )  (5 )

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 88  $ 59  $ 80  $ 35  $ 64  $ 326

net definite-lived intangibles:

December 31, 2013 $ 32  $ 94  $ 158  $ 13  $ 102  $ 399
December 31, 2014 $ 25  $ 80  $ 148  $ 11  $ 47  $ 311

1 we incurred a $26 million non-cash impairment charge associated with an intangible asset acquired through the formation of our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture.

Definite-lived intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line 
basis over periods of up to 40 years. the weighted-average life of the 
intangible assets as of December 31, 2014 is approximately 10 years. 
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 
and 2012, and the projected amortization expense for intangible 
assets over the next five years for the years ended December 31, 
assuming no further acquisitions or dispositions, is as follows:

    amortization  expected amortization 
(in millions) expense expense

2012   $ 48    
2013    51    
2014    48    
2015     $ 47  
2016      47 
2017      44 
2018      37 
2019      29 

4. taxeS on incoMe
income before taxes on income resulted from domestic and 
foreign operations is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

Domestic operations $ (423 ) $ 821 $ 800 
Foreign operations  477   478  289 

 total continuing income before taxes $ 54  $ 1,299 $ 1,089 

the provision/(benefit) for taxes on income consists of the following:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

Federal:        
 current $ 285  $ 194  $ 181 
 Deferred  (213 )  51   73 

  total federal  72   245   254 

Foreign:        
 current  135   152   91 
 Deferred  1   (19 )  (9 )

  total foreign  136   133   82 

state and local:        
 current  62   37   38 
 Deferred  (25 )  10   14 

  total state and local  37   47   52 

total provision for taxes for  
 continuing operations  245   425   388 

 Provision for discontinued  
  operations  140   299   27 

total provision for taxes $ 385  $ 724  $ 415
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we made net income tax payments for continuing and discontinued  
operations totaling $419 million in 2014, $787 million in 2013, 
and $243 million in 2012. as of December 31, 2014, we had net 
operating loss carryforwards of $125 million, which will expire  
over various periods.

a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of  
unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

Balance at beginning of year $ 82  $ 74  $ 58 
 additions based on tax positions  
  related to the current year  30   27   14 
 additions for tax positions of prior years 33   10   3 
 reduction for tax positions of prior years (11 )  (9 )  (1 )
 reduction for settlements  (16 )  (20 )  — 

Balance at end of year $ 118  $ 82  $ 74 

the total amount of federal, state and local, and foreign unrecognized  
tax benefits as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $118 
million, $82 million and $74 million, respectively, exclusive of  
interest and penalties. the increase of $52 million in 2014  
(excluding settlements) is the amount of unrecognized tax  
benefits that unfavorably impacted tax expense. the unfavorable 
impact to the tax provision was partially offset by the resolution  
of tax audits in multiple jurisdictions.

we recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized 
tax benefits in interest expense and operating-related expense, 
respectively. in addition to the unrecognized tax benefits, as 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had $23 million and $19 
million, respectively, of accrued interest and penalties associated 
with uncertain tax positions.

During 2014, we completed the federal income tax audit for 2012 
and made U.s. federal income tax payments in settlement of tax 
years 2011 and 2012.  the U.s. federal income tax audits for 2013 
and 2014 are in process. During 2013, we made a U.s. federal 
income tax payment in settlement of an issue related to tax years 
2007 through 2010. also during 2014, we completed various state 
and foreign tax audits and, with few exceptions, we are no longer 
subject to federal, state and local, or non-U.s. income tax  
examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006. the 
impact to tax expense in 2014, 2013 and 2012 was not material.

we file income tax returns in the U.s. federal jurisdiction, various 
states, and foreign jurisdictions, and we are routinely under audit by 
many different tax authorities. we believe that our accrual for tax 
liabilities is adequate for all open audit years based on an assessment 
of many factors including past experience and interpretations of 
tax law. this assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and 
may involve a series of complex judgments about future events. it 
is possible that tax examinations will be settled prior to December 
31, 2015. if any of these tax audit settlements do occur within that 
period, we would make any necessary adjustments to the accrual 
for unrecognized tax benefits. Until formal resolutions are reached 
between us and the tax authorities, the determination of a possible 
audit settlement range with respect to the impact on unrecognized 
tax benefits is not practicable.

a reconciliation of the U.s. federal statutory income tax rate to our 
effective income tax rate for financial reporting purposes is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

     2014  2013  2012

U.s. federal statutory income tax rate  35.0 %  35.0 %  35.0 %
legal and regulatory settlements  524.1   —   — 
state and local income taxes  64.2   2.8   3.5 
Foreign operations  (79.6 )  (3.9 )  (2.7 )
s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture  (60.2 )  (2.0 )  (1.1 )
tax credits and incentives  (91.5 )  (2.1 )  (2.4 )
other, net  61.7   2.9   3.3 

 effective income tax rate for  
  continuing operations  453.7 %  32.7 %  35.6 %

the principal temporary differences between the accounting 
for income and expenses for financial reporting and income tax 
purposes are as follows:

    December 31,

(in millions)    2014  2013

Deferred tax assets:     
 legal and regulatory settlements $ 305  $ 6 
 employee compensation  98   72 
 accrued expenses  107   136 
 Postretirement benefits  140   32 
 Unearned revenue  24   55 
 allowance for doubtful accounts  12   15 
 loss carryforwards  29   28 
 other   12   10 

  total deferred tax assets  727   354 

Deferred tax liabilities:     
 goodwill and intangible assets 1  (377 )  (379 )
 Fixed assets  (11 )  (55 )
 other   —   — 

  total deferred tax liabilities  (388 )  (434 )

net deferred income tax asset (liability)  
 before valuation allowance  339   (80 )
 valuation allowance  (12 )  (5 )

net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 327  $ (85 )

reported as:     
 current deferred tax assets $ 363  $ 108 
 current deferred tax liabilities  (2 )  (10 )
 non-current deferred tax assets  22   23 
 non-current deferred tax liabilities  (56 )  (206 )

net deferred income tax asset (liability) $ 327  $ (85 )

1  see note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures for further discussion regarding the  
impact related to the s&P Dow Jones indices llc.

we record valuation allowances against deferred income tax 
assets when we determine that it is more likely than not based 
upon all the available evidence that such deferred income tax 
assets will not be realized. the valuation allowance is primarily 
related to operating losses.

we have not recorded deferred income taxes applicable to undistrib-
uted earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested 
in foreign operations. Undistributed earnings that are indefinitely 
reinvested in foreign operations amounted to $1,239 million at 
December 31, 2014. Quantification of the deferred tax liability, if any, 
associated with indefinitely reinvested earnings is not practicable.
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Based on the current status of income tax audits, we believe that 
the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits may significantly 
decrease in the next twelve months. although the ultimate  
resolution of our tax audits is unpredictable, the resulting 
change in our unrecognized tax benefits could have a material 
impact on our results of operations and/or cash flows.

5. deBt
a summary of short-term and long-term debt outstanding is as 
follows:

    December 31,

(in millions)    2014  2013

5.9% senior notes, due 2017 1 $ 400  $ 400 
6.55% senior notes, due 2037 2  399   399 
commercial paper  —   — 

total debt  799   799 

 less: short-term debt including  
  current maturities  —   — 

long-term debt $ 799  $ 799 

1  interest payments are due semiannually on april 15 and october 15, and as of  
December 31, 2014, the unamortized debt discount is less than $1 million.

2  interest payments are due semiannually on May 15 and november 15, and as of  
December 31, 2014, the unamortized debt discount is approximately $1 million. 

annual long-term debt maturities are scheduled as follows 
based on book values as of December 31, 2014: no amounts due 
from 2015 – 2016, approximately $400 million due in 2017 and 
approximately $399 million due thereafter.

currently, we have the ability to borrow a total of $1.0 billion 
through our commercial paper program, which is supported by 
our $1.0 billion four-year credit agreement (our “credit facility”) 
that we entered into in June 2013 and will terminate on June 19, 
2017. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had no outstanding 
commercial paper. 

we pay a commitment fee of 20 to 45 basis points for our credit 
facility, depending on our indebtedness to cash flow ratio, whether 
or not amounts have been borrowed and currently pay a commit-
ment fee of 20 basis points. the interest rate on borrowings under 
our credit facility is, at our option, calculated using rates that are 
primarily based on either the prevailing london inter-Bank offer 
rate, the prime rate determined by the administrative agent or 
the Federal Funds rate. For certain borrowings under this credit 
facility there is also a spread based on our indebtedness to cash 
flow ratio added to the applicable rate. 

our credit facility contains certain covenants. the only financial 
covenant requires that our indebtedness to cash flow ratio, as 
defined in our credit facility, is not greater than 3.25 to 1, and 
this covenant has never been exceeded.

6. eMployee BeneFitS
we maintain a number of active defined contribution retirement 
plans for our employees. the majority of our defined benefit 
plans are frozen. as a result, no new employees will be permitted 
to enter these plans and no additional benefits for current 
participants in the frozen plans will be accrued.

we also have supplemental benefit plans that provide senior 
management with supplemental retirement, disability and death 
benefits. certain supplemental retirement benefits are based on 
final monthly earnings. in addition, we sponsor voluntary 401(k) 
plans under which we may match employee contributions up to 
certain levels of compensation as well as profit-sharing plans 
under which we contribute a percentage of eligible employees’ 
compensation to the employees’ accounts.

we also provide certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits 
for active and retired employees and eligible dependents. the 
medical and dental plans and supplemental life insurance plan are 
contributory, while the basic life insurance plan is noncontributory. 
we currently do not prefund any of these plans.

we recognize the funded status of our retirement and postretirement 
plans in the consolidated balance sheets, with a corresponding 
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income, net of 
taxes. the amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income 
represent net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior 
service costs. these amounts will be subsequently recognized as  
net periodic pension cost pursuant to our accounting policy for 
amortizing such amounts.

as part of the sale of Mcgraw Hill construction and MHe, 
described further in note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures, 
we retained the benefit obligations and plan assets related to 
Mcgraw Hill construction and MHe; however, the benefit cost  
for periods presented is bifurcated between continuing and 
discontinued operations.
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BeneFIt oBlIGAtIon
a summary of the benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, as well as the funded status for the retirement and postretirement 
plans as of December 31, is as follows (benefits paid in the table below include only those amounts contributed directly to or paid directly 
from plan assets):

    retirement Plans Postretirement Plans

(in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013 

net benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,004  $ 2,171  $ 103  $ 129 
 service cost  5   10   1   2 
 interest cost  99   91   4   5 
 Plan participants’ contributions  —   —   4   4 
 actuarial loss (gain)  504   (178 )  5   (13 )
 gross benefits paid  (125 )  (77 )  (13 )  (13 )
 Foreign currency effect  (25 )  8   —   — 
 curtailment 1  —   (26 )  —   (11 )
 other adjustments  —   5   (8 )  — 

net benefit obligation at end of year  2,462   2,004   96   103 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  2,088   1,851   —   — 
actual return on plan assets  270   281   —   — 
employer contributions  22   27   9   9 
Plan participants’ contributions  —   —   4   4 
gross benefits paid  (125 )  (77 )  (13 )  (13 )
Foreign currency effect  (19 )  6   —   — 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year  2,236   2,088   —   — 

Funded status $ (226 ) $ 84  $ (96 ) $ (103 )

Amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheets:
 non-current assets $ 28  $ 261  $ —  $ — 
 current liabilities  (8 )  (7 )  (9 )  (9 )
 non-current liabilities  (246 )  (170 )  (87 )  (94 )

    $ (226 ) $ 84  $ (96 ) $ (103 )

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 2,440  $ 2,004

plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of the fair value of plan assets:
 Projected benefit obligation $ 2,046  $ 176       
 accumulated benefit obligation $ 2,024  $ 158       
 Fair value of plan assets $ 1,792  $ —       
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
 net actuarial loss (gain) $ 452  $ 227  $ (8 ) $ (11 )
 Prior service credit  1   1   (5 )  (1 )

 total recognized $ 453  $ 228  $ (13 ) $ (12 )

1  the curtailment gain for our retirement plans in 2013 relates to a freeze of pension accruals for MHe employees as well as all remaining active employees in the United Kingdom 
(“U.K.”). the curtailment gain for our postretirement plans relates to the sale of MHe on March 22, 2013.

the actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive loss for our retirement plans and expected to be recognized in net  
periodic pension cost during the year ending December 31, 2015 is $21 million. there is no prior service credit included in accumulated  
other comprehensive loss for our retirement plans expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost during the year ending 
December 31, 2015.

there is no actuarial loss and an immaterial amount of prior service credit included in accumulated other comprehensive loss for our 
postretirement plans expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost during the year ending December 31, 2015.
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net peRIodIC CoSt
For purposes of determining annual pension cost, prior service costs are being amortized straight-line over the average expected 
remaining lifetime of plan participants expected to receive benefits.

a summary of net periodic benefit cost for our retirement and postretirement plans for the years ended December 31, is as follows:

    retirement Plans Postretirement Plans

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

service cost $ 5  $ 10  $ 24  $ 1  $ 2  $ 3 
interest cost  99   91   93   4   5   5 
expected return on assets  (138 )  (129 )  (124 )  —   —   — 
amortization of:                 
 actuarial loss (gain)  11   26   32   (1 )  —   — 
 Prior service cost (credit)  —   5   (1 )  —   (1 )  (1 )
curtailment 1  —   (8 )  —   (1 )  (12 )  — 

net periodic benefit cost $ (23 ) $ (5 ) $ 24  $ 3  $ (6 ) $ 7 

1  the curtailment gain for our retirement plans in 2013 relates to a freeze of pension accruals for MHe employees as well as all remaining active employees in the United Kingdom 
(“U.K.”). the curtailment gain for our postretirement plans in 2014 is a result of plan changes effective october 31, 2014 eliminating retiree medical and life insurance benefits for 
active employees not retiring by July 1, 2016. the curtailment gain for our postretirement plans in 2013 relates to the sale of MHe on March 22, 2013.

our U.K. retirement plan accounted for a benefit of $8 million in 2014, $10 million in 2013, including the $8 million curtailment gain 
discussed above, and $3 million in 2012 of the net periodic benefit cost attributable to the funded plans.

other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income, net of tax for the years ended 
December 31, are as follows:

    retirement Plans Postretirement Plans

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

net actuarial loss (gain) $ 232  $ (213 ) $ 116  $ 3  $ (8 ) $ 2 
recognized actuarial (gain) loss  (7 )  (15 )  (20 )  1   —   — 
Prior service cost (credit)  —   5   2   (5 )  —   1 

 total recognized $ 225  $ (223 ) $ 98  $ (1 ) $ (8 ) $ 3 

the total cost for our retirement plans was $81 million for 2014, $96 million for 2013 and $129 million for 2012. included in the total 
retirement plans cost are defined contribution plans cost of $74 million for 2014, $75 million for 2013 and $86 million for 2012.

ASSuMptIonS
    retirement Plans Postretirement Plans

    2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

Benefit obligation:                 
 Discount rate  4.15 %  5.00 %  4.10 %  3.60 %  4.20 %  3.45 %
net periodic cost:                 
 weighted-average healthcare cost rate 1           7.0 %  7.0 %  7.5 %
 Discount rate - U.s. plan 2  5.0 %  4.1 %  5.1 %  4.125 %  3.45 %  4.45 %
 Discount rate - U.K. plan 2  4.5 %  4.8 %  5.1 %         
 compensation increase factor - U.s. plan  n/A   n/a   4.5 %         
 compensation increase factor - U.K. plan  n/A   5.75 %  5.85 %         
 return on assets 3  7.125 %  7.25 %  7.75 %         

1  the assumed weighted-average healthcare cost trend rate will decrease ratably from 7% in 2014 to 5% in 2020 and remain at that level thereafter. assumed healthcare cost trends 
have an effect on the amounts reported for the healthcare plans. a one percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend creates the following effects:

 (in millions) 1% point increase 1% point decrease

 effect on postretirement obligation $ 5  $ (4 )

2  effective January 1, 2015, we changed our discount rate assumption on our U.s. retirement plans to 4.15% from 5.0% in 2014 and changed our discount rate assumption on our U.K. 
plan to 3.8% from 4.5% in 2014.

3  the expected return on assets assumption is calculated based on the plan’s asset allocation strategy and projected market returns over the long-term. effective January 1, 2015,  
we changed our return on assets assumption to 6.25% from 7.125% for the U.s. plan in 2014 and to 6.25% from 6.75% for the U.K. plan in 2014.

in addition to the assumptions in the above table, assumed mortality is also a key assumption in determining benefit obligations.  
at December 31, 2014, the company updated the assumed mortality rates to reflect life expectancy improvements.
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CASH FlowS
in December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, improvement and Modernization act of 2003 (the “act”) was enacted. the act 
established a prescription drug benefit under Medicare, known as “Medicare Part D”, and a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree 
healthcare benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. our benefits provided to 
certain participants are at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D, and, accordingly, we are entitled to a subsidy.

expected employer contributions in 2015 are $15 million for our retirement plans and $10 million for our postretirement plans. in 2015, 
we may elect to make additional non-required contributions depending on investment performance and the pension plan status. infor-
mation about the expected cash flows for our retirement and postretirement plans and the impact of the Medicare subsidy is as follows:

 Postretirement Plans 2

    retirement 1 gross  retiree Medicare  
(in millions) Plans  payments contributions subsidy net payments

2015   $ 84  $ 15  $ (5 ) $ (1 ) $ 9 
2016    88   15   (5 )  (1 )  9 
2017    92   15   (5 )  (1 )  9 
2018    96   15   (5 )  (1 )  9 
2019    100   14   (5 )  (1 )  8 
2020-2024  553   52   (15 )  (3 )  34 

1 reflects the total benefits expected to be paid from the plans or from our assets including both our share of the benefit cost and the participants’ share of the cost.

2 reflects the total benefits expected to be paid from our assets.

FAIR vAlue oF plAn ASSetS
in accordance with authoritative guidance for fair value measurements certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at 
fair value. Fair value is defined as the amount that would be received for selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants. a fair value hierarchy has been established which requires us to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. the three levels of inputs used to measure 
fair value are as follows:

  level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  level 2 - observable inputs other than level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in 

markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially 
the full term of the assets or liabilities.

  level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the 
assets or liabilities.

the fair value of our defined benefit plans assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, by asset class is as follows:

 December 31, 2014

(in millions)   total level 1 level 2 level 3

cash and short-term investments $ 176  $ 17  $ 159  $ — 
equities:           
 U.s. indexes 1  293   88   205   — 
 U.s. growth and value  204   147   57   — 
 U.K.   67   56   11   — 
 international, excluding U.K.  139   42   97   — 
Fixed income:           
 long duration strategy 2  1,165   —   1,165   — 
 intermediate duration securities  25   —   25   — 
 agency mortgage backed securities  6   —   6   — 
 asset backed securities  18   —   18   — 
 non-agency mortgage backed securities 3  37   —   37   — 
 U.K. 4   7   —   7   — 
 international, excluding U.K.  85   —   85   — 
other    14   —   14   — 

total   $ 2,236  $ 350  $ 1,886  $ — 



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 55 54 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

 December 31, 2013

(in millions)   total level 1 level 2 level 3

cash, short-term investments, and other $ 68  $ 20  $ 48  $ —
equities:          
 U.s. indexes 1  514   145   369   —
 U.s. growth and value  373   325   48   —
 U.K.   183   101   82   —
 international, excluding U.K.  227   131   96   —
Fixed income:          
 long duration strategy 2  517   —   517   —
 intermediate duration securities  11   —   11   —
 agency mortgage backed securities  7   —   7   —
 asset backed securities  16   —   16   —
 non-agency mortgage backed securities 3  45   —   45   —
 U.K. 4   66   —   66   —
 international, excluding U.K.  61   —   61   —

total   $ 2,088  $ 722  $ 1,366  $ —

1 includes securities that are tracked in the following indexes: s&P 500, s&P Midcap 400, s&P Midcap 400 growth and s&P smallcap 600.

2 includes securities that are investment grade obligations of issuers in the U.s.

3 includes U.s. mortgage-backed securities that are not backed by the U.s. government.

4 includes securities originated by the government of and other issuers from the U.K.

For securities that are quoted in active markets, the trustee/
custodian determines fair value by applying securities’ prices 
obtained from its pricing vendors. For commingled funds that 
are not actively traded, the trustee applies pricing information 
provided by investment management firms to the unit quantities 
of such funds. investment management firms employ their own 
pricing vendors to value the securities underlying each commin-
gled fund. Underlying securities that are not actively traded 
derive their prices from investment managers, which in turn, 
employ vendors that use pricing models (e.g., discounted cash 
flow, comparables). the domestic defined benefit plans have no 
investment in our stock, except through the s&P 500 commin-
gled index fund.

penSIon tRuStS’ ASSet AlloCAtIonS
there are two pension trusts, one in the U.s. and one in the U.K.

  the U.s. pension trust had assets of $1.8 billion and $1.7 
billion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 
the target allocations in 2014 include 26% domestic equities, 
6% international equities, and 68% debt securities and  
short-term investments.

  the U.K. pension trust had assets of $443 million and $399 
million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 
the target allocations in 2014 include 30% equities, 40% 
diversified growth funds and 30% fixed income. 

the pension assets are invested with the goal of producing a 
combination of capital growth, income and a liability hedge.  
the mix of assets is established after consideration of the  
long-term performance and risk characteristics of asset classes. 
investments are selected based on their potential to enhance 
returns, preserve capital and reduce overall volatility. Holdings 
are diversified within each asset class. the portfolios employ a 
mix of index and actively managed equity strategies by market 
capitalization, style, geographic regions and economic sectors. 
the fixed income strategies include U.s. long duration securities,  
opportunistic fixed income securities and U.K. debt instruments. 

the short-term portfolio, whose primary goal is capital preservation  
for liquidity purposes, is composed of government and government- 
agency securities, uninvested cash, receivables and payables. 
the portfolios do not employ any financial leverage.

u.S. deFIned ContRIButIon plAnS
assets of the defined contribution plans in the U.s. consist 
primarily of investment options which include actively managed 
equity, indexed equity, actively managed equity/bond funds, 
target date funds, Mcgraw Hill Financial common stock, stable 
value and money market strategies. there is also a self-directed 
mutual fund investment option. the plans purchased 301,924 
shares and sold 629,086 shares of Mcgraw Hill Financial common 
stock in 2014 and purchased 261,672 shares and sold 1,182,318 
shares of Mcgraw Hill Financial common stock in 2013. the plans 
held approximately 1.9 million shares of Mcgraw Hill Financial 
common stock as of December 31, 2014 and 2.2 million shares 
as of December 31, 2013, with market values of $165 million 
and $172 million, respectively. the plans received dividends on 
Mcgraw Hill Financial common stock of $3 million during the year 
ended December 31, 2014 and $3 million during the year ended 
December 31, 2013.
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StoCk optIonS
stock options may not be granted at a price less than the fair market 
value of our common stock on the date of grant. stock options 
granted in 2014 and 2013 vest over a three year service period in 
equal annual installments and have a maximum term of 10 years. 
stock option compensation costs for 2014 and 2013 grants are 
recognized from the date of grant, utilizing a three-year graded 
vesting method. Under this method, one-third of the costs are ratably 
recognized over the first twelve months, one-third of the costs are 
ratably recognized over a twenty-four month period starting from  
the date of grant with the remaining costs ratably recognized over  
a thirty-six month period starting from the date of grant. 

stock options granted in 2011 and prior years vest over a two 
year service period in equal annual installments and have a 
maximum term of 10 years. stock option compensation costs 
for 2011 and prior year grants are recognized from the date of 
grant, utilizing a two-year graded vesting method. Under this 
method, fifty percent of the costs are ratably recognized over the 
first twelve months with the remaining costs ratably recognized 
over a twenty-four month period starting from the date of grant. 

we use a lattice-based option-pricing model to estimate the fair 
value of options granted. the following assumptions were used 
in valuing the options granted (in 2012, stock options were not 
granted as part of employees’ total stock-based incentive awards):

    Years ended December 31,

     2014  2013  2012

risk-free average interest rate  0.1 - 2.9 %  0.1 - 2.9 %  n/a
Dividend yield  1.8 - 1.4 %  2.09 - 2.07 %  n/a
volatility   18 - 41 %  29 - 45 %  n/a
expected life (years)  6.25 - 6.21   6.1 - 6.2   n/a
weighted-average grant-date  
 fair value per option $ 23.41  $ 14.46   n/a

Because lattice-based option-pricing models incorporate ranges  
of assumptions, those ranges are disclosed. these assumptions 
are based on multiple factors, including historical exercise patterns, 
post-vesting termination rates, expected future exercise patterns 
and the expected volatility of our stock price. the risk-free interest 
rate is the imputed forward rate based on the U.s. treasury yield at 
the date of grant. we use the historical volatility of our stock price 
over the expected term of the options to estimate the expected 
volatility. the expected term of options granted is derived from the 
output of the lattice model and represents the period of time that 
options granted are expected to be outstanding.

7. StocK-BaSed coMpenSation
we issue stock-based incentive awards to our eligible employees 
and Directors under the 2002 employee stock incentive Plan and 
a Director Deferred stock ownership Plan.

  2002 eMployee StocK incentiVe plan (tHe “2002 plan”) –  
the 2002 Plan permits the granting of nonqualified stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, performance stock, 
restricted stock and other stock-based awards.

  director deFerred StocK ownerSHip plan – Under this  
plan, common stock reserved may be credited to deferred stock 
accounts for eligible Directors. in general, the plan requires that 
50% of eligible Directors’ annual compensation plus dividend  
equivalents be credited to deferred stock accounts. each Director 
may also elect to defer all or a portion of the remaining compen-
sation and have an equivalent number of shares credited to the 
deferred stock account. recipients under this plan are not required 
to provide consideration to us other than rendering service. shares 
will be delivered as of the date a recipient ceases to be a member  
of the Board of Directors or within five years thereafter, if so elected. 
the plan will remain in effect until terminated by the Board of  
Directors or until no shares of stock remain available under the plan.

the number of common shares reserved for issuance are as 
follows:

    December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013

shares available for granting under the 2002 Plan  31.4   30.3
options outstanding  8.1   12.2

 total shares reserved for issuance 1  39.5   42.5

1   shares reserved for issuance under the Director Deferred stock ownership Plan  
are not included in the total, but are approximately 0.1 million.

we issue treasury shares upon exercise of stock options and the 
issuance of restricted stock and unit awards. to offset the dilutive 
effect of the exercise of employee stock options, we periodically 
repurchase shares. see note 8 – Equity for further discussion.

stock-based compensation expense and the corresponding tax 
benefit are as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2013  2012

stock option expense $ 21  $ 13  $ 10 
restricted stock and unit awards expense  79   83   80 

 total stock-based compensation  
  expense $ 100  $ 96  $ 90

tax benefit $ 38  $ 37  $ 35 

stock-based compensation of $2 million, $10 million and $19 
million is recorded in discontinued operations for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as a result of 
the sale of MHe and Mcgraw Hill construction described further in 
note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures. additionally, stock-based 
compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 
include amounts related to employees at the company’s corporate 
offices who transferred to MHe of $5 million. 
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the stock-based compensation expense for restricted stock 
and unit awards is determined based on the market price of our 
stock at the grant date of the award applied to the total number 
of awards that are anticipated to fully vest. For restricted stock 
and unit performance awards, adjustments are made to expense 
dependent upon financial goals achieved.

restricted stock and unit activity for performance and  
non-performance awards is as follows: 

     weighted-average 
     grant-date 
(in millions, except per award amounts) shares fair value

nonvested shares as of December 31, 2013  3.1  $ 47.89 
 granted  0.7  $ 77.74 
 vested  (1.9 ) $ 44.54 
 Forfeited  (0.2 ) $ 57.26 

nonvested shares as of December 31, 2014  1.7  $ 61.56 

total unrecognized compensation expense  
 related to nonvested awards $ 68   
weighted-average years to be recognized over  1.6 

    Years ended December 31,

    2014 2013 2012

weighted-average grant-date  
 fair value per award $ 77.74  $ 44.22  $ 44.38 
total fair value of restricted stock 
 and unit awards vested $ 88  $ 119  $ 90 
tax benefit relating to restricted  
 stock activity $ 30  $ 33  $ 32

 

the total fair value of our stock options that vested during the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $6 million, $12 
million and $21 million, respectively. in 2012, stock options were not 
granted as part of employees’ total stock-based incentive awards 
which contributed to the decrease in the fair value of our stock 
options that vested during the year ended December 31, 2013. 

we receive a tax deduction for certain stock option exercises 
during the period in which the options are exercised, generally 
for the excess of the quoted market value of the stock at the 
time of the exercise of the options over the exercise price of the 
options (“intrinsic value”). For the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012, $128 million, $43 million and $42 million, 
respectively, of excess tax benefits from stock options exercised 
are reported in our cash flows used for financing activities.

information regarding our stock option exercises is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

net cash proceeds from the  
 exercise of stock options $ 193  $ 258  $ 299
total intrinsic value of stock  
 option exercises $ 168  $ 158  $ 120
income tax benefit realized from  
 stock option exercises $ 73  $ 61  $ 47

ReStRICted StoCk And unIt AwARdS
restricted stock and unit awards (performance and non- 
performance) have been granted under the 2002 Plan. restricted 
stock and unit performance awards will vest only if we achieve 
certain financial goals over the performance period. restricted 
stock non-performance awards have various vesting periods 
(generally three years), with vesting beginning on the first 
anniversary of the awards. recipients of restricted stock and unit 
awards are not required to provide consideration to us other than 
rendering service.

stock option activity is as follows: 

      weighted-average  
     weighted average remaining years of aggregate 
(in millions, except per award amounts) shares exercise price  contractual term intrinsic value

options outstanding as of December 31, 2013  12.2  $ 41.78    
 granted  0.8   $ 77.85    
 exercised  (4.8 ) $ 72.04     
 canceled, forfeited and expired  (0.1 ) $ 50.96     

options outstanding as of December 31, 2014  8.1  $ 45.18   4.8  $ 356 

options exercisable as of December 31, 2014  6.5  $ 40.28   3.8  $ 317 

     weighted average 
     grant-date 
(in millions, except per award amounts) shares fair value

nonvested options outstanding as of December 31, 2013  1.3  $ 14.46
 granted  0.8  $ 23.41
 vested  (0.4 ) $ 14.47 
 Forfeited  (0.1 ) $ 15.68

nonvested options outstanding as of December 31, 2014  1.6  $ 19.00 

total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested options $ 12   
weighted-average years to be recognized over  2.1



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 59 58 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

ACCeleRAted SHARe RepuRCHASe pRoGRAM
we entered into an accelerated share repurchase (“asr”) agreement  
with a financial institution on March 25, 2013 to initiate share repur-
chases aggregating $500 million. the asr agreement was structured  
as a capped asr agreement in which we paid $500 million and received 
an initial delivery of approximately 7.2 million shares during the three 
months ended March 31, 2013, with an additional 1.4 million shares 
received on april 1, 2013, in the aggregate, representing the minimum 
number of shares of our common stock to be repurchased based on a 
calculation using a specific capped price per share. the total number 
of shares ultimately purchased was determined based on the volume 
weighted-average share price (“vwaP”), minus a discount, of our 
common stock from March 25, 2013 through July 22, 2013. on July 
25, 2013 we received a final incremental delivery of 0.7 million shares 
determined using a vwaP of $53.7995 bringing the total amount of 
shares received to 9.3 million.  

in December 2011, we entered into two separate asr agreements  
with a financial institution to initiate share repurchases aggregating  
$500 million. the first asr agreement was structured as an uncollared 
asr agreement for the repurchase of $250 million of shares at a per 
share price equal to the vwaP of our common stock between December 7, 
2011 and February 22, 2012. we purchased and received approximately 
5 million and 0.8 million shares in December 2011 and February 2012, 
respectively, under the agreement. the second agreement was  
structured as a capped agreement for the repurchase of 250 million  
of shares where we purchased and received 5 million and 0.1 million 
shares in December 2011 and april 2012, respectively.

RedeeMABle nonContRollInG InteReStS
the agreement with the minority partners of our s&P Dow Jones indices 
llc partnership discussed in note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures 
contains redemption features whereby interests held by minority  
partners are redeemable either (i) at the option of the holder or (ii)  
upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within our control. 
specifically, under the terms of the operating agreement of s&P Dow 
Jones indices llc, after December 31, 2017, cMe group and cgis will 
have the right at any time to sell, and we are obligated to buy, at least 20% 
of their share in s&P Dow Jones indices llc. in addition, in the event there 
is a change of control of the company, for the 15 days following a change 
in control, cMe group and cgis will have the right to put their interest to 
us at the then fair value of cMe group’s and cgis’ minority interest.

if interests were to be redeemed under this agreement, we would 
generally be required to purchase the interest at fair value on the date of 
redemption. this interest is presented on the consolidated balance sheets 
outside of equity under the caption “redeemable noncontrolling interest” 
with an initial value based on fair value for the portion attributable to the 
net assets we acquired, and based on our historical cost for the portion 
attributable to our s&P index business. we adjust the redeemable 
noncontrolling interest each reporting period to its estimated redemption 
value, but never less than its initial fair value, considering a combination 
of an income and market valuation approach. our income and market 
valuation approaches may incorporate level 3 fair value measures for  
instances when observable inputs are not available, including assumptions 
related to expected future net cash flows, long-term growth rates, the 
timing and nature of tax attributes, and the redemption features. any 
adjustments to the redemption value will impact retained income.

noncontrolling interests that do not contain such redemption 
features are presented in equity.

8. eQuity
CApItAl StoCk
two million shares of preferred stock, par value $1 per share,  
are authorized; none have been issued.

on February 12, 2015, the Board of Directors approved an  
increase in the dividends for 2015 to a quarterly rate of $0.33  
per common share. 

    Years ended December 31,

    2014 2013 2012

Quarterly dividend rate $ 0.30  $ 0.28  $ 0.255 
annualized dividend rate $ 1.20  $ 1.12  $ 1.02 
special dividend $ —  $ —  $ 2.50 
Dividends paid (in millions) $ 326  $ 308  $ 984 

StoCk RepuRCHASeS
on December 4, 2013, the Board of Directors approved a stock 
repurchase program authorizing the purchase of 50 million shares 
(the “2013 repurchase Program”), which was approximately 
18% of the total shares of our outstanding common stock at that 
time. in 2011, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase 
program authorizing the purchase of up to 50 million shares (the 
“2011 repurchase Program”), which was approximately 17% of 
the total shares of our outstanding common stock at that time. 

share repurchases were as follows: 

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions, except average price) 2014 2013 2012

total number of shares purchased -  
 2013 repurchase Program  4.4   —   — 
total number of shares purchased -  
 2011 repurchase Program 1, 2  —   16.9   6.8 
average price paid per share 2, 3 $ 79.06  $ 58.52  $ 50.35 
total cash utilized 3 $ 352  $ 989  $ 295 

 1  2013 and 2012 include shares received as part of our accelerated share repurchase 
agreements as described in more detail below.

2  on June 25, 2014, we repurchased 0.5 million shares of the company’s common stock 
from the personal holdings of Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s Board 
of Directors and former President and ceo of the company, at a discount of 0.35% from 
the June 24, 2014 new York stock exchange closing price. we repurchased these shares 
with cash for $41 million at an average price of $82.66 per share. see note 13 —  
Related Party Transactions for further information.

3  in December 2013, 0.1 million shares were repurchased for approximately $10 million, 
which settled in January 2014. excluding these 0.1 million shares, the average price paid 
per share was $58.36. cash used for financing activities only reflects those shares which 
settled during the year ended December 31, 2014 resulting in $362 million of cash used 
to repurchase shares. 

our purchased shares may be used for general corporate purposes, 
including the issuance of shares for stock compensation plans and to 
offset the dilutive effect of the exercise of employee stock options. as 
of December 31, 2014, 45.6 million shares remained available under 
the 2013 repurchase Program. as of December 31, 2014, there were 
no remaining shares available under the 2011 repurchase Program. 
the 2013 repurchase Program has no expiration date and purchases 
under this program may be made from time to time on the open 
market and in private transactions, depending on market conditions.



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 59 58 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

changes to redeemable noncontrolling interest during the year ended December 31, 2014 were as follows:

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 810 
 net income attributable to noncontrolling interest  92 
 Distributions to noncontrolling interest  (91 )
 redemption value adjustment  (1 )
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 810 

ACCuMulAted otHeR CoMpReHenSIve loSS
the following table summarizes the changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the year ended 
December 31, 2014:

    Foreign currency  Pension and Unrealized gain accumulated other 
    translation Postretirement  (loss) on Forward comprehensive 
(in millions) adjustment Benefit Plans exchange contracts loss

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 23  $ (216 ) $ (3 ) $ (196 )

 other comprehensive income before reclassifications (106 ) (221 )  3  (324 )
 reclassifications from accumulated other  
  comprehensive loss to net earnings   6 1   6 

 net other comprehensive income (106 ) (215 )  3  (318 )

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ (83 ) $ (431 ) $ —  $ (514 )

1 see note 6 — Employee Benefits for additional details of items reclassed from accumulated other comprehensive loss to net earnings.

the net actuarial loss and prior service cost related to pension and other postretirement benefit plans included in other comprehensive 
income is net of a tax provision of $3 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014.

9. earningS (loSS) per SHare
Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to the common shareholders of the 
company by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed in the 
same manner as basic earnings (loss) per share, except the number of shares is increased to include additional common shares that 
would have been outstanding if potential common shares with a dilutive effect had been issued. Potential common shares consist 
primarily of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units calculated using the treasury stock method.

the calculation for basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012

Amount attributable to McGraw Hill Financial, Inc. common shareholders:     
 (loss) income from continuing operations $ (293 ) $ 783  $ 651 
 income (loss) from discontinued operations  178   593   (214 )

 net (loss) income attributable to the company $ (115 ) $ 1,376  $ 437 

Basic weighted-average number of common shares outstanding  271.5   274.5   278.6 
effect of stock options and other dilutive securities  —   5.3   6.0 

Diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding  271.5   279.8   284.6 

(loss) income from continuing operations:        
 Basic  $ (1.08 ) $ 2.85  $ 2.33 
 Diluted $ (1.08 ) $ 2.80  $ 2.29 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations:        
 Basic  $ 0.66  $ 2.16  $ (0.77 )
 Diluted $ 0.66  $ 2.12  $ (0.75 )
net (loss) income:
 Basic  $ (0.42 ) $ 5.01  $ 1.57 
 Diluted $ (0.42 ) $ 4.91  $ 1.53
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each period we have certain stock options and restricted 
performance shares that are excluded from the computation 
of diluted earnings (loss) per share. the effect of the potential 
exercise of stock options is excluded when a loss from continuing 
operations exists or when the average market price of our 
common stock is lower than the exercise price of the related 
option during the period because the effect would have been 
antidilutive. additionally, restricted performance shares are 
excluded when a loss from continuing operations exists or 
because the necessary vesting conditions had not been met.  
as of December 31, 2014, there were 2.9 million stock options 
excluded as compared to 1.2 million and 3.4 million stock 
options excluded for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. additionally, restricted performance shares 
outstanding of 3.2 million, 0.9 million and 1.4 million as of 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were excluded.

10. reStructuring
During 2014 and 2013, we continued to evaluate our cost 
structure and further identified cost savings associated with 
streamlining our management structure and our decision to exit 
non-strategic businesses. our 2014 and 2013 restructuring plans 
consisted of a company-wide workforce reduction of approximately 
590 positions and 520 positions, respectively, and are further 
detailed below. the charges for each restructuring plan are  
classified as selling and general expenses within the consolidated 
statements of income and the reserves are included in other 
current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

in certain circumstances, reserves are no longer needed because of 
efficiencies in carrying out the plans or because employees previously 
identified for separation resigned from the company and did not 
receive severance or were reassigned due to circumstances not  
foreseen when the original plans were initiated. in these cases, we 
reverse reserves through the consolidated statements of income 
during the period when it is determined they are no longer needed. 
there was approximately $7 million of reserves from the 2012 
restructuring plan that we have reversed in 2013, which offset the 
initial charge of $49 million recorded for the 2013 restructuring plan. 

as part of the sale of Mcgraw Hill construction, which has historically  
been part of our c&c segment, to symphony technology group, 
described further in note 2 — Acquisitions and Divestitures, we  
have retained Mcgraw Hill construction’s restructuring liabilities.  
therefore, the remaining reserves described below include 
Mcgraw Hill construction’s restructuring liability; however, the 
initial charge associated with the reserve has been bifurcated 
between continuing and discontinued operations.

the initial restructuring charge recorded and the ending reserve 
balance as of December 31, 2014 by segment is as follows:

    2014 Restructuring plan 2013 restructuring Plan

    Initial ending initial ending 
    Charge  Reserve charge reserve 
(in millions) Recorded Balance recorded  Balance

s&P ratings $ 45  $ 42  $ 13   2 
s&P capital iQ  9   7   10   1 
c&c 1   16   14   10   2 
corporate  16   15   16   2 

 total  $ 86  $ 78  $ 49  $ 7

1  the 2014 restructuring plan includes an initial charge of $3 million and an ending  
reserve balance of $1 million for Mcgraw Hill construction. the 2013 restructuring plan 
includes an initial charge of $1 million and an ending reserve balance of  less than  
$1 million for Mcgraw Hill construction. 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we have reduced the 
reserve for the 2014 restructuring plan by $9 million and for the 
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we have reduced the 
reserve for the 2013 restructuring plan by $32 million and $10 
million, respectively. the reductions primarily related to cash 
payments for employee severance costs. 

11. SegMent and geograpHic  
inForMation
as discussed in note 1 – Accounting Policies, we have four 
reportable segments: s&P ratings, s&P capital iQ, s&P DJ 
indices and c&c. 

our chief executive officer is our chief operating decision-maker 
and evaluates performance of our segments and allocates 
resources based primarily on operating profit. segment operating 
profit does not include unallocated expense or interest expense, 
as these are costs that do not affect the operating results of our 
segments. we use the same accounting policies for our segments 
as those described in note 1 – accounting Policies.

as part of our transformation to Mcgraw Hill Financial, a 
comprehensive review of our accounting and reporting practices 
and policies was undertaken. as a result, beginning on January 
1, 2014, to the extent they can be attributed to our continuing 
operations, all shared operating services have been allocated to 
the segments utilizing a methodology that more closely aligns 
with each segment’s usage of these services. the costs that 
remain in unallocated expense primarily relate to corporate center 
functions and shared operating costs allocable to discontinued 
operations reclassified during the current year. the updated 
methodology is reflected in the segment results for the year ended 
December 31, 2014 and accordingly, the segment results for the 
prior-year comparative periods have been reclassified to conform 
with the new presentation. 
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segment information for the years ended December 31 is as follows:
 revenue operating (loss) Profit

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

s&P ratings $ 2,455  $ 2,274  $ 2,034  $ (583 ) $ 882  $ 809  
s&P capital iQ  1,237   1,170   1,124   228   189   183 
s&P DJ indices  552   493   388   347   266   202 
c&c 1   893   841   793   290   280   219 
intersegment elimination 2  (86 )  (76 )  (69 )  —   —   — 

 total operating segments  5,051   4,702   4,270   282   1,617   1,413  

Unallocated expense 3  —   —   —   (169 )  (259 )  (243 )

 total  $ 5,051  $ 4,702  $ 4,270  $ 113  $ 1,358  $ 1,170  

1  Mcgraw Hill construction has historically been part of the c&c segment. in accordance with the presentation of Mcgraw Hill construction as a discontinued operation, the results  
of operations, inclusive of corporate overhead allocations, for all periods presented have been reclassified out of c&c’s results to reflect this change. see note 2 — Acquisitions and 
Divestitures for further discussion.

2  revenue for s&P ratings and expenses for s&P capital iQ include an intersegment royalty charged to s&P capital iQ for the rights to use and distribute content and data developed by s&P ratings.

3  the year ended December 31, 2014 includes restructuring charges of $16 million. the year ended December 31, 2013 includes costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and 
reduce our cost structure of $64 million, a $36 million non-cash impairment charge related to the sale of a data center and $13 million related to terminating various leases as we 
reduce our real estate portfolio. the year ended December 31, 2012 includes costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure of $156 million and $52 
million related to a vacation accrual reversal.

 Depreciation & amortization capital expenditures

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

s&P ratings $ 43  $ 45  $ 43  $ 33  $ 40  $ 43
s&P capital iQ  50   49   50   38   39   22
s&P DJ indices  7   10   8   2   4   2
c&c    24   22   23   11   17   16

 total operating segments  124   126   124   84   100   83

corporate  10   11   17   8   17   13

 total  $ 134  $ 137  $ 141  $ 92  $ 117  $ 96

segment information as of December 31 is as follows:
    total assets

(in millions) 2014 2013

s&P ratings $ 624  $ 630 
s&P capital iQ  1,011   1,054 
s&P DJ indices  1,166   1,160 
c&c    918   907 

 total operating segments  3,719   3,751 

corporate 1  3,052   2,213 
assets held for sale 2  —   97 

 total  $ 6,771  $ 6,061 

1 corporate assets consist principally of cash and equivalents, assets for pension benefits, deferred income taxes and leasehold improvements related to subleased areas.

2 includes Mcgraw Hill construction and one of our data centers as of December 31, 2013.

we have operations with foreign revenue and long-lived assets in approximately 80 countries. we do not have operations in any foreign 
country that represent more than 8% of our consolidated revenue. transfers between geographic areas are recorded at agreed upon prices 
and intercompany revenue and profit are eliminated. no single customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenue.

the following provides revenue and long-lived assets by geographic region:

    revenue long-lived assets

    Years ended December 31, December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 

United states $ 2,911  $ 2,723  $ 2,508  $ 2,117  $ 2,206 
european region  1,316   1,226   1,067   430   432 
asia    528   483   453   54   59 
rest of the world  296   270   242   64   54 

 total  $ 5,051  $ 4,702  $ 4,270  $ 2,665  $ 2,751 
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cash amounts for future minimum rental commitments, 
including rent payments on the sale-leaseback, under existing 
non-cancelable leases with a remaining term of more than one 
year, along with minimum sublease rental income to be received 
under non-cancelable subleases are shown in the following table.

    rent sublease 
(in millions) commitment income net rent

2015   $ 152  $ (12 ) $ 140 
2016    120   (12 )  108 
2017    109   (11 )  98 
2018    99   (12 )  87 
2019    92   (12 )  80 
2020 and beyond  162   (5 )  157 

 total  $ 734  $ (64 ) $ 670 

leGAl & ReGulAtoRy MAtteRS
in the normal course of business both in the United states and 
abroad, the company, its subsidiary standard & Poor’s Financial 
services llc (“s&P llc”) and some of its other subsidiaries are 
defendants in numerous legal proceedings and are often the 
subject of government and regulatory proceedings, investigations  
and inquiries. Many of these proceedings, investigations and 
inquiries relate to the ratings activity of standard & Poor’s 
ratings services (“s&P ratings”) brought by issuers and alleged 
purchasers of rated securities. in addition, various government 
and self-regulatory agencies frequently make inquiries and 
conduct investigations into our compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations, including those related to ratings activities and 
antitrust matters. any of these proceedings, investigations or 
inquiries could ultimately result in adverse judgments, damages, 
fines, penalties or activity restrictions, which could adversely 
impact our consolidated financial condition, cash flows, business 
or competitive position.

the company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the 
pending claims and potential claims in the matters described 
below and is diligently pursuing these defenses, and in some cases 
working to reach an acceptable negotiated resolution. However, in 
view of the uncertainty inherent in litigation and government and 
regulatory enforcement matters, we cannot predict the eventual 
outcome of these matters or the timing of their resolution, or in 
most cases reasonably estimate what the eventual judgments, 
damages, fines, penalties or impact of activity restrictions may be. 
as a result, we cannot provide assurance that the outcome of the 
matters described below will not have a material adverse effect 
on our consolidated financial condition, cash flows, business 
or competitive position. as litigation or the process to resolve 
pending matters progresses, as the case may be, we will continue 

12. coMMitMentS and  
contingencieS
RentAl expenSe And leASe oBlIGAtIonS
we are committed under lease arrangements covering property, 
computer systems and office equipment. leasehold improvements  
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their 
economic lives or their lease term. certain lease arrangements 
contain escalation clauses covering increased costs for various 
defined real estate taxes and operating services and the  
associated fees are recognized on a straight-line basis over  
the minimum lease period.

rental expense for property and equipment under all operating 
lease agreements is as follows:

    Years ended December 31,

(in millions) 2014 2013 2012

gross rental expense $ 199  $ 202  $ 158 
less: sublease revenue  (16 )  (29 )  (4 )
less: rock-Mcgraw rent credit  (23 )  (20 )  (19 )

 net rental expense $ 160  $ 153  $ 135 

in December 2003, we sold our 45% equity investment in rock-
Mcgraw, inc., which owns our headquarters building in new York 
city, and remained an anchor tenant in our corporate headquarters 
building in new York city by concurrently leasing back space from 
the buyer through 2020. as of December 31, 2014, we leased 
approximately 17% of the building space. Proceeds from the 
disposition were $382 million and the sale resulted in a pre-tax gain, 
net of transaction costs, of $131 million ($58 million after-tax) upon 
disposition. as a result of the amount of building space we retained 
through our leaseback, a pre-tax gain of $212 million ($126 million 
after-tax) was deferred upon the disposition in 2003. 

in December of 2013, we entered into an arrangement with the 
buyer to shorten the lease to December 2015 in exchange for 
approximately $60 million which was recorded as a reduction to 
the unrecognized deferred gain from the sale. the remaining gain 
is being amortized over the remaining lease term as a reduction 
in rent expense. as of December 31, 2014, the remaining deferred 
gain is $7 million. the amount of the gain amortized during the 
year ended December 31, 2014 was $21 million; in addition, we 
accelerated the recognition of $16 million of the deferred gain 
following the partial exit of the leased space on December 31, 
2014. interest expense associated with this operating lease for 
the year ended December 31, 2014 was $2 million.

    revenue long-lived assets

    Years ended December 31, December 31,

   2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 

United states  58 %  58 %  59 %  80 %  80 %
european region  26   26   25   16   16 
asia    10   10   11   2   2 
rest of the world  6   6   5   2   2 

 total   100 %  100 %  100 %  100 %  100 %

see note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures, and note 10 – Restructuring, for actions that impacted the segment operating results.
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exchange act of 1934, as amended (the “exchange act”) and 
rules 17g-2(a)(2)(iii) and 17g-2(a)(6) under the exchange act. in 
connection with the 2012 cMBs criteria and research matter, the sec 
found that s&P ratings violated section 17(a)(1) of the securities 
act and rule 17g-2(a)(6) under the exchange act. in connection 
with the rMBs matter, the sec found that s&P ratings violated 
section 15e(c)(3) of the exchange act and rules 17g-2(a)(2)(iii) 
and 17g-2(a)(6) thereunder. in connection with these matters, the 
sec ordered s&P ratings censured and enjoined s&P ratings from 
violating the aforementioned statutory provisions and rules, and 
ordered s&P ratings to pay a total of $58 million, which includes 
civil money penalties as well as disgorgement and prejudgment 
interest of $7 million in connection with the 2011 conduit/fusion 
cMBs matter. s&P ratings also agreed to pay a total of $19 million 
to the state of new York and the commonwealth of Massachusetts 
in connection with the settlement of the 2011 conduit/fusion cMBs 
matter. in addition, in connection with the 2011 conduit/fusion cMBs 
matter, s&P ratings agreed with the sec to take a “time-out” from 
making preliminary or final ratings for any new U.s. conduit/fusion 
cMBs transaction until January 21, 2016, including engaging in any 
marketing activity related thereto. this undertaking does not prohibit 
s&P ratings from engaging in surveillance of any outstanding 
conduit/fusion cMBs issues that s&P ratings has previously rated. 

also as previously announced, on october 27, 2014, the company 
received a notice from the staff of the sec stating that they have 
concluded their investigation and do not intend to recommend an 
enforcement action against s&P ratings with respect to ratings 
issued for a particular 2007 offering of collateralized debt obligations, 
known as “Delphinus cDo 2007-1, which was the subject of a wells 
notice from the staff of the sec received in september 2011.

Prosecutor General of the Corte dei Conti
on January 15, 2014, s&P ratings received notification of a potential 
claim by the Prosecutor general of the corte dei conti, an italian 
administrative court, with respect to whether s&P ratings’  
downgrade of italian sovereign debt in May 2011 wrongfully 
damaged italy’s public finances and international reputation and 
whether s&P ratings should pay compensation to italy for the 
costs of italian budget adjustments and for ancillary damages in an 
amount “not lower than” €234 billion. although the deadline for the 
Prosecutor general to file a claim expired on December 20, 2014,  
the Prosecutor general has filed a request to extend that deadline. 

Trani Prosecutorial Proceeding
the prosecutor in the italian city of trani is seeking criminal 
indictments against several current and former s&P ratings 
managers and ratings analysts for alleged market manipulation, 
and against standard & Poor’s credit Market services europe under 
italy’s vicarious liability statute, for having allegedly failed to properly 
supervise the ratings analysts and prevent them from committing 
market manipulation. the prosecutor’s theories are based on 
various actions by s&P ratings taken with respect to italian 
sovereign debt between May 2011 and January 2012. on october 
28, 2014, the court granted the prosecutor’s request and issued 
indictments against the current and former s&P ratings managers 
and ratings analysts, as well as standard & Poor’s credit Market 
services europe. the trial commenced with a hearing on February 4, 
2015, and the proceedings will continue on subsequent dates.

to review the latest information available and assess our ability to 
predict the outcome of such matters and the effects, if any, on 
our consolidated financial condition, cash flows, business and 
competitive position, which may require that we record liabilities in 
the consolidated financial statements in future periods.

S&p ratings
Financial Crisis Litigation
as previously announced on February 3, 2015, the company, 
along with s&P llc, entered into a settlement agreement with 
the United states, acting through the Department of Justice, 
with respect to the case captioned United States v. McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc., and Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC, 
no. cv 13-00779-Doc, and with the states of arizona, arkansas, 
california, connecticut, colorado, Delaware, idaho, illinois, indiana, 
iowa, Maine, Mississippi, Missouri, new Jersey, north carolina, 
Pennsylvania, south carolina, tennessee and washington, and 
the District of columbia, acting through their respective attorneys 
general, with respect to certain cases filed by the states. Under 
the terms of the settlement agreement, the company agreed to 
pay $687.5 million to the United states as a civil monetary penalty 
pursuant to the Financial institutions reform, recovery and 
enforcement act of 1989, and $687.5 million in aggregate to  
the states. the settlement agreement contains no findings of 
violations of law by the company, s&P llc or s&P ratings.

also as previously announced on February 3, 2015, the company 
reached a separate settlement with the california Public employees’ 
retirement system (“calPers”) to resolve its claims against the 
company regarding ratings on three structured investment vehicles. 
Under this settlement, the company will pay calPers $125 million.

the company and its subsidiaries continue to defend additional 
civil cases brought by private and public plaintiffs arising out of 
the same or similar facts and circumstances as these settled 
cases. Discovery in these cases is ongoing. we can provide 
no assurance that we will not be obligated to pay additional 
amounts in order to resolve these matters on terms deemed 
acceptable. at this time, however, we are unable to reasonably 
estimate the range of such additional amounts, if any.

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
as previously announced on January 21, 2015, s&P ratings 
entered into administrative settlement agreements with the sec 
relating to (i) six U.s. conduit/fusion commercial mortgage-backed 
securities (“cMBs”) transactions rated by s&P ratings in 2011 and 
two additional U.s. conduit/fusion cMBs transactions from that 
period (the “2011 conduit/fusion cMBs matter”), (ii) certain 2012 
publications concerning criteria and research relating to conduit/
fusion cMBs (the “2012 cMBs criteria and research matter”) and 
(iii) s&P ratings’ internal controls regarding changes made to an 
assumption used in surveilling certain U.s. residential mortgage-
backed securities (the “rMBs matter”). in addition, s&P ratings 
entered into settlement agreements with the attorneys general of 
new York and Massachusetts relating to the 2011 conduit/fusion 
cMBs matter. s&P ratings neither admitted nor denied the violations 
found by the sec and the state attorneys general. in connection 
with the 2011 conduit/fusion cMBs matter, the sec found that s&P 
ratings violated section 17(a)(1) of the securities act of 1933, as 
amended (the “securities act”), section 15e(c)(3) of the securities 
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13. related party  
tranSactionS
on July 31, 2014, we completed the sale of the company’s aircraft 
to Harold w. Mcgraw iii, chairman of the company’s Board of 
Directors and former President and ceo of the company (“Mr. 
Mcgraw”) for a purchase price of $20 million, which is modestly 
higher than the independent appraisal obtained. this transaction 
was approved by the nominating and corporate governance 
committee of the company’s Board of Directors after consultation 
with members of the Financial Policy committee. During the 
second quarter of 2014, we recorded a non-cash impairment 
charge of $6 million within other (income) loss in our consolidated 
statement of income as a result of the pending sale.

on June 25, 2014, we repurchased 0.5 million shares of the company’s 
common stock from the personal holdings of Mr. Mcgraw. the shares 
were purchased at a discount of 0.35% from the June 24, 2014 new 
York stock exchange closing price pursuant to a private transaction 
with Mr. Mcgraw. we repurchased these shares with cash for $41 
million at an average price of $82.66 per share. this transaction was 
approved by the nominating and corporate governance committee  
of the company’s Board of Directors after consultation with  
members of the Financial Policy committee.

in June of 2012, we entered into a new license agreement  
(the “license agreement”) with the holder of s&P Dow Jones 
indices llc noncontrolling interest, cMe group, which replaced 
the 2005 license agreement between s&P DJ indices and cMe 
group. Under the terms of the license agreement, s&P Dow Jones 
indices llc receives a share of the profits from the trading and 
clearing of cMe group’s equity index products. During the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, s&P Dow Jones 
indices llc earned $52 million, $46 million and $21 million of 
revenue under the terms of the license agreement, respectively. 
the entire amount of this revenue is included in our consolidated 
statement of income and the portion related to the 27%  
noncontrolling interest is removed in net income attributable  
to noncontrolling interests. 

Parmalat Litigation
in september and october 2005, writs of summons were served 
on the Mcgraw-Hill companies, srl and the Mcgraw-Hill 
companies, sa in an action brought in the tribunal of Milan, 
italy by the extraordinary commissioner of Parmalat Finanziaria 
s.p.a. and Parmalat s.p.a. (collectively, “Parmalat”), claiming 
damages of €4.1 billion, representing the value of bonds issued 
by Parmalat which were rated investment grade by s&P ratings, 
plus damages for s&P ratings’ alleged complicity in aggravating 
Parmalat’s financial difficulties, among other claims. in June 
2011, the court dismissed Parmalat’s main damages claim 
based on the value of the bonds, and ordered the defendants to 
pay Parmalat approximately €0.8 million, representing ratings 
fees paid by Parmalat, plus interest and expenses. in september 
2012, Parmalat appealed the judgment and, in november 2012, 
requested payment of the judgment in the amount of €1.1 million, 
which was paid in December 2012. on July 2, 2014, the court of 
appeals of Milan issued an order reopening the proceedings to 
allow the parties to submit additional pleadings. a hearing has 
been scheduled for February 25, 2015. 

in a separate proceeding involving an investigation by the  
prosecutor’s office in Parma, italy and service of a note of 
completion of an investigation on eight s&P ratings analysts,  
a judge of the Parma law court accepted the prosecutor’s 
request for dismissal and in July 2014 dismissed the pending 
criminal proceedings with respect to all eight s&P analysts. 

commodities & commercial Markets
Platts
in May 2013, representatives from the european commission 
(Dg competition, the ec’s antitrust office) commenced an 
unannounced inspection of Platts’ london offices in conjunction 
with potential anticompetitive conduct (in particular, in the crude 
oil, refined oil products and biofuels markets) relating to Platts’ 
Market on close price assessment process. no allegations have 
been made against Platts at this time. there have also been 
several civil actions filed in the United states relating to potential 
anticompetitive behavior by market participants relating to 
Platts’ price assessment process, none of which have named 
Platts as a defendant.

McGraw Hill Construction
in october 2009, an action was filed in the U.s. District court for 
the southern District of new York in which reed construction Data 
asserted a number of claims under various state and federal laws 
against the company relating to alleged misappropriation and 
unfair competition by Mcgraw Hill construction and seeking an 
unspecified amount of damages. in september 2010, the court 
granted the company’s motion to dismiss some of the claims. on 
september 24, 2014, the court granted summary judgment to 
the company on all of reed’s remaining claims with the exception 
of the unfair competition claim. on october 15, 2014, the parties 
submitted a joint stipulation to the court agreeing to dismiss both 
reed’s unfair competition claim and the company’s counterclaims 
without prejudice to reinstatement in the event of a successful 
appeal of reed’s dismissed claims.
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14. Quarterly Financial inForMation (unaudited)
(in millions, except per share data) First quarter second quarter third quarter Fourth quarter  total year 

2014 
revenue  $ 1,196  $ 1,302  $ 1,263  $ 1,290  $ 5,051 
operating profit (loss) $ 420  $ 476  $ 366  $ (1,148 ) $ 113 
income (loss) from continuing operations $ 268  $ 310  $ 215  $ (984 ) $ (191 )
income from discontinued operations $ 7  $ 6  $ 2  $ 163  $ 178 
net income (loss) $ 275  $ 316  $ 217  $ (821 ) $ (13 )
net income (loss) attributable to Mcgraw Hill Financial  
 common shareholders:              
 income (loss) from continuing operations $ 241  $ 286  $ 188  $ (1,009 ) $ (293 )
 income from discontinued operations  7   6   2   163   178 

 net income (loss) $ 248  $ 292  $ 190  $ (846 ) $ (115 )

              
earnings (loss) per share attributable to Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.  
 common shareholders:              
income (loss) from continuing operations:              
 Basic  $ 0.89  $ 1.05  $ 0.69  $ (3.71 ) $ (1.08 )
 Diluted $ 0.87  $ 1.04  $ 0.68  $ (3.71 ) $ (1.08 )
income from discontinued operations:              
 Basic  $ 0.02  $ 0.02  $ 0.01  $ 0.60  $ 0.66 
 Diluted $ 0.02  $ 0.02  $ 0.01  $ 0.60  $ 0.66 
net income (loss):              
 Basic  $ 0.91  $ 1.08  $ 0.70  $ (3.11 ) $ (0.42 )
 Diluted $ 0.89  $ 1.06  $ 0.69  $ (3.11 ) $ (0.42 )

              
2013
revenue  $ 1,140  $ 1,205  $ 1,152  $ 1,206  $ 4,702 
operating profit $ 269  $ 423  $ 395  $ 271  $ 1,358 
income from continuing operations $ 168  $ 266  $ 258  $ 182  $ 874 
income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 587  $ 11  $ (13 ) $ 6  $ 592 
net income $ 755  $ 277  $ 245  $ 188  $ 1,466 
net income attributable to Mcgraw Hill Financial  
 common shareholders:              
 income from continuing operations $ 147  $ 243  $ 228  $ 165  $ 783 
 income (loss) from discontinued operations  588   11   (13 )  6   593 

 net income $ 735  $ 254  $ 215  $ 171  $ 1,376 

              
earnings (loss) per share attributable to Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.  
 common shareholders:
income from continuing operations:              
 Basic  $ 0.52  $ 0.88  $ 0.83  $ 0.61  $ 2.85 
 Diluted $ 0.52  $ 0.87  $ 0.82  $ 0.60  $ 2.80 
income (loss) from discontinued operations:              
 Basic  $ 2.10  $ 0.04  $ (0.05 ) $ 0.02  $ 2.16 
 Diluted $ 2.07  $ 0.04  $ (0.05 ) $ 0.02  $ 2.12 
net income:              
 Basic  $ 2.62  $ 0.93  $ 0.79  $ 0.63  $ 5.01 
 Diluted $ 2.59  $ 0.91  $ 0.77  $ 0.62  $ 4.91 

note - totals presented may not sum due to rounding.



 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort 67 66 Mcgraw Hill Financial 2014 annUal rePort

FiVe-year Financial reView
(in millions, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

income statement data:          
 revenue $ 5,051  $ 4,702  $ 4,270  $ 3,762  $ 3,419 
 operating profit  113   1,358   1,170   1,052   1,004 
 income from continuing operations before taxes on income  54  1  1,299  2  1,089  3  975  4  921 5

 Provision for taxes on income  245   425   388   364   336 
 net (loss) income from continuing operations attributable  
  to Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.  (293 )  783   651   592   568 
 (loss) earnings per share from continuing operations attributable  
  to the Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. common shareholders:              
  Basic  (1.08 )  2.85   2.33   1.98   1.84 
  Diluted  (1.08 )  2.80   2.29   1.95   1.82 
 Dividends per share  1.20   1.12   1.02   1.00   0.94 
special dividend declared per common share  —   —   2.50   —   — 
operating statistics:              
 return on average equity 6  (1.4 )%  134.2 %  40.5 %  48.2 %  40.4 %
 income from continuing operations before taxes on income  
  as a percent of revenue from continuing operations  1.1 %  27.6 %  25.5 %  25.9 %  26.9 %
 net (loss) income from continuing operations as a percent  
  of revenue from continuing operations  (3.8 )%  18.6 %  16.4 %  16.2 %  17.1 %
Balance sheet data: 7              
 working capital $ (1 ) $ 586  $ (1,018 ) $ (812 ) $ 298 
 total assets  6,771   6,025   5,085   4,066   4,620 
 total debt  799   799   1,256   1,198   1,198 
 redeemable noncontrolling interest  810   810   810   —   — 
 equity  539   1,344   840   1,584   2,292 
number of employees 7  17,000   16,400   15,900   15,600   13,700

1  includes the impact of the following items: $1.6 billion of legal and regulatory settlements, restructuring charges of $86 million, and $4 million of professional fees largely related to 
corporate development activities.

2  includes the impact of the following items: $77 million of legal settlements, $64 million charge for costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure, 
a $36 million non-cash impairment charge related to the sale of our data center, a $28 million restructuring charge in the fourth quarter primarily related to severance, $13 million 
related to terminating various leases as we reduce our real estate portfolio and a $24 million net gain from our dispositions.

3  includes the impact of the following items: $135 million charge for costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure, a $65 million restructuring charge, 
transaction costs of $15 million for our s&P Dow Jones indices llc joint venture, an $8 million charge related to a reduction in our lease commitments, partially offset by a vacation 
accrual reversal of $52 million.

4  includes the impact of a $31 million restructuring charge and a $10 million charge for costs necessary to enable the separation of MHe and reduce our cost structure.

5  includes the impact of the following items: a $16 million charge for subleasing excess space in our new York facilities, a $4 million restructuring charge and a $7 million gain on the sale 
of certain equity interests at s&P ratings.

6  includes the impact of the gain on sale of Mcgraw Hill construction in 2014, the gain on sale of Mcgraw-Hill education in 2013 and the gain on sale of the Broadcasting group in 2011.

7  excludes discontinued operations.
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MAnAGeMent’S RepoRt on InteRnAl ContRol  
oveR FInAnCIAl RepoRtInG
as stated above, the company’s management is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting. the company’s management has evaluated 
the system of internal control using the committee of sponsoring 
organizations of the treadway commission 2013 framework 
(“coso 2013 framework). Management has selected the coso 
2013 framework for its evaluation as it is a control framework 
recognized by the securities and exchange commission and the 
Public company accounting oversight Board that is free from 
bias, permits reasonably consistent qualitative and quantitative 
measurement of the company’s internal controls, is sufficiently 
complete so that relevant controls are not omitted and is relevant 
to an evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting. 

Based on management’s evaluation under this framework, we 
have concluded that the company’s internal controls over financial 
reporting were effective as of December 31, 2014. there are 
no material weaknesses in the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting that have been identified by management.

the company’s independent registered public accounting firm, 
ernst & Young llP, has audited the consolidated financial state-
ments of the company for the year ended December 31, 2014, 
and has issued their reports on the financial statements and the 
effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting. 

otHeR MAtteRS
there have been no changes in the company’s internal controls 
over financial reporting during the most recent quarter that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, 
the company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Douglas l. Peterson 
President and chief executive officer 

Jack F. callahan, Jr. 
executive vice President and chief Financial officer

report oF ManageMent
to the shareholders of  
Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.

MAnAGeMent’S AnnuAl RepoRt on ItS  
ReSponSIBIlIty FoR tHe CoMpAny’S FInAnCIAl 
StAteMentS And InteRnAl ContRol oveR  
FInAnCIAl RepoRtInG
the financial statements in this report were prepared by the 
management of Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc., which is responsible 
for their integrity and objectivity.

these statements, prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United states and including 
amounts based on management’s best estimates and judgments, 
present fairly Mcgraw Hill Financial inc.’s financial condition and 
the results of the company’s operations. other financial information 
given in this report is consistent with these statements.

the company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for 
the company as defined under the U.s. securities exchange act 
of 1934. it further assures the quality of the financial records in 
several ways: a program of internal audits, the careful selection and 
training of management personnel, maintaining an organizational 
structure that provides an appropriate division of financial  
responsibilities, and communicating financial and other relevant 
policies throughout the company. 

Mcgraw Hill Financial inc.’s Board of Directors, through its  
audit committee, composed entirely of outside directors, is 
responsible for reviewing and monitoring the company’s financial 
reporting and accounting practices. the audit committee meets 
periodically with management, the company’s internal auditors 
and the independent registered public accounting firm to ensure 
that each group is carrying out its respective responsibilities. in 
addition, the independent registered public accounting firm has 
full and free access to the audit committee and meet with it  
with no representatives from management present.
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in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. at December 31, 2014 and 
2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 
31, 2014, in conformity with U.s. generally accepted accounting 
principles. also, in our opinion, the related financial statement 
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material 
respects the information set forth therein.

we also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the 
Public company accounting oversight Board (United states), 
Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in internal 
control – integrated Framework issued by the committee of  
sponsoring organizations of the treadway commission (2013 
framework) and our report dated February 13, 2015 expressed  
an unqualified opinion thereon.

new York, new York 
February 13, 2015 

report oF independent  
regiStered puBlic  
accounting FirM
tHe BoARd oF dIReCtoRS And SHAReHoldeRS  
oF McGRAw HIll FInAnCIAl, InC.

we have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
of Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. (the “company”) as of December 
31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, cash flows and equity for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. our 
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in 
item 15(a)(2). these financial statements and schedule are the 
responsibility of the company’s management. our responsibility  
is to express an opinion on these financial statements and 
schedule based on our audits.

we conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of 
the Public company accounting oversight Board (United states). 
those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. an audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. an audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. we believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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a company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. a company’s internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain  
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets  
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial  
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized  
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that  
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial 
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods 
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

in our opinion, Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc. maintained, in all  
material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the coso criteria.

we also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the 
Public company accounting oversight Board (United states),  
the consolidated balance sheets of Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.  
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and 
equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 
31, 2014 and our report dated February 13, 2015 expressed an 
unqualified opinion thereon.

new York, new York 
February 13, 2015 

report oF independent  
regiStered puBlic  
accounting FirM
tHe BoARd oF dIReCtoRS And SHAReHoldeRS  
oF McGRAw HIll FInAnCIAl, InC.

we have audited Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.’s (the “company”) 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, 
based on criteria established in internal control – integrated 
Framework issued by the committee of sponsoring organizations  
of the treadway commission (2013 framework) (the coso 
criteria). Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc.’s management is responsible 
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, 
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s 
annual report on  internal control over Financial reporting.  
our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

we conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of  
the Public company accounting oversight Board (United states). 
those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal 
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. our audit included obtaining an understanding of 
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. we believe that  
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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tHis Page is intentionallY leFt BlanK.
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shareholder correspondence should be mailed to: 
computershare 
P.o. Box 30170 
college station, tX 77842-3170

overnight correspondence should be mailed to: 
computershare  
211 Quality circle, suite 210 
college station, tX 77845

investor centre™ website to view and manage shareholder 
account online: www.computershare.com/investor

For shareholder assistance:

in the U.s. and canada:              888-201-5538
outside the U.s. and canada:         201-680-6578
tDD for the hearing impaired:       800-231-5469
tDD outside the U.s. and canada: 201-680-6610

e-mail address:  
shareholder@computershare.com

shareholder online inquiries:  
https://www-us.computershare.com/investor/contact

dIReCt StoCk puRCHASe And  
dIvIdend ReInveStMent plAn
this program offers a convenient, low-cost way to invest in 
our common stock. Participants can purchase and sell shares 
directly through the program, make optional cash investments 
weekly, reinvest dividends, and send certificates to the transfer 
agent for safekeeping.

interested investors can view the prospectus and enroll online at 
www.computershare.com/investor. to receive the materials by 
mail, contact computershare as noted above.

newS MedIA InQuIRIeS
go to www.mhfi.com/news to view the latest company news and 
information or to submit an e-mail inquiry. You may also call 
corporate affairs at 212-512-3151. 

CeRtIFICAtIonS And  
MCGRAw HIll FInAnCIAl, InC. FoRM 10-k
we have filed the required certifications under sections 302  
and 906 of the sarbanes-oxley act of 2002 as exhibits 31.1, 31.2 
and 32 to our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.

the financial information included in this report was excerpted 
from the company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 2014, filed with the securities and exchange commission on 
February 13, 2015. shareholders may access a complete copy 
of the 10-K by following the instruction noted above under the 
heading “investor Kit”.

SHareHolder inForMation 
AnnuAl MeetInG 
the 2015 annual meeting will be held at 11 a.m. eDt on 
wednesday, april 29th at the conrad new York Hotel, located  
at 102 north end avenue, new York, nY 10282.

the annual meeting will also be webcast at:  
www.mhfi.com

StoCk exCHAnGe lIStInG 
shares of the company’s common stock are traded primarily on 
the new York stock exchange. MHFi is the ticker symbol for its 
common stock.

InveStoR RelAtIonS weB SIte 
go to http://investor.mhfi.com to find:

  Dividend and stock split history
  stock quotes and charts
  investor Fact Book
  corporate governance
  Financial reports, including the annual report,  

proxy statement and sec filings
  Financial news releases
  Management presentations
  investor e-mail alerts
  rss news feeds

InveStoR kIt 
the company’s investor kit includes the current annual report, 
Proxy statement, Form 10-Qs, Form 10-K, and the current   
earnings release.

For online access to the Digital investor Kit, go to  
http://investor.mhfi.com

requests for printed copies, free of charge, can be e-mailed to 
investor.relations@mhfi.com or mailed to investor relations, 
Mcgraw Hill Financial, inc., 1221 avenue of the americas,  
new York, nY 10020-1095.

interested parties can also call investor relations toll-free  
at 866-436-8502 (domestic callers) or 212-512-2192  
(international callers).

tRAnSFeR AGent And ReGIStRAR  
FoR CoMMon StoCk 

computershare is the transfer agent for Mcgraw Hill Financial. 
computershare maintains the records for the company’s  
registered shareholders and can assist with a variety of  
shareholder related services.
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directorS and principal executiVeS

Board oF directorS

Harold McGraw III (e)
chairman
Mcgraw Hill Financial

douglas l. peterson (e)
President and chief executive officer
Mcgraw Hill Financial

Sir winfried Bischoff (c,e,F)
chairman
Financial reporting council

william d. Green (c,n)
retired executive chairman
accenture

Charles e. “ed” Haldeman, Jr. (a,c)
chairman of the Board
Kcg Holdings, inc.

Rebecca Jacoby (F)
chief information officer and  
senior vice President
cisco systems, inc.

Robert p. McGraw (F)
chairman and chief executive officer
averdale Holdings, llc

Hilda ochoa-Brillembourg (a,F)
Founder and chairman
strategic investment group

Sir Michael Rake (a,e,F)
chairman
Bt group plc

edward B. Rust, Jr. (a,c,e,n)
chairman and ceo
state Farm insurance companies

kurt l. Schmoke (F,n)
President
University of Baltimore

Sidney taurel (c,e,n)
chairman emeritus
eli lilly and company

Richard e. thornburgh (a,F)
vice chairman
corsair capital, llc

executiVe coMMittee

douglas l. peterson
President and chief executive officer

Jack F. Callahan, Jr.
executive vice President
chief Financial officer

lucy Fato 
executive vice President and
general counsel

Imogen dillon Hatcher
President
s&P capital iQ

donald R. Howard
chief risk and compliance officer

Alexander J. Matturri
chief executive officer
s&P Dow Jones indices

lawrence p. neal
President
Platts

Finbarr o’neill
President
J.D. Power

neeraj Sahai
President
standard & Poor’s ratings services

paul Sheard
chief global economist and
Head of global economics  
& research

d. edward Smyth
executive vice President
corporate affairs

A Audit Committee

C  Compensation & Leadership Development 
Committee

E Executive Committee

F Financial Policy Committee

N  Nominating & Corporate Governance 
Committee
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zacK BezuidenHoudt / s&P Dow Jones inDices, soUtH aFrica

SHani Sandy / s&P caPital iQ, U.s.

Moritz KraeMer / stanDarD & Poor’s ratings services, gerManY

yan zHang / Mcgraw Hill Financial, cHina

nicole SouFFront / Platts, U.s.

leaderS wHo are proMoting growtH  
in tHe capital, coMModity and corporate MarKetS 
Mcgraw Hill Financial   2014 annUal rePort
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